(

)

24 1

30 6 28

29 1 1 29 12 31

(Agricultural Bank of China Limited)

(Zhou Wanfu, Secretary to the Board of Directors)

100005 69
(No. 69, Jianguomen Nei Avenue

Dongcheng District, Beijing 100005, PRC)

11
(03)6775-1000
11
(03)6775-1441
1 13.85 2018 5 31
)
100  5.8986 1 16.95 (

))

1/436

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

UFJ

2018 5 31



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

ABC

2017 11 8
CAS GAAP 2006 2 15
CBRC

Commission
CSRC

Commission

2/436

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

0.01

China Banking Regulatory

China Securities Regulatory

Central Huijin Investment Ltd.

oOoOooodn



18.

19.

20.

21.

MOF

PBOC

SSF

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Ministry of Finance

People®s Bank of China

Social Security Fund

3/436

National Council for

oOoOooodn



1993 12 29

2004 8 28

1994 8 4

1994 8 27

QFII

SAIC

2005 10 27

2013 12 28

QDI

4/436

1994 7 1

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

1999 12 25



A A A

o N N\

200

86

78

10

5/436

13

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

77

177

30



(

)

(

~

)

o o/

(

)

138

(

)

6/436

10

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

ooooooo
)
142
137
141 1
98 37



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OoOoOoOoOodno
)
)
)
()
()
()
) 3 2
)
() 10
)
)
)
20 102
45
20
5
1
3 2

20

71436



A A A A A A A A

W N\

151

118

8/436

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

ooooood
19
1
10
108 4 46
112 3
3
53



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

113 49

A A A A A
" "

~
o/

152

180
100 1

30

151

9/436



180

~ A A A

168

o o o

182

20

10
50

166 3

25

CSRC

10/436

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn



1999 7 1

CSRC

2010 4 21

2012 10 29
2014 8 14
11 8 CBRC

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
10
182
CSRC QFI1
143
2004 8 28 2005 10 27 2013 6 29 2014 8 31
CSRC
2010 4 26 CBRC
2010 9 2 2010 10 13 CBRC

2012 12 31 CBRC 2014 6 23

CBRC 2017 6 28 2017

11/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

@

(b)

10 3 1

12/436



)

)

13/436

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

33



)

)

)

14/436

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn



)

)

)

15/436

lw

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

[4V)



)

)

16/436

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

©

(D

17/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

12
20

15

©

10 30

90

18/436



®

()]

Q)

73

(

)

(

)

19/436

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

30



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

ooooooo
1 6
2
3 2
3 1
10
Q)
2
2
2 6 60
120
@
45
20
20
5

20/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

Q)

SFO

Q)

10 2 4

21/436



(m

~ AN~~~ "~~~

N W N N\

10

10

50

22/436

50

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn



()
1
®)
2
12
12
@

23/436

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn



)

N

©)

®

20

30
30

12

24/436

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn



45

v

10

30

25/436

60

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

30



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

10

26/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

27/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

28/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

10

29/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

SAFE

2008

SAFE /

30/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
20
20
1993 045
2011 348
10
2008 11 6
2008 897
2008
10
«
20
MOF
20
2008 1 1

10

31/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

1984 6 26 10
10
€))
@
©)
1988 10 1 2011 1 8 1988 10 1
16.5
15.0 2018 4 1 2
8.25 7.5
0.1 0.2

32/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

33/436



inE - OBARR)
. 00, 00

31,063, 357

20,000, 600 19,510,041 |
(1 I

15, 4T 053
15000 000 14, BED 102

16, 000, 000

5,000, 600

HIME Mg AL RN Mg
VIR IZR3IE IPR3NE 12A3A 11AE
nE HE BE nE BE

SEEEREN S & UF S SR

(mex : WHARR

160, 600
s

BNy gy RS0

WIFE  HME  HIZE  RIEE  RHITE

POEE 15 A A

it

B
o 1557

i 1514 0.8

MIE WU NI WIS R0

T RIAHELLE

[
rE [ T

Lo

0%

oo

HIHE  HIE RIS N R
ERIE IFNIIE IENIE 12N3E 1INNE
nE R nE nE nE

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

IFRS

RE~DHHESEH

(W& TS AR
T2 0, 0
B0 T B
10, 0, B0 [ Rl =]
B8, BIE
BOGH, 0T
4000, 000 LI T3
&, 000, 009
£, 000, 000
000000
WITE HME  MISE  RIEE TR
N0 BAN0 2AN0 A0 BAn0
nE L5 BE
e EARR
200,000 19, 13

M50 180 B 184060

VEL DY

5.l

WE WIeE WiNE NEE WiTE

ERE

34/436

FLTET S TT T ST TR =TT ST

TRIAHEICHT 55155

LEER

L BT T T 11T
IININE 1ZR3IE 1ZA3B 11A3E 2ANE
B L2 B nE nE



EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
14,562,102 15,974,152 17,791,393 19,570,061 21,053,382
(246,827,629) (270,761,876) (301,564,111) (331,712,534) (356,854,825)
7,224,713 8,098,067 8,909,918 9,719,639 10,720,611
(122,458,885) (137,262,236) (151,023,110) (164,747,881) (181,714,356)
4,728,857 5,147,410 5,378,404 5,368,250 6,147,584
(80,154,126)  (87,248,600)  (91,163,948)  (90,991,838) (104,201,549)
92,823 157,349 356,992 569,948 187,502
(1,573,350) (2,667,066) (6,051,014) (9,660,619)  (3,178,159)
2,093,305 2,396,639 2,727,890 3,340,879 4,000,273
(35,481,520)  (40,623,031)  (46,237,736)  (56,627,899) (67,804,627)
309,728 396,669 446,632 440,562 385,252
(5,249,890) (6,723,540) (7,570,412) (7.,467,526)  (6,530,021)
322,191 358,071 403,243 400,275 404,300
(5,461,137) (6,069,303) (6,834,969) (6,784,661)  (6,852,885)
6,902,522 7,739,996 8,506,675 9,319,364 10,316,311
(116,997,748)  (131,192,932) (144,188,141) (157,963,220) (174,861,471)
3,220,098 3,575,630 4,512,047 5,333,535 6,152,743
(54,580,661)  (60,606,929)  (76,479,197)  (90,403,418) (104,288,994)
2,603,802 2,743,065 2,587,057 2,811,653 2,896,619
(44,134,444)  (46,494,952)  (43,850,616)  (47,657,518) (49,097,692)
706,333 979,867 1,202,175 1,203,614 635,514
(11,972,344)  (16,608,746)  (20,376,866)  (20,401,257) (10,771,962)
737,052 509,418 471,809 323,051 540,386
(12,493,031) (8,634,635) (7,997,163) (5,475,714)  (9,159,543)
13,717,565 14,941,533 16,579,508 18,248,470 19,623,985
(232,512,727)  (253,258,984) (281,022,661) (309,311,567) (332,626,546)
11,811,411 12,533,397 13,538,360 15,038,001 16,194,279
(200,203,416)  (212,441,079) (229,475,202) (254,894,117) (274,493,029)
4,311,407 4,437,283 4,821,751 5,599,743 6,379,447
(73,078,349)  (75,211,947)  (81,728,679)  (94,915,644) (108,131,627)
6,923,647 7,422,318 8,065,556 8,815,148 9,246,510
(117,355,817) (125,808,290) (136,711,174) (149,416,759) (156,728,345)
576,357 673,796 651,053 623,110 568,322
(9,769,251)  (11,420,842)  (11,035,348)  (10,561,715)  (9,633,058)
903,717 1,056,064 1,537,660 1,458,065 1,254,791
(15,318,003)  (17,900,285)  (26,063,337)  (24,714,202) (21,268,707)
26,787 131,021 88,804 205,832 319,789
(454,040) (2,220,806) (1,505,228) (3,488,852)  (5,420,424)
266,261 325,167 382,742 388,215 475,017
(4,513,124) (5,511,581) (6,487,477) (6,580,244)  (8,051,538)
843,108 1,031,066 1,210,091 1,318,193 1,426,415
(14,290,681)  (17,476,569)  (20,511,042)  (22,343,371) (24,177,734)
& 1,074,967 1,391,559 1,471,620 1,546,500 1,731,946
(18,220,691)  (23,586,925)  (24,943,959)  (26,213,175) (29,356,485)
Tierl(CET1) O 838,473 986,206 1,124,690 1,231,030 1,339,953
(14,212,117)  (16,716,192)  (19,063,496)  (20,865,959) (22,712,203)
Tierl (&) 1 39,946 79,902 79,904 79,906
an (677,085) (1,354,339) (1,354,373)  (1,354,407)
Tier2 O] 236,493 365,407 267,028 235,566 312,087
(4,008,556) (6,193,649) (4,526,125) (3,992,844)  (5,289,875)
&) 9,065,631 10,852,619 10,986,302 11,856,530 12,605,577
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(153,662,445) (183,951,892) (186,217,819) (200,968,184) (213,664,530)

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
465,771 524,126 540,862 510,128 542,898
(7.894,818)  (8,883,936)  (9,167,611)  (8,646,670)  (9,202,121)
376,202 429,891 436,140 398,104 441,930
(6,376,624)  (7,286,652)  (7,392,573)  (6,747,863)  (7,490,714)
83,171 80,123 82,549 90,935 72,903
(1,409,748)  (1,358,085)  (1,399,206)  (1,541,348)  (1,235,706)
198,607 223,898 225,818 197,049 205,268
(3,366,389)  (3,795,071)  (3.,827,615)  (3,339,981)  (3,479,293)
52,990 67,971 84,172 86,446 98,166
(898,181)  (1,152,108)  (1,426,715)  (1,465,260)  (1,663,914)
214,174 232,257 230,857 226,624 239,478
(3,630,249)  (3,936,756)  (3,913,026)  (3,841,277)  (4,059,152)
166,211 179,510 180,774 184,060 193,133
(2,817,276)  (3,042,695)  (3,064,119)  (3,119,817)  (3,273,604)
166,315 179,461 180,582 183,941 192,962
(2,819,039)  (3,041,864)  (3,060,865)  (3,117,800)  (3,270,706)
32,879 34,615 820,348 715,973 633,417
(557,299) (586,724)  (13,904,899)  (12,135,742) (10,736,418)
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
® 1.20 1.18 1.07 0.99 0.95
® 20.89 19.57 16.79 15.14 14.57
® 2.79 2.92 2.66 2.25 2.28
® 2.65 2.76 2.49 2.10 2.15
®» © 1.83 1.65 1.65 1.55 1.53
17.86 15.29 15.26 17.83 13.43
™ 36.30 34.56 33.28 34.59 32.96
1
1 ® 0.51 0.55 0.55 0.55 0.58
(8.64) (9.32) (9.32) 9.32) (9.83)
1 ® 0.51 0.55 0.55 0.55 0.58
(8.64) 9.32) 9.32) 9.32) (9.83)
1
0.10 0.11 2.53 2.20 1.95
(1.70) (1.86) (42.88) (37.29) (33.05)
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
® 1.22 1.54 2.39 2.37 1.81
© 367.04 286.53 189.43 173.40 208.37
(10) 4.46 4.42 4.53 4.12 3.77
Tier1(CET1L) ® 9.25 9.09 10.24 10.38 10.63
Tierl ) 9.25 9.46 10.96 11.06 11.26
@) 11.86 12.82 13.40 13.04 13.74
® 62.25 67.94 61.75 60.59 59.87
5.80 6.46 6.81 6.75 6.79
1
1 an 2.60 3.05 3.48 3.81 4.15
(44.07) (51.70) (58.99) (64.58) (70.34)
o
@
(3) CSRC 9 -
2010 33 1
O]
®)
(6) CBRC
(7 CAS
®
©)
(10)
(11)
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
® 25 43.57 44.02 44..50 46.74 50.95
25 114.95 72.49 115.15 82.24 106.74
@ 10 3.33 5.23 7.15 6.98 7.26
10
® 13.22 14.43 16.82 16.58 18.27
@ 2.53 3.60 4.96 3.00 2.13
4.36 4.99 18.28 24.86 18.70
37.24 42.53 86.94 89.23 71.48
8.62 10.10 10.35 9.55 6.94
(1) CBRC
@
®) 10
(4) CBRC
2017 1 2 3 4
149,475 129,844 132,826 130,753
(2,533,601) (2,200,856) (2,251,401) (2,216,263)
55,710 52,883 51,417 32,952
(944, 285) (896,367) (871,518) (558,536)
294,126 48,747 253,261 37,283
(4,985,436) (826,262) (4,292,774) (631,947)
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2010 7

2017
37 5
3,485

2017
1,000

2017 12 31

10,720,611

13.74

19,701

44

15
2014

Tierl

13

2017

4
500

MOF

1970
2009 1
1
2017
16,194,279
193,133
3
378
52 23,661
4
38
40.03
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2017 12 31
/
CA 588,790,000 100.00
ABC

4,113,392,449 100.00
3,000,000,000 100.00
UK 100,000,000 100.00
200,000,001 51.67
19,600,000 51.02
® 31,000,000 50.00
29,400,000 51.02
20,000,000 51.00
210,000,000 51.00
100,000,000 51.00
@ 2,949,916,475 51.00
20,000,000 100.00
1,400,000,000 100.00
® 10,000,000,000 100.00

@ 3 2
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) 2012 12 31
2016 12 31
2,844

2017 12 31

(3) 2017 12 31

2017 12 31

51
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51
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917

1,843

46

2016 12 31 2017 12 31

213 227

2015 5 28

BSCA.

CFA XAF

La Banque Sino-Congolaise pour I"Afrique

BSCA.

24
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2017 9,391
8,541 8,007
2017 12 31
8,757 1.8
66,504 13.6
53,016 10.9
70,054 14.4
102,383 21.0
50,190 10.3
127,584 26.2
478,488 98.2
8,007 1.6
812 0.2
487,307 100.0
2017 12 31
482 0.1
25,002 5.1
225,018 46.2
148,628 30.5
88,177 18.1
487,307 100.0
2017 12 31
125,298 25.7
17,904 3.7
21,997 4.5
18,293 3.8
110,110 22.6
253 0.1
6,256 1.3
138,438 28.4
32,915 6.8
15,843 3.1
487,307 100.0
2017 12 31
30 100,899 20.7
31 40 75,900 15.6
41 50 191,248 39.2
51 119,260 24.5
487,307 100.0
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2017 6
16
24
2017
50 225 25.1 5.56 19.1
2017 9.89
CRB 2017 2.19
2017
GDP 6.9
0.2 10.8 12.8
7.2 10.2 0.9
0.2
GDP 58.8 1.3
CPI
2017 1.6 PPI
6.3 2017 M2 8.2 2017
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2018
2017 3.6

2018

2018

2018

2018

3.9
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2017
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2017
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2017
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2016 12 31 2017 12 31
(@) (@)
4,594,468 47.3 4,945,683 46.1
1,485,633 15.3 1,499,489 14.0
1,293,680 13.3 1,359,512 12.7
2,345,858 24.1 2,915,927 27.2
9,719,639 100.0 10,720,611 100.0

2016 12 31 2017 12 31
(@) (@)
90 79,545 0.8 91,100 0.8
91 360 86,468 0.9 49,520 0.5
361 3 98,427 1.0 65,325 0.6
3 10,195 0.1 18,121 0.2
274,635 2.8 224,066 2.1
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10 )
A 125,703 1.17
B 28,000 0.26
C 24,250 0.23
D 23,976 0.22
E 21,890 0.21
F 19,556 0.18
G 19,485 0.18
H 18,616 0.17
1 18,126 0.17
J 16,875 0.16
316,477 2.95

2017 12 31 7.26

10 18.27
5

2016 12 31 2017 12 31
) )
9,111,457 93.75 10,175,764 94.92
377,348 3.88 350,815 3.27
230,834 2.37 194,032 1.81
57,550 0.59 38,877 0.36
151,587 1.56 131,479 1.23
21,697 0.22 23,676 0.22
9,719,639 100.00 10,720,611 100.00

@
)
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®
4
2017 12 31 36,802 194,032
0.56 1.81
26,533 350,815 3.27
0.61
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
188,767 81.8 3.52 156,380 80.6 2.54
146,138 63.3 6.73 113,076 58.3 4.89
42,629 18.5 1.33 43,304 22.3 1.13
1 - - - - -
37,980 16.4 1.14 34,204 17.6 0.86
11,014 4.8 0.43 11,268 5.8 0.36
6,982 3.0 2.88 6,335 3.3 1.99
2,252 1.0 1.89 1,732 0.9 1.26
10,672 4.6 4.68 8,753 4.5 4.28
6,955 3.0 3.63 6,044 3.1 2.93
105 - 8.61 72 - 7.19
4,086 1.8 0.93 3,448 1.8 0.89
230,834 100.0 2.37 194,032 100.0 1.81
2017 12 31 32,387 156,380
0.98 2.54
3,776 34,204 0.28
0.86
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
7 - - 7 - -
35,471 15.4 1.63 29,460 15.2 1.22
30,530 13.2 2.08 26,957 13.9 1.65
45,728 19.8 3.05 39,031 20.1 2.32
30,194 13.1 2.31 27,377 14.1 1.80
8,772 3.8 2.22 8,438 4.3 1.97
76,046 32.9 3.52 59,314 30.6 2.46
4,086 1.8 0.93 3,448 1.8 0.89
230,834 100.0 2.37 194,032 100.0 1.81

1.06 0.73
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2016 12 31 2017 12 31
77,124 40.9 6.29 70,771 453 5.70
3,247 1.7 0.49 4,234 2.7 0.53
11,086 5.9 2.47 5,789 3.7 1.13
3,951 2.1 0.39 4,734 3.0 0.39
63,140 33.4 15.62 42,925 27.4 12.05
810 0.4 0.34 1,051 0.7 0.29
6,004 3.2 3.31 5,674 3.6 2.54
13,275 7.0 5.77 10,348 6.7 4.62
3,783 2.0 0.68 5,502 3.5 0.69
177 0.1 0.10 224 0.1 0.16
IT 140 0.1 0.59 147 0.1 0.33
6,030 3.2 2.77 4,981 3.2 2.31
188,767 100.0 3.52 156,380 100.0 2.54
2017 12 31
3.57 1.15
( )
2017 1 1 133,605 266,670 400,275
67,430 25,434 92,864
- 87,588 107,125 194,713
- (20,158) (81,691) (101,849)
(82,283) (12,010) (94,293)
- 4,758 2,343 7,101
- (1,077) (353) (1,430)
- (122) (95) @17
2017 12 31 122,311 281,989 404,300
©
VaR
IT
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99
VaR
( )
2016 2017
53 63 71 39 32 49 72 32
1 20 86 213 14 33 51 105 18
9 13 28 3 8 11 20 6
VaR 44 96 213 44 56 73 153 40
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2017 12 31 1
473,033 1,860,183
1 3 1 1
1 3 12 5 5
2016 12 31 (@3,577,103) 392,162 1,797,791 (1,387,150) 595,675 1,991,228 (137,593)
2017 12 31 (3,415,357) 430,009 1,125,165 (1,860,183) 1,141,827 2,040,189 (123,398)
D) 49
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
100 (24,271) (40,354) (24,928) (37,095)
100 24,271 40,354 24,928 37,095
12
2017 12 31 100
24,928 37,095
2017
4,028 6.16 2017
5,489
3,448
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
69,050 9,954 (40,320) (6,171)
(7,052) (1,017) 62,851 9,619
() 49
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+5 881 122)
-5 (881) 122
+5 863 673
-5 (863) (673)

5

122
@
2
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2017
50.95 106.74 2017 4 2017 3
7 121.2
1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5
2016 12 31 52,387 (9,355,146)  (62,220)  (510,004) 643,576 2,295,700 5,409,806 2,588,061 1,062,160
2017 12 31 29,774 (10,417,627) 169,469  (689,320)  (155,304) 3,009,691 6,494,599 2,757,153 1,198,435
) 49
CBRC
CBRC 2018
100 2017 90
CBRC
2017
2017 4 7
121.2 92
CBRC
1 2
2017 4

58/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn

1 HQLA 406,957,725
2 987,056,022 90,479,432
3 164,517,729 8,225,603
4 822,538,293 82,253,829
5 636,320,600 261,599,512
6 185,606,804 45,105,420
7 447,542,096 213,322,392
8 3,171,700 3,171,700
9 1,328,800
10 200,242,586 46,398,216
11 32,605,913 32,605,913
12 — —
13 167,636,673 13,792,303
14 34,823,108 34,823,108
15 65,428,456 1,611,463
16 436,240,531
17 19,373,873 19,217,646
18 82,054,785 47,118,298
19 33,897,624 33,897,624
20 135,326,282 100,233,568
21 | HQLA 406,957,725
22 336,006,963
23 121.2
)

CBRC

59/436




EDINETOO OO
0000000000000(E24593)
0oooood

2017

®

2017

60/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

@

Q)

O)

€Y

61/436



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood
MEHM TR AT L

LA [ _______|______.___._._._._._._._._I._._..

Rk e

. i e LR

PYLT 23t 5 BABLE

i S ”‘;‘;g”
HNLRN

| IS |

g n

i L5
BLpIFmE L

A b J
et

Y e Tt T

MRS L T IS T AR
(ef=0 ¥ YR =)

W Lot i W— i XM R
B L g BEFawA oA TR
(== N R =)

WA R
BEFa SR TR

WA

I XN = T AT 2 ANWH

O]

®

Q)

62/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2017

€Y

2017
@)

®

©)

®) 3 1

(©

AML

2017
AML
AML
AML

AML
AML AML

AML AML AML

2018 5
2017

63/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2017 12 31

49

PBOC CBRC

64/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

@
@
2017 193,133 9,073 4.9
2016 2017
398,104 441,930 43,826 11.0
90,935 72,903 (18,032) -19.8
21,089 28,065 6,976 33.1
510,128 542,898 32,770 6.4
197,049 205,268 8,219 4.2
86,446 98,166 11,720 13.6
226,633 239,464 12,831 5.7
O) 14 23 -
226,624 239,478 12,854 5.7
42,564 46,345 3,781 8.9
184,060 193,133 9,073 4.9
183,941 192,962 9,021 4.9
119 171 52 43.7
2017 81.4
2017 441,930 43,826
37,277 6,549
2017 2.28 2.15
3 5
2016 13
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2016 2017
9,370,200 410,790 4.38 10,373,827 441,475 4.26
® 4,618,837 170,096 3.68 5,464,803 200,475 3.67
4,253,514 158,870 3.74 5,099,513 189,274 3.71
@ 365,323 11,226 3.07 365,290 11,201 3.07
2,478,513 39,264 1.58 2,620,442 41,604 1.59
® 1,222,750 37,040 3.03 908,848 30,145 3.32
17,690,300 657,190 3.71 19,367,920 713,699 3.68
® (410,350) (413,876)
@ 966,835 1,143,042
18,246,785 20,097,086
14,233,459 209,149 1.47 15,599,797 209,782 1.34
® 1,383,379 34,248 2.48 1,306,033 34,723 2.66
®© 483,256 15,689 3.25 862,685 27,264 3.16
16,100,094 259,086 1.61 17,768,515 271,769 1.53
@ 1,067,598 1,021,891
17,167,692 18,790,406
398,104 441,930
2.10 2.15
2.25 2.28
@
@ MOF
®
C))
®)
(©)
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42,711 (12,026) 30,685
31,034 (655) 30,379
2,253 87 2,340
(10,412) 3,517 (6,895)
65,586 (9,077) 56,509
18,374 (17,741) 633
(2,056) 2,531 475
11,991 (416) 11,575
28,309 (15,626) 12,683
37,277 6,549 43,826
2017 713,699 56,509
1,677,620
30,685 7.5 441,475
1,003,627
2016 2017
5,455,502 250,729 4.60 5,991,265 263,591 4.40
2,249,014 96,411 4.29 2,328,333 95,481 4.10
3,206,488 154,318 4.81 3,662,932 168,110 4.59
450,555 14,326 3.18 273,659 9,113 3.33
3,031,025 134,990 4.45 3,681,674 158,165 4.30
433,118 10,745 2.48 427,229 10,606 2.48
9,370,200 410,790 4.38 10,373,827 441,475 4.26
12,862 5.1 263,591
535,763 20
23,175
17.2 158,165 650,649
15
2014 11 2015  PBOC
5,213 36.4 9,113
176,896 15
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2017
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2016 2017
2,119,595 54,861 2.59 2,241,983 54,598 2.44
3,562,748 22,064 0.62 4,236,947 26,983 0.64
5,682,343 76,925 1.35 6,478,930 81,581 1.26
4,319,228 115,665 2.68 4,413,278 109,000 2.47
4,231,888 16,559 0.39 4,707,589 19,201 0.41
8,551,116 132,224 1.55 9,120,867 128,201 1.41
14,233,459 209,149 1.47 15,599,797 209,782 1.34
475 34,723
18
11,575 27,264
379,429
PBOC
2017 18,032 19.8
72,903
2016 2017

16,715 11,113 (5,602) -33.5

9,050 8,358 (692) -7.6

39,377 22,773 (16,604) -42.2

20,108 22,699 2,591 12.9

9,993 14,595 4,602 46.1

2,263 2,094 (169) -7.5

3,119 3,368 249 8.0

194 257 63 32.5

100,819 85,257 (15,562) -15.4

9,884 12,354 2,470 25.0

90,935 72,903 (18,032) -19.8

5,602 33.5 11,113
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692 7.6 8,358
16,604 42.2 22,773
2016 MOF
2,501 12.9 22,699
4,602 46.1 14,595
169 7.5 2,094
249 8.0 3,368
2017 6,976 28,065
14,286 -8,829
1,953
3,244
784 136
23,999 40,002
2016 2017
5,457 (8,829)
(1,291) (3,244)
920 136
16,003 40,002
21,089 28,065
2017 8,219 205,268
1.63 32.96
2,303 2.1 113,839
584 1.3 45,024
11,341 101.2 22,552
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758 4.0 18,279
2016 2017

111,536 113,839 2,303 2.1
44,440 45,024 584 1.3
11,211 22,552 11,341 101.2
19,037 18,279 (758) -4.0
11,449 4,953 (6,496) -56.7
(3,474) (2,985) 489 -14.1
2,850 3,606 756 26.5
197,049 205,268 8,219 4.2
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2017 11,720 98,166
13,936 92,864
2017 3,781 8.9 46,345
19.35
2016 2017

241,764 47.4 249,333 45.9
194,215 38.1 205,930 37.9
56,317 11.0 56,590 10.5
17,832 3.5 31,045 5.7
510,128 100.0 542,898 100.0

2016 2017
46,873 9.2 21,973 4.0
97,206 19.1 108,026 19.9
67,944 13.3 73,544 13.5
76,065 14.9 82,172 15.1
69,579 13.6 79,503 14.6
109,500 21.5 120,504 22.2
21,693 4.2 21,245 3.9
21,268 4.2 35,931 6.8
510,128 100.0 542,898 100.0

44

2016 2017
194,311 38.1 211,600 39.0
315,817 61.9 331,298 61.0
510,128 100.0 542,898 100.0
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(®)
2017 12 31 1,483,321 7.6 21,053,382
996,947 10.7
819,208 15.4 84,966
3.0 568,100 47.2
217,335 67.3
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
9,719,639 - 10,720,611 -
400,275 - 404,300 -
9,319,364 47.6 10,316,311 49.0
5,333,535 27.3 6,152,743 29.2
2,811,653 14.4 2,896,619 13.8
1,203,614 6.2 635,514 3.0
323,051 1.7 540,386 2.6
578,844 2.8 511,809 2.4
19,570,061 100.0 21,053,382 100.0
2017 12 31 10,720,611 1,000,972
10.3
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
9,279,077 95.5 10,335,359 96.4
5,368,250 55.2 6,147,584 57.4
569,948 5.9 187,502 1.7
3,340,879 34.4 4,000,273 37.3
440,562 4.5 385,252 3.6
9,719,639 100.0 10,720,611 100.0
779,334 14.5 6,147,584
659,394 19.7 4,000,273

382,446 67.1 187,502
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55,310 12.6 385,252
2016 12 31 2017 12 31

2,169,949 40.4 2,311,991 37.6
3,198,301 59.6 3,835,593 62.4
5,368,250 100.0 6,147,584 100.0
142,042 6.5 637,292

19.9

2.8 62.4
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
1,225,322 22.8 1,241,537 20.2
660,361 12.3 801,355 13.1
o 449,687 8.4 513,512 8.4
1,006,903 18.8 1,223,618 19.9
404,172 7.5 356,353 5.8
236,880 4.4 367,775 6.0
181,634 3.4 223,058 3.6
230,098 4.3 224,098 3.6
552,447 10.3 797,744 13.0
179,338 3.3 137,590 2.2
IT
23,804 0.4 45,054 0.7
@ 217,604 4.1 215,890 3.5
5,368,250 100.0 6,147,584 100.0
(€Y)
@
2017
2017 12 31 5 @ @ ®)
C)) ®) 5
74.6 2
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2016 12 31 2017 12 31
2,558,116 76.6 3,133,474 78.4
119,088 3.6 137,525 3.4
228,214 6.8 204,681 5.1
242,451 7.3 317,547 7.9
191,786 5.7 206,044 5.2
1,224 - 1,002 -
3,340,879 100.0 4,000,273 100.0
2017 12 31 575,358 22.5 3,133,474
18,437 15.5 137,525
23,533 10.3 204,681
75,096 31.0 317,547
14,258 7.4 206,044
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
279,762 2.9 246,197 2.3
2,170,468 22.3 2,415,289 22.5
1,466,397 15.1 1,635,306 15.2
1,500,014 15.4 1,682,564 15.7
1,309,273 13.5 1,519,322 14.2
394,896 4.1 428,538 4.0
2,158,267 22.2 2,408,143 22.5
440,562 4.5 385,252 3.6
9,719,639 100.0 10,720,611 100.0
2017 12 31 819,208
15.4 6,152,743
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2016 12 31 2017 12 31
4,789,697 89.8 5,490,804 89.2
365,323 6.9 367,314 6.0
12,954 0.2 19,025 0.3
O 165,561 3.1 275,600 4.5
5,333,535 100.0 6,152,743 100.0

@
2017 12 31 701,107
2017

2016 12 31 2017 12 31
1,927,598 40.3 2,485,220 45.3
1,442,999 30.1 1,526,936 27.8
814,571 17.0 889,472 16.2
174,025 3.6 188,414 3.4
430,504 9.0 400,762 7.3
4,789,697 100.0 5,490,804 100.0

2017

2016 12 31 2017 12 31
3 279,454 5.8 489,001 8.9
3 12 695,366 14.5 515,278 9.4
1 5 2,296,876 48.0 2,815,757 51.3
5 1,518,001 31.7 1,670,768 30.4
4,789,697 100.0 5,490,804 100.0

2017
2017
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2016 12 31 2017 12 31
4,546,871 94.9 5,233,831 95.3
191,831 4.0 190,976 3.5
50,995 1.1 65,997 1.2
4,789,697 100.0 5,490,804 100.0
2017
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
& 417,955 7.8 577,965 9.4
1,408,881 26.5 1,426,420 23.2
2,882,152 54.0 3,489,135 56.7
624,547 11.7 659,223 10.7
5,333,535 100.0 6,152,743 100.0
@
2017 12 31
2,416,408 1,526,936
889,472
2017 12 31 10
(©)
2017 29,446 3.85 2027 1 6 -
2017 25,502 3.83 2024 1 6 -
2017 20,675 4.11 2027 3 20 -
2017 19,214 4.13 2022 4 21 -
2014 18,248 5.44 2019 4 8 -
2016 17,855 2.65 2019 10 20 -
2017 17,660 3.70 2022 1 6 -
2015 16,412 3.97 2025 2 27 -
2016 14,864 3.43 2021 12 8 -
2017 14,788 3.54 2020 1 6 -
@
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2017 12 31 1,375,515 7.5 19,623,985
1,156,278 7.7
203,274 13.9 113,957
55.4
86,802 22.4 2017 40,000 Tier2
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
15,038,001 82.4 16,194,279 82.5
1,458,065 8.0 1,254,791 6.4
205,832 1.1 319,789 1.6
388,215 2.1 475,017 2.4
301,170 1.7 391,772 2.0
857,187 4.7 988,337 5.1
18,248,470 100.0 19,623,985 100.0
2017 12 31 1,156,278 7.7 16,194,279
1.5 57.1
2.4 58.3
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
14,937,670 99.3 16,118,044 99.5
5,599,743 37.2 6,379,447 39.4
1,707,628 11.4 1,836,635 11.3
3,892,115 25.8 4,542,812 28.1
8,815,148 58.6 9,246,510 57.1
4,279,398 28.5 4,351,017 26.9
4,535,750 30.1 4,895,493 30.2
® 522,779 3.5 492,087 3.0
100, 331 0.7 76,235 0.5
15,038,001 100.0 16,194,279 100.0

@
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2016 12 31 2017 12 31
82,577 0.5 72,960 0.5
3,309,192 22.0 3,612,588 22.3
2,100,051 14.0 2,250,015 13.9
2,681,161 17.8 2,870,864 17.7
2,536,899 16.9 2,759,875 17.0
773,462 5.1 792,119 4.9
3,454,328 23.0 3,759,623 23.2
100,331 0.7 76,235 0.5
15,038,001 100.0 16,194,279 100.0
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
9,007,828 59.9 10,030,752 61.9
3 1,685,789 11.2 1,785,447 11.0
3 12 2,637,833 17.6 2,551,584 15.8
1 5 1,705,965 11.3 1,826,342 11.3
5 586 - 154 -
15,038,001 100.0 16,194,279 100.0
2017 12 31 1,429,397 324,794
79,899 98,773 -19,690
134,348 230,750 577,573
1 0.34 4.15
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
324,794 24.6 324,794 22.7
79,899 6.0 79,899 5.6
98,773 7.5 98,773 7.0
3,578 0.3 (19,690) 1.4)
115,136 8.7 134,348 9.4
198,305 15.0 230,750 16.1
496,083 37.5 577,573 40.4
1,625 0.1 (32) -
3,398 0.3 2,982 0.2
1,321,591 100.0 1,429,397 100.0
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2016 12 31 2017 12 31
588,401 36.0 727,562 41.6
312,255 19.1 233,788 13.4
229,177 14.0 220,826 12.6
181,284 11.1 140,034 8.0
323,217 19.8 426,668 24.4
1,634,334 100.0 1,748,878 100.0
©
IFRS CAS
IFRS CAS
@
@
2017
13 5 165
PPP
168
CMM

2017 12 4.1227 56.6
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13.9
6,335,086
2,612
567,831
238,071
327,122
2017
165.5
153 24.4
2017
182,868
5.041
2017
32.5

2017 2016-2017

118.3

7.0
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2017 12 31
779,704
2017 12 31
396,888 6.7
8,423
2017
208,075
2017
4,545
177,485
187 100
36.71 1
95
7,507
1
2017
2.112
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7
2017 276 301.8
1
5A
2017 2
2.13
2017
47.81 71.228
336 2017
42.55 5.60
2017
@
(®)
2017
2017 12 31 4,000,273
659,394
2017 12 3,133,474

575,358
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2017
2017 12 31 9,246,510
431,362
2017 12 910 30
4 1
IC 568 59 QR
Pay Pay
2017
84.81 2017 16.18
23.6
6
1,516.3
13.3 202.3 51.1
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
88,046.72 90,964.16 3.3
6,863.00 8,480.89 23.6
2016 2017
62,533.63 63,322.03 1.3
13,384.13 15,163.02 13.3
2017 106 1,028.6
187,618 41,695

2017
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2017 PBOC
OMO
18,803.836
2017 12 31
819,208
2017
2017
2017

SLF

15.4

ECB

PBOC

2017
13,169.624

84/436

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

MLF PSL
TLF

5,634.213

6,152,743



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
@
PPP
2017
1,760,838 7.9
1,356,041
404,797
1,356,041 77.0
404,797 23.0
391,960 22.3
1,368,878 77.7
1,760,838 100.0
2017
2017 2017
2017
21 2017
2017
2017 10,293,143 14.3
2017 3,368
8.0
2017 SSF
2017 433,432
16.5
2017
2017 4,319.25 68,959.14

29.7 37.7

85/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
2017
©) 348.4
26.9
1 1
2017
30,608 13,449
@
2017
IT
337.3 31.2
2017 18 52.482
10 31.807 8 20.675
2017 2017 CcbceC
©)
2017 44.786 42.3

86/436



@

®

514

WeChat

@

ABCe

ABC

25.47

2.0

87/436

ABC

1
ABC WeChat

10,104

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

®

ABC E
ABC E
ABC E
20
1.2
WeChat



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

16 2025

® @

2017 1.36 13.3

0.388 16.9
663.6 5.01

21 2017
2017

@

88/436



1,347

Q)
2017

122,207

2017

2017

10

22

77.1

15.1

38.3

1,434
530

2017
11.8

2017
895.898

89/436

2017

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

4.0

2017

17

2017

ooooood
747,625
19
1
501
93.3
22.535



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
@
2017 5 ABC
537.7
28.0 ABC
24.8
2017
26 40
2
2017 5 157.3
9.2 2017 1.602 37.9
@
2017
6,800
700
2017
223 18.0
47.7 5.318
18.7 72.7

85 14

90/436



83.76

2017

()

31.8

2017
105
98.84

PBOC

14

125.9

QR

ATM

206

477

98

91/436

97.2

CBRC

116.3

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2017
21.9

126

2017
42.6

1.2

ATM



Al

Q)

12

ABC E-

581

92/436

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

PBOC

433



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2017 29,900 1.6137

2017

93/436



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)

gooooog
(€))
@
By seomeee M2
Tmmmmmmemeee ELAEELET M i Wb i e WL AE R T R
AU LA LR N aEReREREEREELS
e ] PRI RS
! F— W AT o
: FECRTB « LRSS RS K URR T IR B AT
IRAEHLT R MEHEE&%H — o+ BB A MRS I L TR R BT R -
| BLUGENSR = e e [ = BRR (e o 42 T RS TE) !
Ay L i
RRERER2 g amd 8 —) !
+ BT T RS AR A TR e v — i
« BRBEAINE T BRSSO R S 3 L O e e |
- RGN T BRI B A s L O A R e — !
||+ S R TR R ) R 2 R e — "
= PR YRR N AT AL e !
= DR T RRE AU T AR B v — !
- BLBREEET BB TG T AR A S — !
« PR PR O R e S R e :
B Lt .
RN B — R M R Y
WX EE AR T W B T AR
ME LM MEIE
REERTERCE T EEARE
3
8

94/436



¢Y)

@

@

@B 6

(®)

335.3
28.9

162.5

@

2017

40.6
60.7

95/436

22.1
10.6

®

57.9

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

562.5



2017

©

74.4

2017

@

2017
2017

75

206

13

65.6

2.9

349.7

44.7

19

832
832

2017

96/436

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
198.7 2,059.1
255.9 2,129.2
2017
12.8
2017
31
21
2017
108.65
12
164.9 1,425
920
23 5,586
636
291.8 4,722.6
206.7 1,405.8
832
40
1
832



84.4
13
2017
2017
72.8
2018
2018
2018

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
2017 832
110.7 15.7 815.1
5.4
2017
41.5 287.8
1.05 6.65
36.1 22.2 1.233
2017 4
2.9 58.1 7.8
5 12
2017 5 66,000
2.5 235
156,000 17,000
44.7
388,000
832 80
40
1

832

97/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
2017 PBOC
1
1.1 287.90
1.1.1 221.83
1.1.2 66.07
1.2 2,590.00
1.2.1 728.40
1.2.2 1,861.60
61.99
1,772.96
2.1 123.29
2.2 12.248
2.3 38.82
2.4 490.82
®
2017 12 31 7.7 7,585,643
12.3 2.0 3,568,363
7.7 6,915,672
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
3,178,345 - 3,568,363
(162,590) - (163,246) -
3,015,755 42.8 3,405,117 44.9
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3.40 3.49 3.50 3.55 3.59 3.56
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20 1,426,420 1,408,881
21 3,489,135 2,882,152
22 659,223 624,547
24 227 213
25 155,258 158,669
23 1,381 1,381
26 97,751 83,187
27 196,900 244,829

21,053,382 19,570,061

28 465,947 291,052
29 974,730 1,156,044
30 280,061 302,021
31 21,118 17,504
32 370,654 283,666
17 30,872 20,758
33 319,789 205,832
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33 5,420,424 3,488,852
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324,794 79,899 98,773 3,578 115,136 198,305 496,083 1,625 1,318,193 3,398 1,321,501
_ _ _ - - — 102,962 - 102,962 171 193,133
- - —  (28,268) - - - (1,657) (24,925) (587) (25.512)
— - —  (28,268) - — 192,962  (1.657) 168,087 (416) 167,621
41 — - - — 19,212 - (19,212) - - - _
42 _ - - - —  32,M5 (32,445) - - - -
10 _ _ - _ - - (55.215) - (55,215) - (55,215)
10 _ _ _ - - —  (4.600) - (4,600) - (4,600)
324,794 79,899 98,773 (19,690) 134,348 230,750 577,573 (32) 1,426,415 2,982 1,429,397
324,794 79,899 98,773 22,429 96,748 175,606 412,005 (163) 1,210,091 1,794 1,211,885
_ _ _ _ - — 183,94 — 183,041 119 184,060
_ - —  (18,851) - - - 1,788 (17,063)  (317)  (17,380)
_ _ —  (18,851) - — 183,041 1,788 166,878 (198) 166,680
23 _ _ _ _ _ _ - - — 1,843 1,843
41 _ - - _ 18,388 —  (18,389) - - - -
4 _ _ _ - — 22,699 (22,699) - - - -
10 _ _ _ _ _ —  (54,176) —  (54,176) —  (54,176)
10 _ _ _ _ - —  (4,600) - (4,600) - (4,600)
- - - - - - - - - 1) 41)
324,794 79,899 98,773 3,578 115,136 198,305 496,083 1,625 1,318,193 3,398 1,321,591
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5,505,258 1,354,288 1,674,202 60,647 1,951,555 3,361,270 8,408,607 27,544 22,343,371 57,596 22,400,967
- - - - - - 3,270,706 - 3,270,706 2,898 3,273,604
- - - (394,393) - - - (28,086) (422,479) (9,950) (432,428)
- - - (394,393) - - 3,270,706 (28,086) 2,848,227 (7,051) 2,841,176
4 - - - - 325,643 - (325,643) - - - -
42 - - - - - 549,043 (549,943) - - - -
10 - - - - - - (935,894) - (935,894) - (935,890)
10 - - - - - - (77.970) - (77,970) - (77,970)
5,505,258 1,354,288 1,674,202 (333,746) 2,277,199 3,911,213 9,789,862 (542) 24,177,734 50,545 24,228,279
5,505,258 1,354,288 1,674,202 380,172 1,639,879 2,976,522 6,983,485  (2,763) 20,511,042 30,408 20,541,451
- - - - - - 3,117,800 - 3,117,800 2,017 3,119,817
- - - (319,524) - - - 30,307 (289,218) (5,373) (294,591)
- - - (319,524) - - 3,117,800 30,307 2,828,582 (3,356) 2,825,226
23 - - - - - - - - - 31,239 31,239
4 - - - - 311,677 - (311,677) - - - -
42 - - - - - 384,748 (384,748) - - - -
10 - - - - - - (918,283) - (918,283) - (918,283)
10 - - - - - - (77,970) - (77,970) - (77,970)
- - - - - - - - - (695) (695)
5,505,258 1,354,288 1,674,202 60,647 1,951,555 3,361,270 8,408,607 27,544 22,343,371 57,596 22,400,967
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(14) 9
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194,554 152,690
/ ( 265,819 (89,447)
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(1,135,665) (939,134)
174,895 230,453
(21,960) (13,738)
974,964 1,433,784
(102,722) (56,173)
144,479 40,995
670,223 775,586
(36,806) (59,613)
633,417 715,973
1,920,667 1,261,234
189,384 154,753
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(2,577,239)  (2,039,374)
(16,011) (22,637)
(481,061) (643,737)
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158,323 135,131
9,113 14,327
441,475 410,790
123,270 99,737
49,070 46,155
41,604 39,264
23,654 21,395
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(12,354) (9,884)
72,903 90,935
3 )/
( 12 31
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2017 2016
(5.306) (1,653)
1,022 17
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2017
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2017 1 9
2017 12 4
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2016 3 4 2016 3 24
2016
2015 12 2017 4 18
2016 5 13
2016
2016 7 5
2016 6 6
2017 1 24
2016 2 21
2016 9 14
2016 5 13
2016 3 3
2016 12 16
2016 12 31
2016 12 31
8.43 2017 8 30 10.67
2016 12 31
5
5
2017 2016 12 31 5
) 12 31
2017 2016
11,064 11,158
10,057 9,352
1,544 998
22,665 21,508
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4,000,001 4,500,000 2
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5,000,001 5,500,000 1 1
2017 12 31 2016 12 31 5
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
5
3 ( 622 )
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
( ) 12 31
2017 2016
92,864 78,928
(290) 2,603
2,149 2,213
(2,070) 1,370
651 403
101 1
4,761 928

98,166 86,446
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2017

10

2016
2015

1 2016

2017 6 28

26 )

2016 12 31

(25%)

2017 12 31

25%

) 2016
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12 31
2017 2016
52,342 37,104
648 400
302 368
53,292 37,872
(6,947) 4,692
46,345 42,564
12 31
2017 2016
239,478 226,624
59,870 56,656
() (20,284) (14,528)
6,839 490
(80) (54)
46,345 42,564
12 31
2017 2016
[€)) 55,215 -
(@) - 54,176
55,215 54,176
(4) 4,600 4,600
GAAP ) 2016
0.17 55,215



2 2015

2016 6 27

3 2017 12 31

4 2017

11

2017 1 13
2017 3 13

2017 10 9
2017 11 6

2016

2016 1 21
2016 3 11

2016 10 28
2016 11 7

2016 12 31

) 2015
2016 12 31
1 0.1783 57,911
2
1
2
1
( )
( )
( )
( )
( )
2017
2016
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( GAAP ) 2015
1 0.1668 54,176
5.5% 2,200
6% 2,400
5.5% 2,200
6% 2,400
12 31
2017 2016
192,962 183,941
(4,600) (4,600)
188,362 179,341
324,794 324,794
0.58 0.55
4,600
4,600
2017
1



12
( )
1 PBOC
2017 3 27
31 14.5%
2
3
pBOC
0%
13
( )
2017 12 31
10,598 2016

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
12 31
2017 2016
108,497 111,607
@ 2,581,677 2,437,536
@ 43,408 111,753
®) 163,037 150,757
2,896,619 2,811,653
2017 [2017]64
PBOC 2017 12 31 14.5% 2016 12
16.5% 201612 31 16. 5%
16.5 2016 12 31 16.5
5% 2016 12 31 5%
PBOC
PBOC
PBOC
0% 2015 8 31 PBOC
[2015]273
2016 2017 1 1 2017 9 10
20 12 2017 9 PBOC
[2017]207 2017 9 11
12 31
2017 2016
92,355 583,545
6,961 6,471
31,018 32,976
130,334 622,992
(89) (327)
« ) 130,245 622,665
12 31 6,526

195/436



14

15

196/436

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

12 31
2017 2016

243,304 222,526
189,488 322,216
73,415 39,239
506,207 583,981
(938) (3,032)
505,269 580,949

12 31

2017 2016

12,112 3,290
79,368 44,554
50,845 46,944
21,624 13,307
163,949 108,095
30,691 15,523
194,640 123,618
- 185
@ 163,949 107,910
30,691 15,523

194,640 123,618
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17

2017 12 31

2016 12 31
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12 31
2017 2016
19,352 17,610
61,344 55,230
52,805 63,045
39,138 35,358
172,639 171,243
93,741 40,953
92,388 58,485
(€Y 24,557 23,656
383,325 294,337
3,153 2,685
(@) 163,054 163,101
217,118 128,551
383,325 294,337

oOoOooodn
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2017 12 31
/
1,997,265 24,349 (29,838)
62,409 945 (275)
25,294 (30,113)
279,373 1,132 (406)
126,596 1,858 (353)
28,284 (30,872)
2016 12 31
/
1,382,401 25,139 (18,410)
119,352 68 (1,353)
25,207 (19,763)
258,523 1,061 (604)
94,506 5,192 (391)
31,460 (20,758)
CBRC 2013 1 1
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
12 31
2017 2016
22,868 26,601
12 31
2017 2016
481,056 303,120
59,330 19,931
540,386 323,051

47
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19
( ) 12 31
2017 2016
6,527,217 5,803,277
187,502 569,948
6,714,719 6,373,225
4,005,892 3,346,414
10,720,611 9,719,639
(122,311) (133,605)
(281,989) (266,670)
(404,300) (400,275)
10,316,311 9,319,364
( ) @
(O] )
2017 12 31
10,526,579 34,227 159,805 194,032 10,720,611 1.81
(255,266) (26,723) (122,311) (149,034) (404,300)
10,271,313 7,504 37,494 44,998 10,316,311
2016 12 31
9,488,805 37,986 192,848 230,834 9,719,639 2.37
(237,671) (28,999) (133,605) (162,604) (400,275)
9,251,134 8,987 59,243 68,230 9,319,364
1
2

199/436



2017 1 1

2017 12 31

2016 1 1

2016 12 31
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2017 12 31
133,605 266,670 400,275
87,588 107,125 194,713
(20,158) (81.691)  (101,849)
67,430 25,434 92,864
(82,283) (12,010) (94,293)
4,758 2,343 7,101
(1.077) (353) (1.430)
122) (95) @17
122,311 281,989 404,300

2016 12 31
133,900 269,343 403,243
96,110 64,216 160,326
(21,941) (59,457) (81,398)
74,169 4,759 78,928
(73,949) (8,797) (82,746)
925 1,421 2,346
(1,730) (479) (2,209)
290 423 713
133,605 266,670 400,275

oOoOooodn
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2
3 2017 12 31
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12 31
2017 2016

510,794 464,613

312,321 383,861

398,098 353,335

177,671 188,869

1,398,884 1,390,678

3,715 7,015

7,523 5,370

@ 16,298 5,818

1,426,420 1,408,881

85,012 68,431

0) 1,282,278 1,260,325

31,593 61,922

114 2,354

8,211 9,169

®) 19,212 6,680

1,426,420 1,408,881

297
2016 12 31 321

201/436

oOoOooodn
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12 31
2017 2016
1,774,655 1,320,638
1,269,267 1,129,986

302,240 263,950

149,146 171,604

3,495,308 2,886,178

(6,173) (4,026)

3,489,135 2,882,152

6,835 3,518

[6)) 3,456,090 2,868,782
26,210 9,852

3,489,135 2,882,152

oOoOooodn
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MOF

1 MoF

2028

15

1998
2008 12 1

MoF

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
12 31
2017 2016
@ 271,678 272,023
©) 93,300 93,300
169,336 120,618
- 29,997
81,075 64,130
15,887 20,983
3,612 2,990
®) 28,688 25,160
663,576 629,201
(3.068) (3,516)
(1,285) (1,138)
(4.353) (4,654)
659,223 624,547
1 -
304,192 260,266
355,030 364,281
659,223 624,547
[2008] 138 MOF 2008 1 1
3.3%
93,300

2.25%
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¢!
2017 12 31
/ (€)) )
1988 11 1 588,790,000 100.00 100.00
ABC 2009 11 11 4,113,392,449 100.00 100.00
2010 9 29 3,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
(UK) 2011 11 29 100,000,000 100.00 100.00
2008 3 18 200,000,001 51.67 51.67
2008 8 12 19,600,000 51.02 51.02
(i) 2008 8 12 31,000,000 50.00 66.67
2010 5 25 29,400,000 51.02 51.02
2010 3 30 20,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 4 20 210,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 5 24 100,000,000 51.00 51.00
( ) 2005 12 19 2,949,916,475 51.00 51.00
( ) 2014 11 26 20,000,000 100.00 100.00
( ) 2014 12 23 1,400,000, 000 100.00 100.00
(iii)2017 8 1 10,000,000,000 100.00 100.00 /
2017 12 31
( 3 2
( 2012 12 31 51%
2012 12 31 1,381
2016 12 31 3,761 917
2,844 51%
1,843
2017 12 31
(iii) 2017
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24

25

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017

2017
2017

12 31

12 31
11

EDINETOOOO
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46
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
227 213
CFA ( XAF )

( BSCA ) 2015 5 28

BSCA 50 BSCA
162,858 64,203 8,309 22,031 257,401
1,986 4,176 2,868 4,285 13,315

9,794 351 1 (10,146)

(836) (3.884) (1,169) (5.889)
173,802 64,846 10,009 16,170 264,827
(54,032)  (41,258) (3.128) (98,418)

(7.516) (7.483) (454) (15,453)
313 3,841 560 4,714
(61,235)  (44,900) (3,022) (109,157)
(296) ® @ ® 19
(101) (101)

2 1 3

(294) ®) ) (109) 412)
112,273 19,938 6,986 16,061 155,258
108,530 22,937 5,179 22,023 158,669
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2016

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016
2016

26

12 31

12 31
11

2017 12 31

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

155,284 62,547 4,586 20,833 243,250
1,691 6,973 3,843 8,310 20,817
6,824 286 1 (7,111)

(941) (5,603) (121) @ (6,666)
162,858 64,203 8,309 22,031 257,401
(46,618)  (37,278) (2,858) (86,754)

(7,934) (7,953) @377) (16,264)
520 3,973 107 4,600

(54,032)  (41,258) (3,128) (98,418)

(299) ® @ ® (318)

(€Y) (€Y)
4 1 5

(296) ® @ ® (314)
108,530 22,937 5,179 22,023 158,669
108,367 25,260 1,726 20,825 156,178

12 31
2017 2016
97,751 83,187
@n (58)
97,664 83,129
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1
( ) C )
2017 1 1 75,931 6,818 1,331 3,398 (4,413) 64 83,129
/C ) 2,725 558 (391)  (721) 4,588 188 6,947
7,588 7,588
2017 12 31 78,656 7,376 940 2,677 7,763 252 97,664
2016 1 1 77,185 6,441 1,931 4,421  (8,607) 66 81,437
« )/ (1,254) 377 (600) (1,023) (2,190) @ (4,692)
6,384 6,384
2016 12 31 75,931 6,818 1,331 3,398  (4,413) 64 83,129
2 /(
( )
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
/ / / /
C ) C ) C ) C )
314,625 78,656 303,723 75,931
63,486 15,872 24,340 6,085
29,505 7,376 27,270 6,818
10,709 2,677 13,590 3,398
3,762 940 5,325 1,331
1,095 274 359 88
423,182 105,795 374,607 93,651
(32,437) (8.,109) (41,992) (10,498)
(89) (22) (98) (24)
(32,526) (8.131) (42,090) (10,522)
390,656 97,664 332,517 83,129
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27
( ) 12 31
2017 2016
118,693 110,370
() 35,169 78,998
) 21,798 22,418
2,903 16,670
2,755 3,213
2,737 2,848
2,672 3,103
2,666 1,945
1,581 1,430
5,926 3,834
196,900 244,829
1
2 2017 12 31
28
2017 12 31 PBOC 464,500
2016 12 31 289,000
29
( ) 12 31
2017 2016
117,401 178,354
815,908 947,210
9,262 5,220
32,159 25,260
974,730 1,156,044
30
( ) 12 31
2017 2016
92,665 123,108
187,396 178,913
280,061 302,021
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31

32

33

34

OoOoOoOoOodno
) 12 31
2017 2016
364,151 283,666
6,503 -
370,654 283,666
2017 12 31
2016 12 31
) 12 31
2017 2016
319,608 205,022
181 810
319,789 205,832
47
12 3
) 2017 2016
4,554,308 3,902,828
4,896,269 4,536,249
1,889,604 1,778,060
4,356,685 4,286,428
() 305,276 338,065
192,137 196,371
16,194,279 15,038,001
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1
12 31
( ) 2017 2016
92,174 100,896
80,551 75,375
62,906 86,167
24,856 30,118
44,789 45,509
305,276 338,065
35
12 31
( ) 2017 2016
@ 246,833 202,107
) 196,412 147,245
®) 22,915 28,711
0 8,857 10,152
475,017 388,215
2017 2016 12 31
1
( ) 12 31
2017 2016
2017 10 4.15% (i) - 600
2018 10 2.125% (i) 2,614 2,775
2020 10 2.75% Gii) 3,267 3,468
) 45,951 40,383
2024 5 4.0% ) 25,000 25,000
2026 6 5.3% (vi) 50,000 50,000
2027 12 4.99% (vii) 50,000 50,000
2024 8 5.8% Tier2 (viii) 30,000 30,000
2027 8 4.45% Tier2 (ix) 40,000 -
246,832 202,226
1 (119)
246,833 202,107
2015 10 4.15% 2 2
2015 10 2.125% 2 3
2015 10 2.75% 2 5

210/436



2009 5

2011 6

2012 12

4.99%
2014 8

2017 10

2017 12

2017 12

2.36%

2017 12

2016

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

ooooOood
) 2017 12 31
)
2018 5 2021 6 1.875-3.60 27,175
2018 12 2019 12 2.375-3.80 2,761
2018 5 2019 9 3 LIBOR 0.75 -0.98 13,068
2018 8 2020 8 1.43-2.18 2,613
2020 9 3 HIBOR 0.70 334
45,951
) 2016 12 31
)
2017 10 2021 6 1.875-2.875 26,769
2017 5 2019 8 3.35-3.80 3,350
2017 3 2019 9 3 LIBOR 0.75 -1.33 9,781
2017 3 0.48 365
2017 2 - 118
40,383
4.0% 1 15 2019 5 20
2019 5 20 7.0%
5. 3% 1 15 2021 6 7
2021 6 7 5. 3%
4.99% 1 15 2022 12 20
2022 12 20
Tier2 5.8% 1 10
2019 8 17
2019 8 18 5. 8% Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 CBRC Tier2
Tier2 4.45% 1 10
2022 9 16
2022 9 17 4.45% Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 CBRC Tier2
31
1 7 0% 5.06% 2016 12 31
1 7 0% 5.8%
31
2 1 0.01%
2016 12 31 1 2 0.03% 6.4%
31
1 6 4.30% 4.60%
12 31 1 2 2.68% 4.39%

211/436



36

MOF

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
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12 31
2017 2016
228,805 229,115
73,869 75,728
47,126 87,993
@ 40,222 39,902
32,842 16,356
10,709 13,590
7,322 5,222
0 3,154 26,293
2,469 1,782
44,913 49,338
491,431 545,319
12 31
2017 2016
() 35,894 33,956
() 566 621
() 3,762 5,325
40,222 39,902
2017
12 31
@) 25,524 73,140 (71,835) 26,829
@) 155 8,212 (8,210) 157
@) 176 5,109 (5,114) 171
156 4,611 (4,608) 159
16 330 (339) 7
4 168 (167) 5
4,418 3,269 (2.343) 5,344
3,683 8,799 (9,089) 3,393
33,956 98,529 (96,591) 35,894
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2016
11 12 31
@) 23,773 70,770 (69,019) 25,524
@) 178 8,638 (8,661) 155
@) 124 5,016 (4,964) 176
107 4,524 (4,475) 156
9 312 (305) 16
8 180 (184) 4
3,981 2,625 (2,188) 4,418
3,665 9,424 (9,406) 3,683
31,721 96,473 (94,238) 33,956
2017
11 12 31
456 11,413 (11,342) 527
35 351 (354) 32
130 3,469 (3.592) 7
621 15,233 (15,288) 566
2016
11 12 31
396 11,332 (11,272) 456
44 545 (554) 35
5 3,427 (3.302) 130
445 15,304 (15,128) 621
2017
11 12 31
5,325 77 (1,640) 3,762
2016
11 12 31
7,724 (241) (2,158) 5,325
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12 31
2017 2016
3.80% 3.05%
8.00% 8.00%
8.00% 8.00%
60 60
55 55
2010 2013
2 MOF
MOF [2008] 138
MOF MOF MOF
37
2017
( ) 2016 12 31
( )
294,055 294,055
H 1 1 30,739 30,739
324,794 324,794
A H

2017 12 31 2016 12 31 A H
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( ) ( ) ( )
5
6%
100 400 40,000
5
5
0
5-5% 100 400 40,000
5
800 1 100
2014 11 400 2017 12 31 (
) 39,944 5 6%
1 5 5
2.29%
2015 3 400 2017 12 31 (
) 39,955 5 5.5%
1 5 5 2.24%
Tier2
( [2012]56 2(3))
1 2.43
A )
CBRC

Tierl
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39
2010
40
( ) 2017
2017 1 1 4,775 (1,197) 3,578
(31,348) 7,752 (23,596)
438 (110) 328
2017 12 31 (26,135) 6,445 (19,690)
( ) 2016
2016 1 1 29,907 (7,478) 22,429
(24,570) 6,140 (18,430)
(562) 141 (421)
2016 12 31 4,775 (1,197) 3,578
41
GAAP 10%
50%
2018 3 26 GAAP

10% 19,171 2016 18,294

25%

216/436



42
MOF
1.5%

2017 12 31

2016 22,699
31,957 2016 22,464
2018 3 26
43
( )
44

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

[2012] 20 2012 7 1
32,445
2016 12 31
2017 6 28
8,380
3
12 31
2017 2016

108,497 111,607
45,847 114,830
98,590 168,369
252,570 172,012
495,742 260,880
1,001,246 827,698
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ooooood
(
)
2017 12 31
268,082 100,934 66,983 68,460 64,374 103,393 17,701 23,772 - 713,699
(37,623)  (55,790)  (30,608)  (43.439)  (36,783)  (41,631) (12,717) (13.178) - (21,769)
(
) (220,318) 48,063 26,492 47,025 43,279 42,558 13,844 (943) - -
10,141 93,207 62,867 72,046 70,870 104,320 18,828 9,651 - 441,930
19,984 15,987 11,780 10,092 9,716 13,984 2,775 939 - 85,257
.373) @.222) (1,803) (1,603) (1,596) (2,204) (486) ) - (12,354)
17,611 13,765 9,977 8,489 8,120 11,780 2,289 872 - 72,903
'Y (5,969) G2) 5 53 @n 52 45 (2,956) - (8,829)
C )
(.237) 1 18 980 @ 8 - 987 - (3.244)
(959) - - 68 - 18 - 1,009 - 136
6,386 1,085 677 536 541 4,3% 83 26,368 - 40,002
21,973 108,026 73,544 82,172 79,503 120,504 21,245 35,931 - 542,898
(.775)  (31,317)  (22,776)  (28,579)  (31,033)  (43,548) (13,553) (28,687) - (205,268)
192 (21,022) (13,083)  (25,927)  (10,955)  (21,480)  (4,030)  (1.861) - (98,166)
16,390 55,687 37,685 27,666 37,515 55,476 3,662 5,383 - 239,464
14 - - - - - - - - 14
16,404 55,687 37,685 27,666 37,515 55,476 3,662 5,383 - 239,478
(46,345)
193,133
1,601 2,79 2,087 2,931 3,155 4,148 1,231 330 - 18,279
789 1,085 1,579 2,193 2,263 3,301 897 3,508 - 15,615
2017 12 31
5,245,493 4,685,961 2,721,293 3,673,909 3,087,743 4,353,179 946,065 926,250 (4,684,262) 20,955,631
227 - - - - - - - - 227
97,751
21,053,382
@ 11,782 31,931 17,599 29,337 28,021 41,821 11,843 12,875 - 185,209

(3,874,946) (4,691,262) (2,720,278) (3,690,361) (3,084,338) (4,362,114) (950,890) (901,129) 4,684,262 (19,501,056)
(32,929)
(19,623,985)

39,053 488,442 241,298 334,741 201,770 287,590 66,396 89,588 - 1,748,878
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(
)
2016 12 31
249,147 94,849 60,600 65,338 56,112 95,937 16,965 18,242 - 657,190
(21,227)  (57,135)  (31,466)  (46,229)  (37,594)  (42,768) (12,996)  (9,671) - (259,086)
(
) (205,448) 42,389 25,520 45,441 41,005 37,475 14,020 (402) - -
22,472 80,103 54,654 64,550 59,523 90,644 17,989 8,169 - 398,104
23,010 17,811 14,224 12,427 11,071 17,287 3,949 1,040 - 100,819
(1,340) (1,934) (1,660) 1,227) (1,315) (1,898) (425) (85) - (9,884)
21,670 15,877 12,564 11,200 9,756 15,389 3,524 955 - 90,935
/C ) 6,144 11 (26) (55) 79) 13 - (529) - 5,457
«C )
(1,645) 59 (32) @ - ) - 330 - (1,291)
112 - 1 - - 4 - 803 - 920
(
)/ (1,880) 1,178 783 371 379 3,452 180 11,540 - 16,003
46,873 97,206 67,944 76,065 69,579 109,500 21,693 21,268 - 510,128
(7.642)  (32,125)  (23,561)  (28,029)  (32,176)  (42,143) (14,128) (17,245) - (197,049)
(7,746)  (13,975) (8,226) (9,471)  (10,244)  (31,276)  (3.698)  (1,810) - (86,446)
31,485 51,106 36,157 38,565 27,159 36,081 3,867 2,213 - 226,633
© - - - - - - - - ©
31,476 51,106 36,157 38,565 27,159 36,081 3,867 2,213 - 226,624
(42,564)
184,060
1,662 3,026 2,209 2,963 3,329 4,345 1,317 186 - 19,037
2,348 3,387 1,585 2,931 2,727 4,144 1,069 4,730 - 22,921
2016 12 31
4,565,308 4,149,290 2,532,893 3,378,776 2,833,496 3,922,132 913,274 807,402 (3,615,697) 19,486,874
213 - - - - - - - - 213
83,187
19,570,061
Q@ 12,806 33,865 17,993 30,287 28,931 42,839 12,191 11,261 - 190,173
(3,291,426) (4,162,053) (2,528,928) (3,386,705) (2,833,390) (3,943,549) (915,912) (785,790) 3,615,697 (18,232,056)
(16,414)
(18,248,470)
42,861 464,193 208,914 317,307 187,281 222,055 66,799 124,924 — 1,634,334
@)

220/436
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( )

2017 12 31
288,486 158,017 260,417 6,779 713,699
(84,260) (143,031) (42,375) (2.103) (271,769)

/
( ) 4,603 159,790 (164,393)
208,829 174,776 53,649 4,676 441,930
42,349 41,572 1,336 85,257
(4,891) (7.422) @ (39) (12,354)
37,458 34,150 D) 1,297 72,903
(8,766) (63) (8,829)
/C ) 338 (5.630) 1,086 962 (3.244)
« )

(847) 983 136
2,708 2,634 11,470 23,190 40,002
249,333 205,930 56,590 31,045 542,898
(68,169) (88,182) (22,326) (26,591) (205,268)
(92,610) (3.610) (391) (1,555) (98,166)
88,554 114,138 33,873 2,899 239,464
14 14
88,554 114,138 33,873 2,913 239,478
(46,345)
193,133
3,590 10,683 3,744 262 18,279
2,526 7,518 2,635 2,936 15,615

2017 12 31
6,584,507 4,468,376 9,635,618 267,040 20,955,631
227 227
97,751
21,053,382
(7,306,002) (10,302,042)  (1,826,344) (156,668)  (19,591,056)
(32,929)
(19,623,985)
1,234,005 514,873 1,748,878

222/436
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( )
2016 12 31
281,890 135,229 235,294 4,777 657,190
(89,004) (148,393) (20,464) (1,225) (259,086)
( )/
(3,993) 167,567 (163,574)
188,893 154,403 51,256 3,552 398,104
53,339 46,209 1,271 100,819
(3,193) (6,642) @ 7 (9,884)
50,146 39,567 D) 1,224 90,935
284 5,116 57 5,457
/C ) 288 (1,639) (296) 356 (1,291)
289 631 920
/¢ ) 2,153 1,884 (46) 12,012 16,003
241,764 194,215 56,317 17,832 510,128
(70,025) (89,683) (20,952) (16,389) (197,049)
(55,612) (24,051) (6,187) (596) (86,446)
116,127 80,481 29,178 847 226,633
® ®
116,127 80,481 29,178 838 226,624
(42,564)
184,060
3,822 11,298 3,797 120 19,037
3,740 11,054 3,715 4,412 22,921
2016 12 31
6,332,417 3,730,943 9,223,479 200,035 19,486,874
213 213
83,187
19,570,061
(6,778,331)  (9,760,885)  (1,542,284) (150,556)  (18,232,056)
(16,414)
(18,248,470)
1,234,807 399,527 1,634,334

223/436
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(
2017 12 31
157,305 556,394 713,699
(86,537)  (185,232) (271,769)
/( 106,176 (106,176)
176,944 264,986 441,930
34,442 50,815 85,257
(4,423) (7,931) (12,354)
30,019 42,884 72,903
/( 88 (8,917) (8,829)
(1,407) (1,837) (3,244)
136 136
5,956 34,046 40,002
211,600 331,298 542,808
(83,915)  (121,353) (205,268)
(44,474) (53,692) (98,166)
83,211 156,253 239,464
14 14
83,211 156,267 239,478
(46,345)
193,133
8,395 9,884 18,279
4,440 11,175 15,615
2017 12 31
7,585,643 13,400,362 (30,374) 20,955,631
227 227
97,751
21,053,382
(7.097,974) (12,523,456) 30,374  (19,591,056)
(32,929)
(19,623,985)
449,431 1,299,447 1,748,878

225/436
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(
2016 12 31
143,479 513,711 657,190
(88,268) (170,818) (259,086)
/( 102,598 (102,598)
157,809 240,295 398,104
35,605 65,214 100,819
(3,718) (6,166) (9,884)
31,887 59,048 90,935
17 5,440 5,457
/( 19 (1,310) (1,291)
920 920
4,579 11,424 16,003
194,311 315,817 510,128
(84,205) (112,844) (197,049)
(44,186) (42,260) (86,446)
65,920 160,713 226,633
® ®
65,920 160,704 226,624
(42,564)
184,060
8,855 10,182 19,037
5,494 17,427 22,921
2016 12 31
7,040,416 12,554,090 (107,632) 19,486,874
213 213
83,187
19,570,061
(6,598,859) (11,740,829) 107,632  (18,232,056)
(16,414)
(18,248,470)
380,806 1,253,528 1,634,334

226/436
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1 MOF

2017 12 31 MOF

MOF
( )
MOF ( 22)

MOF
MOF ( 36)
(MOF

( )

MOF

MOF

39.21%

227/436

2016 12 31
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39.21%
12 31
2017 2016
604,345 640,131
271,678 272,023
6,132 7,648
125 3,802
10,147 13,147
3,154 26,293
8,127 10,265
44 23
87 102
12 31
2017 2016
28,778 29,607
(213) (189)
1,009 15,072
12 31
2017 2016
% %

2.25-9.00 1.94 —9.00
0.05-2.12 0.05 - 1.76
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2017 12 31 40.03% 2016 12 31 40.03%

) 12 31
2017 2016
28,000 -
13,839 12,103
771 145
15,000 7,000
5,301 27
122 49
) 12 31
2017 2016
1,029 463
(903) (518)
12 31
2017 2016
% %
3.92-4.35 -

3.32-4.98 3.16 - 4.20
2.95-4.41 2.90 - 5.00
1.26-1.76 1.38 - 2.80

228/436
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12 31
2017 2016
28,959 120,985
2,061 930
42,563 56,783
4,642 2,671
30,335 74,740
17,548 12,876
742,623 817,129
39,220 63,007
44,498 85,744
1,929 2,238
16,405 12,438
2,000 2,000

2,943 22,642

229/436
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12 31
2017 2016

3

11,067 11,411

3,649 4,398

68 68

7 6

4,711 5,887

160 1,041

2,117 1,758

42 44

10,357 11,388

12 31

2017 2016

312 144

925 810

20 16

(141) (29)

(29) (28)

12 31

2017 2016
% %

0.01-5.15 0.01-3.29
1.73-4.79 1.73-4.13
0.01-5.20 0.00-4.90
0.10-2.30 1.15-1.25
0.30-2.94 0.30-2.94

230/436
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Ogoooood
5
) 12 31
2017 2016
133 183
12 31
2017 2016
% %
0.10  0.02-0.30
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
6
2017 12 31
3.06 2016 12 31 :4.91
) 12 31
2017 2016
8.52 10.67
2017 12 31
2016 12 31 2016
2016 8.43
2017 8 30 10.67

2016

231/436
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(€)

2017 12 31
306,177

232/436
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12 31
2017 2016
135 16,367
- 619
12 31
2017 2016
(225) (394)
12 31
2017 2016
% %

0.72-6.20 0.72 - 6.20

2016 12 31
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@)
WMPs
WMPs
WMPs WMPs WMPs
2017 12 31 WMPs 1,580,527 2016 12 31 1,379,009
WMPs 1,368,878 2016
1,299,375 2017 12 31 WMPs
7,645 2016 8,313 803 2016 261
WMPs
WMPs 2017
2017 12 31 23,186 5.31 2016
1 8,776 3.06 84,862 2016 12 31 : 125,627
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
WMPs
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
WMPs
WMPs 2017 12 31 2016
WMPs WMPs
2017 12 31
45,230

2016 12 31 34,463

233/436



2017

47.
2016 9 28
2016 12 31
(
(
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2017 12 31
6,240 2016 12 31 : 6,030
36
2016 11 4
2
2016 12 31
2
2017 12 31
12 31
2017 2016
5,062 4,951
12 31 2016 12 31
12 31
2017 2016

58,038 38,433
669,524 549,968
727,562 588,401
233,788 312,255
426,668 323,217
220,826 229,177
140,034 181,284
1,748,878 1,634,334

234/436



a W N P

CBRC
)
)
2
3
5
2017
: 5,190
2017 12 31
: 338 )
2017 12 31
(2016 12 31
)
5

1 38,245

235/436
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
(013 1 1 )
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
12 31
2017 2016
866,063 831,636
12 31
2017 2016
3,892 3,948
2,950 3,051
2,023 2,262
2,069 2,451
1,005 1,255
11,939 12,967
4,990 (2016
(2016 12 31
36,500
12 31
2017 2016
3,317 4,256
6,235 7,643
17,245 17,748
9,703 8,598

36,500

38,245




33

205,832 )

31 365,153

18
2016 12 31

MOF

2017 12 31

2016 12 31 56,555

MOF

2017 12 31 2016 12 31

236/436
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12 31
2017 2016
328,469 208,529
183 814
328,652 209,343
2017 12 31
319,789 (2016 12 31
12
48
2017 12 31 703,492 2016 12
2017 12 31
65,419
3 5
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8.6 7
2017 12 31
(2016 12 31 18,364 )
10,154
12,808 2016 12 31 : 8,210
2017 12 31
2,941 (2016 12 31 712
2017 12 31
54,331 2016 : 72,969
1,569 2016 : 10,154
7
31 47
(2016 12 31 14,087 )
2017 12 31

67,373 2016 12 31 : 15,415

237/436
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24,531
11,723 2016 12 31
)
8.6
2017 12
40,647
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49.1

2017

238/436
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CBRC
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12 31

2017 2016

2,788,122 2,700,046
130,245 622,665
505,269 580,949
193,551 123,282
368,051 286,564
28,284 31,460
540, 386 323,051

10,316,311 9,319,364
1,398,884 1,390,678
3,480,135 2,882,152

659,223 624,547
155,111 205,718

20,572,572 19,090,476
1,748,878 1,634,334

22,321,450 20,724,810

240/436
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12 31
2017 2016
() (D)

246,123 3.7 279,658 4.4
1,420,351 21.2 1,310,376 20.6
762,152 11.3 752,897 11.8
1,061,001 15.8 1,001,682 15.7
929,075 13.8 857,319 13.5
1,629,197 24.3 1,463,806 22.9
287,187 4.3 272,460 4.3
379,633 5.6 435,027 6.8
6,714,719 100.0 6,373,225 100.0

74 - 104
994,938 25.0 860,092 25.6
873,154 21.8 713,500 21.3
621,563 15.5 498,332 14.9
590,247 14.7 451,954 13.5
778,946 19.4 694,461 20.8
141,351 3.5 122,436 3.7
5,619 0.1 5,535 0.2
4,005,892 100.0 3,346,414 100.0

10,720,611 9,719,639

241/436
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12 31
2017 2016
Q) D)
1,286,480 19.2 1,325,386 20.9
1,268,677 18.9 1,052,336 16.5
405,678 6.0 497,976 7.8
812,850 12.1 673,621 10.6
573,248 8.5 510,470 8.0
803,575 12.0 560,270 8.8
373,461 5.6 735,915 11.5
232,699 3.5 243,396 3.8
227,238 3.4 187,931 2.9
372,581 5.5 241,365 3.8
358,232 5.3 344,559 5.4
6,714,719 100.0 6,373,225 100.0
3,133,503 78.3 2,558,149 76.4
205,549 5.1 232,728 7.0
142,184 3.5 119,781 3.6
317,547 7.9 242,451 7.2
207,109 5.2 193,305 5.8
4,005,892 100.0 3,346,414 100.0
10,720,611 9,719,639
2017 12 31
1
1 5 5
1,266,909 620,786 1,028,232 2,915,927
606,458 327,650 425,404 1,359,512
817,342 409,405 3,718,936 4,945,683
438,651 79,322 981,516 1,499,489

3,129,360 1,437,163 6,154,088 10,720,611

2016 12 31
1
1 5 5
992,899 466,138 886,821 2,345,858
618,532 330,718 344,430 1,293,680
947,139 519,723 3,127,606 4,594,468
786,985 69,113 629,535 1,485,633

3,345,555 1,385,692 4,988,392 9,719,639

242/436
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2017 12 31
91 361

90 360 3 3
6,489 6,984 2,015 1,249 16,737
22,362 12,158 17,004 5,864 57,388
51,287 29,410 43,171 8,885 132,753
10,962 968 3,135 2,123 17,188
91,100 49,520 65,325 18,121 224,066

2016 12 31
o1 361

90 360 3 3
4,411 8,619 4,460 406 17,896
19,386 23,586 26,612 2,937 72,521
53,772 52,054 60,454 6,405 172,685
1,976 2,209 6,901 447 11,533
79,545 86,468 98,427 10,195 274,635

1
12 31
2017 2016
( ) 10,471,150 9,433,058
() 55,429 55,747
() 194,032 230,834
10,720,611 9,719,639
(404,300)  (400,275)
10,316,311 9,319,364
2017 12 31
6,234,570 298,077 6,532,647
3,934,840 3,663 3,938,503
10,169,410 301,740 10,471,150
2016 12 31

5,832,088 321,400 6,153,488
3,276,326 3,244 3,279,570
9,108,414 324,644 9,433,058

243/436
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2017 12 31
31 61
30 60 90
24,500 460 8 24,968 20,477
19,365 6,514 4,582 30,461 22,174
43,865 6,974 4,590 55,429 42,651
2016 12 31
31 61
30 60 90
21,940 4,902 18 26,860 23,588
17,124 6,590 5,173 28,887 20,430
39,064 11,492 5,191 55,747 44,018
2017 12 31
159,805 (122,311) 37,494
34,227 (26,723) 7,504
194,032 (149,034) 44,998
2016 12 31
192,848 (133,605) 59,243
37,986 (28,999) 8,987

230,834 (162,604) 68,230

244/436



2016 12 31

2017

2017 12 31
52,491

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

12 31
2017 2016
159,805 192,848
1.49% 1.98%
24,802 39,021
12 31
2017 2016
® (D)
7 - 7
29,460 15.2 35,471 15.4
26,957 13.9 30,530 13.2
39,031 20.1 45,728 19.8
27,377 14.1 30,194 13.1
59,314 30.6 76,046 32.9
8,438 4.3 8,772 3.8
3,448 1.8 4,086 1.8
194,032 100.0 230,834 100.0
55,120

245/436

1,873
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12 31

2017 201
@ 4,152,386 3,509,837
) 6,498 5,542
4,158,884 3,515,379
(3.068) (3,516)
(7.458) (5,164)
(10,526) (8,680)
4,148,358 3,506,699

2017 12 31

31,464 510,794 1,774,655 160,336 2,486,249
140,712 312,292 1,269,267 1,722,271
103,650 398,098 302,240 81,075 885,063
60,762 177,655 149,146 13,273 400,836
93,300 93,300
271,678 271,678
3,612 3,612
12,835 24,804 37,639
349,423 1,398,839 3,495,308 657,078 5,900,648

246/436
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Ogoooood
( ) 2016 12 31
20,900 464,613 1,320,638 120,618 1,926,769
99,784 383,824 1,129,986 29,997 1,643,591
109,989 353,335 263,950 64,130 791,404
48,665 188,869 171,604 20,436 429,574
93,300 93,300
MOF 272,023 272,023
2,990 2,990
15,883 20,165 36,048
295,221 1,390,641 2,886,178 623,659 5,195,699
2

( ) 2017 12 31
2,614 2,614
3,884 3,884
6,498 6,498
(3,068) (3,068)
3,430 3,430

( ) 2016 12 31
547 547
4,995 4,995
5,542 5,542
(3,516) (3,516)
2,026 2,026

2017 12 31
45 2016 12 31 37
2017 12 31
312 2016 12 31 331

247/436
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3
( ) 2017 12 31
) AAA AA A A
1,607,333 867,410 5,072 1,731 56 2,481,602
1,483,157 176,302 2,391 60,193 1,722,043
551,733 194,393 27,860 78,676 30,349 883,011
() 50,568 305,743 3,224 24,994 18,341 402,870
93,300 93,300
MOF 271,678 271,678
3,612 3,612
54,846 54,846
4,116,227 1,543,848 38,547 165,594 48,746 5,912,962
( ) 2016 12 31
() AAA AA A A
1,322,981 594,641 5,249 1,033 705 1,924,609
1,469,672 162,840 10,692 209 1,643,413
526,761 144,056 36,508 51,620 30,377 789,322
() 47,367 337,875 4,262 23,743 16,116 429,363
93,300 93,300
MOF 272,023 272,023
2,990 2,990
37,578 37,578
3,772,672 1,239,412 56,711 76,605 47,198 5,192,598
MOF
17,110 2016 12 31 23,420

248/436
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2017 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5

151,906 3,740 2,403 5,952 2,732,618 2,896,619
48,237 58,819 9,001 13,807 381 130,245
- 226,817 80,021 153,026 41,519 3,886 505,269
1,089 12,546 33,069 68,200 75,772 3,964 194,640
37,565 107,387 51,978 125,641 47,457 13,297 383,325
4,497 4,850 17,604 1,029 304 28,284
3,872 499,251 17,869 19,394 540,386
23,581 499,209 646,162 2,345,151 2,115,708 4,686,505 10,316,311
133,444 102,788 139,887 753,385 285,678 11,238 1,426,420
54,929 128,831 269,426 1,791,968 1,243,981 3,489,135
143 2,842 22,286 46,800 127,620 459,523 659,223
2,321 28,530 38,751 33,884 50,971 544 110 155,111
29,774 229,905 1,572,410 1,188,551 3,182,196 5,033,571 6,731,408 2,757,158 20,724,968
(30) (40,000) (70.540) (354,923) (54) (465,947)
(495,065) (220,930) (126,369) (73.107) (59.259) (974,730)
(96.494) (115,380) (57.125) (6.330) ©.732) (280,061)
(21,118) (21,118)
(163,471) (110,444) (91,841) (4,860) (38) (370,654)
(2,230) (3,990) (23,957) 97) (198) (30,872)
(217,813) (28.113) (13,535) (328) - (319,789)
(10,030,752) (535.504)  (1.249,943)  (2.551,584)  (1.826,342) (154) (16,194, 279)
(44,803) (94,537) (97.102) (43,679)  (194,896) (475,017)
(100,567) (21.696) (78.555) (74.326) (82.131)  (36,791) (394,066)
(10,647,582)  (1,402,941)  (1,877,871)  (3,337,500)  (2,023,880)  (236,809) (19,526,533)
29,774 (10,417,627) 169,469 (689,320) (155,304) 3,000,691 6,494,599 2,757,153 1,198,435

249/436

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

2016 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5
223,360 5,110 4,836 16,262 2,562,085 2,811,653
63,917 127,622 168,455 261,620 1,051 622,665
159,166 86,942 293,126 41,715 580,949
336 9,115 18,899 57,602 35,087 2,579 123,618
13,386 47,815 88,784 99,849 36,730 7,773 294,337
2,121 2,485 25,284 1,165 405 31,460
3,872 274,766 26,276 18,137 323,051
46,908 496,239 630,872 2,541,515 1,895,689 3,708,141 9,319,364
34,068 54,098 235,151 719,158 348,203 18,203 1,408,881
51,331 90,654 315,762 1,362,537 1,061,868 2,882,152
103 2,205 12,876 52,418 109,354 447,591 624,547
1,607 73,522 32,579 50,698 46,485 776 51 205,718
52,387 361,238 1,207,708 1,194,906 3,952,146 4,266,381 5,605,568 2,588,061 19,228,395
(30) (16,342) (69,000) (205,059) (621) (291,052)
(523,652) (296,656) (146,008) (94,165) (95,563) (1,156,044)
(132,600) (94,050) (68,138) (4,820) (2,413) (302,021)
(16,587) (393) (524) (17,504)
(77,589) (63,996) (125,422) (16,621) 38) (283,666)
(2,576) (3,582) (13,143) @1,111) (346) (20,758)
(193,068) (12,004) (760) (205,832)
(9,007,828) (499,909)  (1,185,880)  (2,637,833)  (1,705,965) (586) (15,038,001)
(34,405) (56,128) (89,372) (52,699)  (155,611) (388,215)
(168,287) (16,390) (73,738) (74,678) (93,281)  (36,768) (463,142)
9,716,384)  (1,269,928)  (1,704,910)  (3,308,570)  (1,970,681)  (195,762) (18,166,235)
52,387 (9,355,146) (62,220) (510,004) 643,576 2,295,700 5,409,806 2,588,061 1,062,160
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2017 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5

151,906 3,741 3,688 5,952 2,732,618 2,897,905
48,237 59,316 9,121 14,059 433 131,166
- 227,887 81,885 157,594 44,296 5,499 517,161
1,089 12,581 33,427 69,312 76,739 4,311 197,459
38,335 109,821 57,576 144,268 54,383 13,297 417,680
3.872 500,347 18,110 19,967 542,296
128,314 558,620 755,681 2,733,620 3,282,327 6,800,862 14,259,424
134,272 104,752 146,132 793,772 326,900 11,238 1,517,066
56,957 134,287 286,304 1,881,236 1,396,308 3,755,002
143 2,986 22,954 49,168 138,050 471,212 684,513
28,448 795 5,258 1,898 12 7 36,418
132,186 229,823 1,595,837 1,278,984 3,541,582 6,361,133 9,059,482 2,757,153 24,956,180
(30) (41,220) (72,789) (366,463) @a7) (480,949)
(495,066) (223,308) (131,541) (79,749) (66,309) (995,973)
(96,846) (116,595) (58,214) (7.,649) (5,445) (284,749)
(21.118) (21.118)
(164,332) (111,693) (94,451) (4,876) 39) (375,350)
(278,384) (28,329) @3,757) (356) - (320,826)
(10,037,044) (573,267)  (1.304,326)  (2.654,872)  (2,033,087) (154) (16,602,750)
(44,924) (94,770) (97,647) (44,666)  (195,000) (477,007)
(94,303) (762) (31.827) (1,389) (195)  (36,785) (165,261)
(10,647,561)  (1,423,043)  (1,891,870)  (3.366,542)  (2.157,585) (237,422) (19,724,023)
132,186  (10,417,738) 172,794 (612,886) 175,040 4,203,548 8,822,060 2,757,153 5,232,157
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2016 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5
223,360 5,111 6,056 16,262 2,562,085 2,812,874
63,917 128,856 171,825 267,814 1,082 633,494
159,871 88,487 300,526 42,951 591,835
336 9,275 19,285 61,304 36,647 2,624 129,471
13,846 49,621 94,604 114,089 42,651 7,773 322,584
3,872 275,769 26,782 18,654 325,077
170,526 556,130 724,261 2,879,489 2,852,032 5,326,820 12,509,258
35,142 55,927 247,59 747,779 376,454 18,203 1,481,101
53,256 94,931 333,034 1,430,249 1,198,113 3,109,583
103 2,283 13,552 54,372 114,864 456,142 641,316
73,449 1,333 18,492 1,922 145 7 95,348
174,398 361,165 1,240,872 1,269,219 4,275,577 5,339,838 7,402,811 2,588,061 22,651,941
(30) (16,839) (70,067) (209,950) (622) (297,508)
(523,653) (297,533) (153,366) (102,476) (111,199) (1,188,227)
(132,947) (94,693) (69,026) (5,491) (2,548) (304,705)
(16,587) (394) (525) (17,506)
(78,493) (65,059) (132,069) (18,375) (39) (294,035)
(193,213) (12,047) (791) (206,051)
(9,013,383) (513,834)  (1,224,360)  (2,737,611)  (1,925,423) (586) (15,415,197)
(34,492) (56,479) (90,211) (55,385)  (155,720) (392,287)
(162,912) (649) (31,945) (1,415) (338)  (36,768) (234,027)
(9,716,565)  (1,268,394)  (1,708,541)  (3,343,549)  (2,116,833)  (195,661) (18,349,543)
174,398 (9,355,400) (27,522) (439,322) 932,028 3,223,005 7,207,150 2,588,061 4,302,398
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2017 12 31
3
1 12 1
3 5 5
- 12 43 637 125 817
2016 12 31
3
1 12 1
3 5 5
4 29 11 400 34 478
2017 12 31
3
1 12 1
3 5 5
343,773 300,972 1,505,759 26,930 477 2,177,911
(341,540) (300,112)  (1,511,810) (26,987) (49%)  (2,180,945)
2,233 860 (6,051) G0 (19) (3,034)
2016 12 31
3
1 12 1
3 5 5
305,839 230,340 1,032,215 36,311 485 1,605,190
(306,299) (231,425)  (1,018,999) (36,568) (469)  (1,593,760)
(460) (1,085) 13,216 (257) 16 11,430
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( ) 2017 12 31
1
1 5 5
103,736 149,075 474,751 727,562
233,788 233,788
426,668 426,668
115,371 85,801 19,654 220,826
133,670 6,364 140,034
1,013,233 241,240 494,405 1,748,878
( ) 2016 12 31
1
1 5 5
84,529 142,003 361,869 588,401
312,255 312,255
323,217 323,217
107,922 94,520 26,735 229,177
161,127 20,157 181,284
989,050 256,680 388,604 1,634,334

49.3
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VaR
VaR VaR
99% 1 250
VaR
VaR
)
2017
32 49 72 32
(€)) 33 51 105 18
8 11 20 6
VaR 56 73 153 40
)
2016
53 63 71 39
) 20 86 213 14
9 13 28 3

VaR 44 96 213 44

255/436



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn
VaR
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2017 12 31
( ( (

) ) )
2,855,850 32,052 1,094 7,623 2,896,619
86,294 27,063 3,068 13,820 130,245
337,956 136,594 23,209 7,510 505,269
194,614 26 194,640
362,680 6,992 10,383 3,270 383,325
26,228 1,215 21 820 28,284
540,386 540,386
9,898,540 314,143 57,764 45,864 10,316,311
1,224,918 162,075 2,955 36,472 1,426,420
3,445,956 27,771 12,500 2,908 3,489,135
653,663 1,346 1,003 3,121 659,223
145,442 7,001 1,014 1,654 155,111
19,772,527 716,278 113,101 123,062 20,724,968
(464,830) (1,117)  (465,947)
(932,491) (28,566) (13,309) (364)  (974,730)
(41,217)  (164,459) (54,727) (19.658)  (280,061)
(21,118) (21,118)
(363,885) (6,769) (370,654)
(323) (29,929) (390) (230) (30,872)
(276,888) (37,034) (5.867)  (319,789)
(15,805,966)  (321,932) (29,750) (36.631) (16,194,279)
(220,357)  (204,948) (18,570) (31,142)  (475,017)
(378,204) (12,408) (1,651) (1,803)  (394,066)
(18,505,279)  (806,045)  (118,397) (96,812) (19,526,533)
1,267,248 (89,767) (5.296) 26,250 1,198,435
(46,787) 59,135 18,307 (14,681) 16,064

1,484,322 228,505 5,724 30,327 1,748,878
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2016 12 31
( ( (
) ) )

2,756,422 46,480 2,030 6,721 2,811,653
569,193 28,974 3,630 20,868 622,665
476,480 100,020 1 4,448 580,949
123,426 192 123,618
283,113 2,140 8,187 897 294,337

5,491 25,501 112 356 31,460
323,051 323,051

8,849,459 375,380 64,594 29,931 9,319,364

1,193,761 170,794 11,844 32,482 1,408,881

2,860,670 19,843 1,639 2,882,152
624,411 135 1 624,547
159,614 43,831 1,013 1,260 205,718

18,225,091 813,155 91,546 98,603 19,228,395
(289,089) (1,342) (621) (291,052)
(1,110, 244) (34,464) (10,976) (360)  (1,156,044)
(60,936) (194,150) (33,178) (13,757) (302,021)
(17,504) (17,504)
(282,781) (885) (283, 666)
(18,639) 172) (281) (1,666) (20,758)
(190,118) (12,647) (3.,067) (205,832)
(14,610,341) (361,250) (23,866) (42,544) (15,038,001)
(202,803) (156,819) (13,801) (14,792) (388,215)
(449,526) (10,316) (1,576) (1,724) (463,142)
(17,231,981) (770,703) (85,020) (78,531) (18,166,235)
993,110 42,452 6,526 20,072 1,062,160
1,442 614 10,566 (18,232) (5,610)
1,385,194 223,195 5,322 20,623 1,634,334
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5%
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
(1,094) 33 (1,892) ©))
1,004 33 1,892 9
PBOC
2015 10 24
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2017 12 31
1 3 1

1 3 12 5 5
2,612,008 2,403 5,952 276,256 2,896,619
105,307 9,801 14,506 381 250 130,245
228,642 85,460 151,545 35,736 3,886 505,269
12,546 33,328 67,991 75,722 3,964 1,089 194,640
38,297 108,121 50,598 125,556 47,456 13,2907 383,325
28,284 28,284
499,251 17,869 19,394 3,872 540,386
4,572,496 1,678,914 3,596,541 253,948 214,412 10,316,311
171,410 152,062 129,293 688,494 273,923 11,238 1,426,420
59,497 171,547 270,895 1,743,231 1,243,965 3,489,135
3,185 22,485 49,238 133,846 450,469 659,223
155,111 155,111
8,302,639 2,281,990 4,355,953 3,056,914 2,238,075 489,397 20,724,968
(40,000) (70,540) (354,923) (454) (30) (465,947)
(715,735) (126,369) (73,110) (59,259) @57) (974,730)
(96,495) (119,229) (57,017) (4,369) (2,951) (280,061)
(21,118) (21,118)
(134,625) (139,290) (01,841) (4,860) (38) (370,654)
(30,872) (30,872)
(277,813) (28,113) (13,535) (328) (319,789)
(10,400, 858) (1,249,742) (2,551,341) (1,825,885) () (166,452)  (16,194,279)
(52,470) (118,698) (89,021) (19,932) (194,896) (475,017)
(394,066) (394,066)
(11,717,996) (1,851,981) (3.230,788) (1,915,087) (197,886) (612,795)  (19,526,533)
(3,415,357) 430,009 1,125,165 1,141,827 2,040,189 (123,398) 1,198,435

2016 12 31
1 3 1

1 3 12 5 5
2,538,115 4,836 16,262 252,440 2,811,653
189,386 168,262 261,871 1,051 2,095 622,665
161,388 93,665 290,302 35,594 580,949
9,323 19,037 57,624 34,741 2,557 336 123,618
13,386 41,993 43,614 98,920 88,651 7,773 294,337
31,460 31,460
274,766 26,276 18,137 3,872 323,051
3,744,515 1,438,931 3,706,198 217,857 211,863 9,319,364
63,969 107,182 248,715 630,290 340,522 18,203 1,408,881
56,045 112,776 319,438 1,338,194 1,055,699 2,882,152
2,902 14,960 51,865 107,229 447,501 624,547
205,718 205,718
7,053,795 2,027,918 5,014,026 2,463,876 2,146,883 521,897 19,228,395
(16,342) (69,000) (205,059) (621) (30) (291,052)
(819,981) (146,008) (94,165) (95,563) 327) (1,156,044)
(132,599) (97,112) (68,183) (4,127) (302,021)
(393) (524) (16,587) (17,504)
(77,589) (63,996) (125,422) (16,621) 38) (283,666)
(20,758) (20,758)
(193,068) (12,004) (760) (205,832)
(9,350,819) (1,185,810) (2,637,484) (1,705,236) ©) (158,646)  (15,038,001)
(40,107) (61,302) (85,162) (46,033) (155,611) (388,215)
(463,142) (463,142)
(10,630,898) (1,635,756) (3,216,235) (1,868,201) (155,655) (659,490)  (18,166,235)
(3,577,103) 392,162 1,797,791 595,675 1,991,228 (137,593) 1,062,160
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12
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
(24,928) (37,095) (24,271) (40,354)
24,928 37,005 24,271 40,354
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50
2012 CBRC ( )
( )
2
Tierl Tierl 5% 6%
8%
Tierl 2.5%
Tierl 1%
2
2014 4 CBRC
CBRC 3
C )
2017 CBRC
CBRC

CBRC

2017 12 31 CBRC ( )
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(
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tier2
1
Tierl
Tierl
(2 Tierl
(€] Tierl
Tierl
4 Tierl
)
(@€ Tier2
(6
51
2017 12

31

Tierl

Tier2

2016 12 31

Tier2
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Tierl
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2017 2016
12 31 12 31
(€H) 10.63% 10.38%
() 11.26% 11.06%
()] 13.74% 13.04%
) 1,347,453 1,238,683
(€)) (7,500) (7,653)
1,339,953 1,231,030
%) 79,906 79,904
1,419,859 1,310,934
o) 312,087 235,566
1,731,946 1,546,500
(6) 12,605,577 11,856,530
Tierl
)
)
)
( Tierl
)

oOoOooodn
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51.1

2017 12 31

51.2
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MOF
( )
MOF
( )
MOF
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(
2017 12 31
1 2 3
3,489,135 3,395,950 355 3,395,571 24
294,245 285,737 135,993 149,744
3,783,380 3,681,687 355 3,531,564 149,768
246,833 246,877 1,954 244,923
246,833 246,877 1,954 244,923
2016 12 31
1 2 3
2,882,152 2,892,525 1,528 2,890,997
259,224 257,948 117,334 140,614
3,141,376 3,150,473 1,528 3,008,331 140,614
202,107 202,084 10,392 191,692
202,107 202,084 10,392 191,692

265/436



51.4

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

2017 12 31
1 2 3

496 163,453 163,949

30,691 30,691

496 194,144 194,640

8,347 161,407 2,885 172,639

93,741 93,741

92,388 92,388

1,378 2,489 20,690 24,557

9,725 257,637 115,963 383,325

25,276 18 25,294

1,125 7 1,132

1,858 1,858

28,259 25 28,284

17,672 1,378,581 2,631 1,398,884

2,783 932 3,715

3,848 3,378 7,226

46 16,252 16,298

24,303 1,378,627 23,193 1,426,123

34,524 1,858,667 139,181 2,032,372

(21,118) (21,118)

(364,151) (364,151)

(6,503) (6,503)

(6,503) (364,151) (370,654)

(30,083) (30) (30,113)

(399) ©) (406)

(353) (353)

(30,835) @37 (30,872)

(58,456) (364,188) (422,644)
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2016 12 31
1 2 3

108,095 108,095

15,523 15,523

123,618 123,618

6,256 163,137 1,850 171,243

40,953 40,953

58,485 58,485

1,456 1,710 20,490 23,656

7,712 164,847 121,778 294,337

25,153 54 25,207

1,042 19 1,061

5,192 5,192

31,387 73 31,460

46,517 1,343,906 255 1,390,678

7,015 7,015

3,482 1,567 5,049

5,818 5,818

57,014 1,343,906 7,640 1,408,560

64,726 1,663,758 129,491 1,857,975

(17,504) (17,504)

(283,666)  (283,666)

(19,650) (113) (19,763)

(585) (19) (604)

(391) (391)

(20,626) (132) (20,758)

(38,130)  (283,798)  (321,928)
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
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2017 1 1

2017 12 31

/7 (

2016 1 1

2016 12 31

/(

/(
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3
2017
121,778 73 7,640 (283, 666) (132)
1,975,472 20,960
(3.778,572)
(1,991,329) (6) (5.321) 3,707,985 12
10,042 “2) (9,898) 83
(86)
115,963 25 23,193 (364,151) €D
1,605 43) (44) 73
2016
216,565 58 3,631 (406,407) (91)
487,191 5,995
(1,758,926)
(588,006) (11) (1,999) 1,891,502 14
6,028 26 (9,835) (55)
13
121,778 73 7,640 (283,666) (132)
(657) 21 175 1)
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52.

52.1

1 2018 1 11

2,200 2018 3 12
2 2018 3 26 2017 12 31
19,171 ( 41)
8,380 ( 42)
2017 12 31 2017 12 31
57,911 ( 10)
2017 12 31
52.2
2018 3 12 2018 3 29
/ H 6,147,764,619 /
A H
20
52.3 A
2018 3 12
A
CBRC CSRC

53.
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5.5%

0.1783

A 58,811,058,780

27,472,527,469



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

12 31

2017 2016
2,896,341 2,809,879
115,998 616,450
32,008 59,105
515,371 590,223
120,172 93,880
367,552 286,123
28,150 31,430
536,521 322,948
10,277,039 9,282,320
1,379,329 1,375,156
3,477,280 2,869,711
586,826 604,991
23 21,660 11,660
227 213
126,400 30,000
147,214 152,457
97,320 82,670
187,922 221,425

20,913,330 19,440,641

465,647 290,992
979,501 1,161,931
239,044 269,591
21,118 17,504
370,654 283,666
30,736 20,734
314,479 202,938
16,192,746 15,035,744
465,323 378,094
410,575 463,621

19,489,823 18,124,815
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37 324,794 324,794
38 79,899 79,899
39 98,574 98,574
(18,934) 3,768
41 134,061 114,890
42 230,065 197,695
574,931 494,573
117 1,633
1,423,507 1,315,826

20,913,330 19,440,641

2018 3 26
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2017 1 1

2017 12 31

2016 1 1

2016 12 31
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« )
324,794 79,899 98,574 3,768 114,890 197,695 494,573 1,633 1,315,826
- — - — - - 191,714 - 191,714
- - - (22,702) - - —  (1,516) (24.218)
- - - (22,702) - — 191,714 (1,516) 167,496
41 - — — - 19,171 - (19,171) - -
42 _ _ _ _ — 32,370 (32,370) - -
10 _ _ - - - - (55,215) - (55,215)
324,794 79,899 98,574 (18,934) 134,061 230,065 574,931 117 1,423,507
324,794 79,899 98,574 22,258 96,567 175,021 411,401 17 1,208,531
— - — - — - 182,945 - 182,945
- - —  (18,490) - - - 1,616  (16,874)
— — — (18,490) — — 182,945 1,616 166,071
M _ _ _ _ 18,323 —  (18,323) - _
42 — - — — — 22,674  (22,674) - —
10 _ _ _ _ . —  (54,176) - (54,176)
324,794 79,899 98,574 3,768 114,890 197,695 494,573 1,633 1,315,826
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Consolidated Income Statement
Far the year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbd, unless othensse stated)

Year ended 31 December

2017 2018

Interest income 1 713,699 E57,190

Interest expense 1 {3?1. 769) (259,086}
~Netinterest income 1 il 441,930 398,104

Fee and commission income 2 85,257 100,819
Fee and commission expense 2 {12,354) (9,884)
Net fee and commission income 2 72,903 90,935
Met trading (loss)gain 3 (8,829) 5.457
Met loss on financial instruments designated at

fair value through profit or loss 4 (3,244) {1,291}
Met gain on investment securities 136 920
Other operating income 5 40,002 16,003
Operating income 542,898 510,128
Crperating expenses 3 {205,268) {197 049)
Impairment losses on assets 8 (98,166) (B6,4246)
Operating profit 239,464 226,633
Share of result of associate 24 14 {9)
Profit before tax 239,478 226,624
Income tax expense 9 (46.345) (42,564)
Profit for the year 193,133 184,060
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 192,962 183,941

Mon-controlling interests 171 119

193,133 184,060

Earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders
of the Bank (expressed in RME yuan per share)
= Basic and diluted 1 0.58 0.55

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2017
Amounts in millicns of Renmanbi, enless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December
2017 01

Profit for the year 193,133 184,060

Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified subseguently to profit or loss;

Fair value changes on available-for-zale financial assets {31,443) (25,552)

Income tax impact for fair value changes on
avallable-for-sale financial assets. 7,588 6,384
Foraign currency translation differences {1.657) 1,788
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (25,512} {17,380)
Total comprehensive income for the year 167.621 166,680

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 168,037 166,878
Mon-contralling interests (416) (198)
167,621 166,680

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Annsal Beport 2017 161

275/436



EDINETOOOO
OOO0o0ooooooonon(e24593)
OoOooodgno
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Az at 31 Decernber 20017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbd, unless othensse stated)

As at 31 December

2017 2078

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 12 2,896,619 2,811,653
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 13 130,245 622,665
Precious metals 32,008 59,105
Placements with and loans 1o banks and
other financial institutions 14 505,269 580,949
Fimancial assets held for trading 15 194,640 123,618
Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss 16 383,325 204,337
Derivative financial assets 17 28,284 31,460
Financial assets held under resale agreements 18 540,386 323,051
Loans and advances to customers 18 10,316,311 9,319,364
Available-for-sale financial assets 20 1,426,420 1,408,881
Held-to-maturity investments 21 3,489,135 2,882,152
Debt instruments classified as receivables 22 659,223 624,547
Investments in associate 24 227 213
Property and equipment 25 155,258 158,669
Gaodwill 23 1,381 1,381
Deferred tax assets 26 97,751 83,187
Other assels 27 196,900 244 839
Total assets 21,053,382 19,570,061
Liabilities
Borrowings from central banks 28 465,947 291,052
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 29 874,730 1,156,044
Placements from banks and other financial institutions 30 280,061 302,021
Financial liabilities held for trading 31 21,118 17,504
Financial liabilities designated at falr value through
profit or loss 32 370,654 283,666
Derivative financial liabilities 17 30,872 20,758
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 33 319,789 205,832
Due to customens 34 16,194,279 15,038,001
Debt securities issued 35 475,017 1BB, 215
Defarred tax liabilities 26 87 58
Other liabilities 36 491,431 545,319
Total liabilities 19,623,985 18,248,470
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2017
Amounts in millicns of Renmanbi, enless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December

2017

Equity
Ordinary shares 37 324,794 324,794
Preferance shares 38 79,899 79,899
Capital reserve 39 98,773 98,773
Investment revaluation reserve 40 (19,690) 3,578
Surplus reserve 41 134,348 115,136
General reserve 42 230,750 198,305
Retained earnings 577,573 496,083
Foreign cunrency translation reserve (32) 1,625
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank 1,426,415 1,318,153
Non-controlling interests 2,982 3,398
Total equity 1,429,397 1,321,591
Total equity and liabilities 21,053,382 19,570,061

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2018,

R

Chairman Vice Chairman
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Far the year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbd, unless othensse stated)
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of thesa consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2017
Amounts in millicns of Renmanbi, enless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 239,478 226,624
Adjustments for:
Amortizatian of intangible assets and other assets 2,826 2,773
Depregiation of property and equipment 15,453 16,264
Impairment losses aon assets 98,166 86,446
Interest income arising from investment securities {195,994) {167,287)
interest income arsing from impained foans and advances 1o customers (1,430} (2,209)
Interest expense on debt securities issued 13,772 12,133
Revaluation lossfgain) on financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss 18,196 (7.137)
Net gain on investment securities {136) (920)
Share of result of associate (14) q
Met gain on disposal of property, equipment and other assets (941) (209)
Met foreign exchange lossfgain) 5,178 (13,797)
194,554 152,690

Net change in operating assets and operating liabilities:
Met decreasefiincrease) in balances with central banks,

deposits with banks and other financial institutions 265,819 {89,447
Met decreasefincrease) in placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 158,332 {140,250)
Met decrease in financal assets held under resale agreements 17,527 156,406
Met increase in loans and advances to customers (1,135,665) {9359,134)
Met increase in borrowings from central banks 174,885 230,453
Met decrease in placements from banks and other financial institutions (21,960) (13,738)
Met increase in due to customers and deposits from banks and
other financial institutions 974,964 1,433,784
Increase in other operating assets (102,722) (56,173)
Increase in other operating liabilities 4 144,479 40,995
Cash from operations 670,223 775,586
Income tax paid (36,808) {59,613)
MET CASH FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES 633,417 715,973
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Far the year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbd, unless othensse stated)

Year ended 31 December

2017 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash recerved from disposalfredemption of investment securities 1,920,667 1,261,234
Cash received from interest income arising from
investment securities 189,384 154,753
Cash received from disposal of property,
equipment and other assats 2,138 2,287
Cash paid for purchase of investment securities (2,577,239) (2,039,374)
Cash paid for purchase of property, equipment and other assets {16,011) (22,637
MET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (481,061) (643,737)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from debt securities issued 676,543 699,446
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests - 1,843
Cash payments for transaction cost of debt securities issued {35) {51}
Repayments of debt securities issued (579,791) {705,293)
Cash payments for interest on debt securities issued (10,564) {12,109)
Dividends paid to:
Ordinary equity holders (55,215) (54,176)

Preference shareholders

(4.600) 14, 800)
Mon-controlling interests - (41}
MET CASH FROMAUSED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 26,338 (74,981)
NET INCREASE/{DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 178,694 (2,745)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 1 JANUARY B27,698 821,969
EFFECT OF EXCHAMGE RATE CHAMGES ON CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (5.148) B.474
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 43 1,001,246 B27 698
MET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES INCLUDE:
Interest received 512,568 464,635
Interest paid {258,761) (243,275)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017
Amounts in millicns of Renmanbi, enless otherwise stated)

| GENERAL INFORMATION

Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the “Bank "} is the successor entity to the Agricultural Bank of China (the
"Predecessor Entity™) which was a wholly state-owned commercial bank approved for setup by the People's
Bank of China (the “PBOC") and founded on 23 February 1979 in the People's Republic of China (the
“PRC"). On 15 January 2009, the Bank was established after the completion of the financial restructuring
of the Predecessor Entity. The Bank's establishment was authorized by the PEOC, The Bank was listed an
the Shanghal 5tock Exchange and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 15 July 2010 and 16 July
2010, respectively,

The Bank operates under financial services certificate Mo. BOOOZH111000001 issued by the China
Banking Regulatory Commission {the "CBRC"), and business license No. 911100001000054748 issued by
Beijimg Administration of Industry and Commerce. The registered office of the Bank is located at Mo. 69
lianguomen Mei Avenue, Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC.

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group®) include Renminbi ("RMB®)
and foreign currency deposits, loans, clearing and settlement services, assets custodian services, fund
management, financial leasing services, Insurance services and other services as approved by relevant
regulators, and the provision of related services by its overseas establishments as approved by the respective
local regulators.

The head office and domestic branches of the Bank and its subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China
are referred to as the "Domestic Operations™. Branches and subsidiaries registered and operating outside of
the Mainland China are referred to as the “Overseas Operations”.

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1 Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared In accordance with International Financial
Reparting Standards ("IFRS5"), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“LASE"),
in addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Keng Limited and by the Hang
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) for this financial year and the comparative period.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statemnents have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies
st out below, Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of consideration given in exchange
for assets and that is received (or in some circumstances the amount expected to be paid) with
respect to liabilities.

Thie preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs reguires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note lil.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbd, unless othensse stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued}

1.1  Amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2017 relevant to and
adopted by the Group

The following amendments have been adopted by the Group for the first time during the
financial year ended 31 December 2017,

(1}  Amendments 1o lAS 12 Income Taxes
(2} Amendments to IAS T Statement of Cash Flows
(3) Amendments to IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities -

included In the Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2014 = 2016 Cycle

{1}  Amendments to 1AS 12: Income Taxes

The IASB has issued amendments to 145 12 - Income taxes. These amendments on
the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized losses clarify how to account for
deferred tax assets refated to debt instruments measured at fair value,

{2) Amendments to |AS 7; Statement of Cash Flows
The 1458 has issued an amendment to 145 7 introducing an additional disclosure that
will enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities,

(7) Amendments to IFRS 12: Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - included in the
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle

These amendments clarify the scope of IFRS 12 by specifying that the disclosure
requirements, except for those summanzed financal information for subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates, apply to an entity’s interests which are classified as held for
sale or discontinued operations in accordance with IFRS 5.

The adoption of the above amendments does not have a significant impact on the
operating results, comprehensive income and financial position of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2

Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and

have not been adopted before their effective dates in 2017

The Group has not adopted the following new and amended standards that have been ksued

but are not yel effective.

{1y  Amendments to [AS 28

{2} IFRS 15

(3} IFR5 9

{4)  Amendments to IFRS 4

{50  Amendments to 1AS 40

(6) [IFRIC 22
(71 IFRS 16
{8) IFRIC 23

{3) Amendments to IFRS 9

{10) Amendments 1o IFRS 3,
IFRS 11, 145 12 and

145 23
{11) IFRS 17

{12) Amendments 1o IFRS 10

and 145 28

Investmants in Associates and Joint
Ventures = included in the Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2014 -
2016 Cycle

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Firancial Instruments

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

with IFRS 4 [nsurance Contracts

Transfer of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Tramsactions and
Advance Consideration

Leases

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation and Madifications
of Financial Liabilities

The Annual Improverments 1o IFRSs
2015 - 2017 Cycle

Insurance Contracts

Sate or Contribution of Assats
between An Investor and Its
Aszociate or Joint Venture

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on
or after

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2018
1 January 2018

1 Jlanuary 2018
1 January 2018

1 January 2019
1 Jlanuary 2019

1 Jlanuary 2019

1 lanuary 2019

1 January 2021
The amendmenis
were ariginally
intended to ba
effective for
annual periods
beginning on

or after 1 January
2016. The
effective

date has now
been

deferred/
removed.

(1)  Amendmenis to IAS 28: Invesiments in Associates and Joint Ventures - included
in the Annual Improvements to [FR5s 2014 = 20716 Cycle

Thesa amendments clarify that the election to measure investees at fair value through
profit or loss is available for each investment in an associate or joint venture on an
investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recognition. The Group anticipates that
the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group’s
consalidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbd, unless othensse stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued}

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and
have not been adopted before their effective dates in 2017 (Continued)

{2}  IFR5 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining when to recognize
revenue and how much revenue o recognize through a 5-step approach, The core
principle is that a company should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or senices to the customer In an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the company expects to be entitied in exchange for those goods or services. |t
mowes away from a revenue recognition model based on an ‘earmings processes’ 1o an
‘asset-liability’ approach based on transfer of control. IFRS 15 provides specific guidance
on capitalization of contract cost and license arrangements. It also includes a cohesive
set of disclosure reguirements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's contracts with customers, The Group
anticipates that the adoption of this new standard will not have a significant impact on
the Groups consolidated financial statements.

(3} IFRS 8: Financial Instruments

The complete version of IFRS 9@ - Financial instruments was issued in July 2014, which
introduces the dlassification and measurements, impairment and hedge accounting to
replace the guidance in IAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,

IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three
primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortized cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (*OCI") and fair value through profit or loss. The basis
of classification depends on the entitys business madel and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are required to
be measured at fair value through profit of loss with the irrevocable option at inception
to present changes in fair value in OCl in which case the accumulated fair value changes
in ©C| will not be recycled to the profit or loss in the future.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, |FRS 9 requires an expected credit
losses ("ECL"} model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under 1AS 39, The
impairment requirements apply to debt financial assets measured at amortized cost
and FVOCI certain loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. At initial
recagnition, impairment allowance (or provision in the case of commitments and
guarantees) is required for ECL resulting from default events that are possible within the
naxt 12 months (" 12-month ECLT). In the event of a significant increase in credit risk,
an allowance {or provision) is required for ECL resulting from all possible default events
over the expectad life of the financial instrument (*lifetime ECL™). Financial assets where
12-menth ECL is recognized are considered to be “stage 17, financial assets which are
considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk are in "stage 2°; and
financial assets for which there is objective evidence of impairment, so are considered
to be in default or otherwise credit impaired are in "stage 3°.

The assessment of eredit risk and the estimation of ECL are required to be unbiased and
probabilityweighted, and should incorporate all available Information relevant to the
assessment, including information about past events, current conditions and reasonable
and supportable forecasts of economic conditions at the reporting date. In addition, the
estimation of ECL should take into account the time value of money. As a result, the
recognition and measurement of impairment is intended to be more forward-looking
than under 1A5 39,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017
Amounts in millicns of Renmanbi, enless otherwise stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and
have not been adopted before their effective dates in 2017 (Continued)

{3) IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (Continued)

The mew hedge accounting rules will align the accounting for hedging instruments
mare closely with the group’s risk management practices. As a general rule, more hedge
refationships might be eligible for hedge accounting, as the standard introduces a more
principles-based approach.

Impact anafysis from the adoption of IFRS 3 on 1 January 2018

In order to assess the potential impact on the Group's financial statements resulting
from the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group developed the expected loss model and
analyzed changes to the credit risk of financial assets. The Group has also performed
analysis of business models and cash flow characterstics in the contract terms of its
investments and other financial instruments, and completed the classification of its
existing financial assets under IFRS 9. The adoption of IFRS 9 is expected to reduce the
Group’s total equity as at 1 January 2018 by less than 2%, mainly due to the application
of the ECL model in determining the loan loss reserve on its loans and advances
to customers measured at amortized cost, certain loan commitments and financial
guaranteed contracts. These estimates are based on accounting policies, assumptions,
judgements and modeling technigues that remain subject to further enhancement and
calibrations in 2018,

The requirements of IFRS 9 took effect on 1 Japuary 2018, The classification and
measurement and impairment requirements are applied retrospectively by adjusting the
apening balance sheet at the date of initial application, with no requirement 1o restate
comparative periods. The Group does not intend to restate comparatives.

For the hedge accounting, the group has assessed that its current hedge relationships
will qualify as continuing hedges upon the adoption of IFRS 9.

{4) Amendments to IFRS 4: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

On 12 September 2016, the |ASE issued amendments to IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts.
Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4, which provide two alternative
measures to address the different effective dates of IFRS 2 and the new insurance
contracts standard IFRS 17. These measures include a temporary option for companies
whaose activities are predominantly connected with insurance to defer the effective date
of IFRS 9 to 1 January 2021, as well as an approach that allows an entity to remove
fram profit ar loss the effects of certain accounting mismatches that may ocour before
the new insurance contracts standard IFRS 17 is applied. The Group anticipates that
the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact an the Group’s
consolidated financial statements,

{5)  Amendments to [AS 40: Transfer of Investment Property

On 8 December 2016, the 1ASE ssued amendments 1o 1AS 40 - Transfer of Investment
Property. These amendments specify that an entity shall transfer a property to, or fram,
investment property when, and only when, there 15 3 change in use of a property
supported by evidence that a change in use has occurred. They also clarify that the list
of circumstances satl out in 1AS 40 is non-exhaustive list of examples of evidence that
a change in use has occurred instead of an exhaustive list. The examples have been
expanded to include assets under construction and development and not only transfers
of completed properties. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments
will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2017 171

285/436



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbd, unless othensse stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued}

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and
have not been adopted before their effective dates in 2017 (Continued)

(6)  IFRIC 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The IASE issued IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration, to
clarify the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to
use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income when an entity has
recenved or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency, The Group anticipates that
the adoption of this interpretation will not have a significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

(7} IFRS 16: Leases

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Groups operating leases when
the Group is the lessee. As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB11,939 million (see Note IV 47 Contingent
Lizbilitees and Commitments). The Group has not yet determined to what extent these
commitments will result in the recognition of right-of-use assets and liahilities for
future payments and how this will affect the Group's profit and classification of cash
flows. Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception for short-term and
low-value leases and some commitments may relate to arrangements that will not
gualify as leases under IFRS 16,

(8)  IFRIC 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

In June 2017 the |ASB issued IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments to clarfy
how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in 1AS 12 when there i
uncertainty over income 1ax treatments. The Group anticipates that the adoption of this
interpretation will not have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
slatements.

{9 Amendments to IFRS % Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation and
Madifications of Financial Liahilities

On 12 October 2017, the LASE issued amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with
Megative Compensation and Modifications of Financial Liabilities. These amendments
permit more assets to be measured at amortized cost than under the previous version of
[FRS 9, in particular some prepayable financial assets, These amendments also clarify the
accounting for @ modification or exchange of a financial liability measured at amortized
cost that does not result in the derecognition of the financial liability, The Group
anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements,

(10) Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23; The Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle include a number of amendments
1o warious |FRSs, including the amendments to IFRS 3 — Business Combinations, the
amendments to IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements, the amendments to I1AS 12 - Income
taxes and I1AS 23 - Borrowing Costs, The Group anticipates that the adoption of the
amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017
Amounts in millicns of Renmanbi, enless otherwise stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and
have not been adopted before their effective dates in 2017 (Continued)

{11) [IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 weas issued in May 2017 as replacement for IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.
It requires a current measurement model where eastimates are re-measured each
reporting period. Contracts are measured using the building blocks of: discounted
probability-waighted cash flows, an explicit risk adjustment, and a contractual service
margin {“C5M*) representing the unearned profit of the contract which is recognized as
revanue over the coverage period.

The standard allows a choice between recognizing changes In discount rates either in
the income statement or directly in other comprehensive income. The choice is likely to
reflect how insurers account for their financial assets under IFRS 9,

An optional, simplified premium allocation approach s permitted for the liability for the
remaining coverage for short duration contracts, which are often written by non-life
insurers.

There |5 a moedification of the general measurement model called the “variable fee
approach” for certain contracts written by life insurers where policyholders share in the
returns from underlying items. When applying the variable fee approach the entity’s
share of the fair value changes of the underlying items is included in the contractual
service margin. The results of insurers using this model are therefore likely to be less
valatile than under the general model.

The new rules will affect the financial statements and key performance indicators of
all entities that issue insurance contracts of investment contracts with discretionary
participation featunes.

The Group has not completed its assessment of the impact on the Group's operating
results amd financial position of adopting IFRS 17.

{12) Amendments to IFRS 10 and [AS 28; Sale or Contribution of Assets between An
Investor and lts Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address an inconsistency between IFRS 10 and 145 28 in the sale and
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture,

A full gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves a business. A partial gain ar
loss is recagnized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business,
even if those assets are in a subsidiany,

The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 Consolidation
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and the
subsidiaries as well as structured entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed fo, or has rights o, variable returns from its invalvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Income. and expense of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the date of acquisition or up to the date on which control
ceases, respectively.

Adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries, where appropriate, to consistently
reflect the accounting policies of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transacticns are eliminated. Unrealized
Iosses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset.

Mon-controlling interests of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the controlling
party’s equity therein,

The carrying amount of non-controlling interests s the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus the non-controling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Further, total
comprehensive income of a subsidiary Is attributed, based on the proportion of their respective
holdings, to the eguity holders of the Bank and o the non-controlling interests, even if this results in
the non-contralling interests having a deficit balance,

In the Bank's statement of financial position, s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost, less
impairment losses, if any.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for wsing the acquisition method. The consideration
transferrad in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition date fair value of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred or assumed by
thie Group, and any equity interests issued by the Group. Acguisition related costs are recognized in
the consolidated income statement as incurred.

At the acquisition date, irmespective of non-contralling interests, the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair values; except that
deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognized and measured in accordance with |AS 12 - Income Taxes and 145 19 - Employee Benefits,

respectively.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the difference between (i) the consideration transferred, the
fair value of any non-contralling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the Group’s previcusly
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) and (i} the net fair value of the |dentifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities and contingent liabilities incurred or assumed.

Non-controlling interests that represent ownership interests in the acquiree, and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assets in the event of liqudation are accounted
for at either fair value or the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share in the recognized
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable met assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis,
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2  Consolidation (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition less the fair value of the Group's share of
the net identifiable assets of acquired subsidiaries and associates at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
an acquisitions of subsidiaries is presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Goodwill on acquisition of associates is included in investrment in associates.

For the purpeses of Impalrment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating
units {(*CGU") or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the business
combination.

& CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU, which
is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in wse, (5 less than its carrying amount, the
deficit, reflecting an impairment loss, is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of the CGU on a pro-rata basis, based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. Any goodwill impairment loss is recognized diractly in
the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods,

Investment in associate

An associate 15 an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture, Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but does not constitute control of joint
control over those policy decisions.

The post-acquisition profit or loss of an associate |5 incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accoumting. Under the eguity method, investment in an
associate is imitially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group's share of loss of
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group discontinuas
recognizing its share of further loss, Additional loss is recognized only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group considers whether there are circumstances that
indicate the possibility of impairment of the Group’s investment in an associate; when that is the
case, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with LAS 36 - Impairment of Assets, as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use) with its carrying amount, any
impairment loss recognized forms part of the carrying amount of the investment, Any reversal of
an impairment loss is recognized, to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases,

‘When an entity in the Group transacts with the Group's associate, profits and losses resulting from
the transaction are recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of

the interest in the associate that are not related to the Group. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferrad.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all interest-earning financial assets and Interest-bearing financial
liabilities are recognized as interest income and interest expense in the consolidated income

staternent using the effectiva interest method.

The effective interest method s a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or
liability and of allacating the interest income or expense over the period. The effective interest rate
Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. When calculating the effactive interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all comtractual terms of the financial instrument, but does not consider future credit
losses, The calculation includes all fees and interest paid or received that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Interest income on an impaired financial asset or a group of impaired similar financial assets is
recognized using the origingl interest rate which was used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

4 Fee and commission income

The Group esarns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its
customers. For those services that are provided over a specified period of time, fee and commission
income |s accrued over that period as the services are provided. For other services, fee and
commission income are recognized at the time the services are completed.

5  Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Domestic Operations s RMB. The presentation currency of the Group
and the Bank is RME.

In prepanng the financial statements of each individual Group entity, transactions in CUFFERCISs
other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions, At the end of the
raporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Mon-monelary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Mon-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retransiation of
maonetary items, are recognized in the consolidated income statement in the period in which they
arise, except for the following:

(1 exchange differences ansing on a moenetary item that forms part of the Bank's net investment
in the Overseas Operations,

(i} changes in the fair value of monatary assets denominated in foreign currency classified as
avallable for sale are analyzed between translation differences resulting frem changes in the
amortized cost of the monetary assets and other changes in the carrying amount, Translation
differences related to changes in the amortized cost are recognized in the consolidated income
statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-manetary items carried at fair value are
included in the consolidated income statement for the pericd except for exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognized
directly in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange differences are also recognized
directly in other comprehensive income,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
5 Foreign currency transactions (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group's Overseas Operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at exchange rates at the date of the transactions, or a rate that approximates the
exchange rates of the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the foreign currency translation
reserve and noen-contralling intérests, as appropriate. The accumulated foreign currency transiation
reserve related to the Overseas Operations will be reclassified from equity to the consolidated income
statement on disposal of all or part of the Overseas Operations.

6  Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated wsing tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized an temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and labiities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differances can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized
for temporary difference related to goodwill or the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable profit nor
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future or it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be utilized,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
pericd in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting penod.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assats and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is recognized In
the consolidated income statement, except when it relates to items that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the cument and deferred tax is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in eguity, respectively.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
[ Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when thera is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities, when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Value-added Taxes (“VAT")

The Groups interest income, fee and commission income, trading gain on financial products and
insurance premium income are presented net of their respective VAT in the consolidated financial
statements.

In accordance with “Circular regarding the Value-added Taxes Policies for Financial, Real
Estate Development and Education Ancillary and Other Services” (Cal Shui [2016] Mo. 140),
the “Supplementary Circular regarding lssues concerning Value-added Taxes Policies for Asset
Management Products” (Cai Shui [2017) Mo 2} and the " Circular on the Relevant Issues concerning
Value-added Tax Levied on Asset Management Products” (Cal Shui [2017] No. 56), the Group shall
pay VAT at 3% for taxable asset management activities undertaken after 1 January 2018.

7 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration gven and other relevant expenditure incurred by
the Group in exchange for services rendered by employees or for termination of the employment
contracts. These benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and early
retirement benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

In the reparting period in which an employee has rendered services, the Group recognizes the
short-term employee benefits payable for those services as a liability with a corresponding increase
in the expenses in the consolidated income statement. Short-term employee benefits include salaries,
bonuses, allowance and subsidies, staff welfare, medical insurance, employment injury insurance,
maternity insurance, housing funds as well as labor union fees and staff education expenses,

Post-employment benefits

The Groups post-employment benefits are primarily the payments for basic pensions and
unemployment insurance related to government mandated social welfare programs, as well as the
annuity scheme established, All these post-employment benefits are defined contribution plans,
under which, the Group makes fived contributions into a separate fund and will have no legal or
constructive obligation ta make further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and prior periods,

Contributions 1o the basic pensions and unemployment insurance plan are recognized in the
consolidated income statement for the peried in which the related payment obligation is incurred,

The employees of the Bank's head office and domestic branches ("Domestic Institutions ") participate
in an annuity scheme established by the Bank (the “Annuity Scheme”) The Bank pays annuity
contributions with reference to employees’ salanes, and such contributions are expensed in the
consolidated income statement when incurred. The Bank has no further obligation if the Annuity
Scheme does not have sufficient assets for the payment of any retirement benefits to employees
funded by the Annuity Scheme.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
7  Employee benefits (Continued)
Early retirement benefits

Early retirement benefits have been paid to those employees who. accept voluntary retirement before
the normal retirement date, as approved by management. The related benefit payments are made
from the date of early retirement to the normal retirement date.

The accounting treatment of the Group's early retirement benefits is in accordance with termination
benefits as determined in 1A5 19. The liability is recognized for the early retirement benefit payments
from the date of early retiremant to the normal retirement date when the criteria for recognition
as termination benefit is met with a corresponding charge in the consolidated income statement.
Differences arising from changes in assumptions and estimates of the present value of the liabilities
are recognized in the consolidated income statemient when incurred.

B Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position and
classified into one of the categories presented below. Al regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by requilation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial hiabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or liabilities, respectively, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or
Ioss are recognized immediately in the consolidated income statement.
8.1 Financial assets
The Groups financial assets are classified Iinto four categories - financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL") held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial
assets and, loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and & determined at the time of initial recognition.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL have two subcategories — financial assets held for trading and those
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition,

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if;
- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of sale in the near future; or

- it farms part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term prafit-taking; or

. it 15 a derivative instrument that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8  Financial instruments (Continued)
8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or foss (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significamtly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

L] the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and 145 39
- Financial Instruments; Recognition and Measurement permits the entire combined
contract {asset or liability) to be designated at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with changes in fair value arising from
re-measurement recognized directly in the consolidated income statement in the period in
which they arise,

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financal assets, quoted in an active mariet,
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity, Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortized cost using the sffective Interest method, less any
impaltment losses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses.

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables primarily include deposits with central banks,
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements, loans and advances
to customers, and specified debt securities.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as such
or are not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified 1o the consolidated income statement.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8  Financial instruments (Continued)
8.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Avallable-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
Equity investments classified as available-for-sale that do not have a guoted price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably determined are measured at cost, less any
impairment losses, at the end of each reparting period.
Interest income related to financial assets classified as available-for-sale debt Instruments is
calculated using the efiective Iinterest method and recorded as an element of interest income
in the consolidated income statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognized in the consolidated income statement when the Group's right to receive such
payments is established,
impairment of financial assets
Financial assefs, other than those classified as FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a mesult of one or more events that occurred after initial recognition, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been adversely affected.

A significant or prolenged decline in the fair value of an equity investment classified as
avatlable-for-sale below its cost s considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, the objective evidence of impairment could include:
- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- the lender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise considar;

. it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
recrganization;

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

. ohservable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a portfolic of financial assets, although the decrease cannot yetl be
attributed to individual financial assets in the portfolio:

- atverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio; and

- national or local economic conditions that carrelate with defaults an the assets in
the portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for all
corporate loans, debt instruments classified as receivables, available-for-sale financial assets
and held-to-maturity investments, and collectively for the remainder of financial assets (other
than those at fair value through profit or loss). If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
of not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses it for impairment. Financial assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not
included In collective assessment of impairment.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8  Financial instruments (Continued)
8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
impairment of financial assets carried at amortized cost

Far financial assets carried at amortized cost, an impairment loss is recagnized in the
consolidated income statement when there is objective evidence that the assets are impaired.
The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. For financial
assets with variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is thie
current effective interest rate determined under the contract.

The calculation of present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial
asset reflects the cash flows that are expected to result from foreclosure, less the cost of
obtaining and selling the collateral.

The carrying amount of an impaired financial asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in the
consolidated income statement. When a financial asset is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to the consolidated income statement.

if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, such
as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating, the previously recognized impairment lass is
reversad through the consolidated income staterment to the extent that the carrying amaount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost
wiould have been had the impairment not been recognized.

impairment of financial assets classified as available-for-sale

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or prolonged decline in fair value balow
cost is considered to be objective evidence of Impairment. In determining whether a decline
in fair value has been significant or prolonged, the Group considers if the fair value of an
available-for-sale equity instrument as at the balance sheet date is lower than 50% (including
50%) of its initial cost of investmeant or lower than its initial cost of investment for more than
one year (including one year) together with other relevant considerations.

When a decline in the fair value of a financial asset classified as available-for-sale has been
recognized directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve, and there is objective evidence that asset is impaired, the cumulative
losses previowsly recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the consolidated
income statement in the period in which the impairment takes place.

An impaimment loss on an equity investment classified as available-for-sale, and carried at
fair value, is not reversed through the consolidated income statement in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognized directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve. An impairment
loss on an equity investment classified as available-for-sale equity investment, and carried at
cost, is not reversed. An impairment loss on a debt investment classified as available-for-sake
is subsequently reversed through the consolidated income statement if an increase in the fair
value of the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment |oss.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.2 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument in 1AS 39 and JAS 32,

respectively.

The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified into financial liabilities at FVTPL and
other financial liabilities, carried at amortized cost.

Financial liabilitfes at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL have two subcategories, tncluding financial liabilities held for
trading and those designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or if it i part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading
unless they are designated and effective as hedging instruments.

The criteria for a financial liability designated at FYTPL is the same as those for a financial
asset designated at FVTPL,

Financial liabilities at FWTPL are stated at fair value, with changes in fair value arising on

fe-measurement recognized directly in the consolidated income statement in the periad in

which they arise.

Other financial labilities

Other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest method.
8.3 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

A financial instrument is an equity instrument if, and only if, both conditions (i} and (i) below
are met:

{i The financial instrument includes no contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset to another entity, or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities
with another entity under conditions that are paotentially unfavorable to the Group; and

iy If the financial instrument will or may be settied in the Group's own eguity instruments,
it is & non-derivative instrument that includes no contractual obligations for the Group
to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments; or a derivative that will be
settled only by the Group exchanaing a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

Equity instruments [ssued by the Group are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received, nat
of direct issuance expenses,

Annual Report 2017 183

297/436



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbd, unless othensse stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.4 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract (s entered into
and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Demvatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when
their characteristics and risks are not clearly and closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in
the consolidated income statement. These embedded derivatives are separately accounted for
at FVTPL

8.5 Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (i.8. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technigque.

For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities is based on quoted market prices. This includes listed equity
securities and quoted debt instruments on major exchanges.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and reqularly occurring market transactions on an arm's
length basis. If the above criteria are not met, the market is regarded as being inactive.
Indications that a market is inactive are when there is 3 wide bid-offer spread or significant
increase in the bid-offer spread or there are few recent transactions.

Far financial instruments not traded in active markets, fair value s determined using
appropriate valuation technigues. Valuation technigues include the use of recent transaction
prices, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and others commonly used
by market participants. These valuation technigques include the use of observable andfor
unobservable inputs.

8.6 De-recognition

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing invalvement
and recognizes an associated liability, If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the
financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and, where applicable,
the cumulative gain or less that had been recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the refated obligation is discharged, s cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and
the consideration paid and payable is recognized in the consolidated income statement.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.7 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position when both of the following conditions are satisfied: (i) the
Group has a legal right to set off the recognized amounts and the legal right is currently
enforceable; and (i) the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the financial
asset and settle the financial liability simultaneously, The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

8.8 Repurchase agreements and agreements to resell

Financial assets transferred as collateral in connection with repurchase agreements, invalving
fixed repurchase dates and prices, are not derecognized. They continue to be recorded as
investments classified as held-to-matunty investments, available-for-sale financial assets or
debt instruments classified as receivables as appropriate. The corresponding Nability is included
in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements. The items which are not derecognized
are disclosed in Mote IV 47 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments - Collateral.

Consideration paid for financial assets held under agreements to resell are recorded as
Financial assets held under resale agreements, the related collateral accepted is not recognized
in the consalidated financial statements (Note IV 47 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments —
Collateral),

The difference between purchase and sale price is recognized as interest expense of income
in the consolidated income statement over the term of the agreements using the effective
interest method.

9 Insurance contracts
Insurance contract classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts under which the Group has accepted significant insurance
risk, relative to an insured event of occurrence. The Group issues primarily life insurance contracts,
which insure events associated with mortality over a long duration. The Group also issues non-life
insurance -contracts, which cover short-term casualty and health insurance risk. When necessary,
the Group enters into reinsurance contracts to transfer insurance risks to reinsurer, A significant
insurance risk test is performed at inception of the insurance contracts.

Some insurance contracts contain both an insurance component and a deposit component. The
Group unbundles those components, if the insurance component and the deposit component are
separately measurable. The unbundled insurance component is accounted for according to IFRS 4 -
Insurance Confracts and the unbundled deposit component is accounted for as a financial liability
under investment contract liabilities.

Insurance income recognition

Premiums from long-term life insurance contracts are recognized as revenue when due from
policyholders. Premiums related to short-term non-life insurance contracts are recognized when
received at the inception of the policy, as unearmed insurance premiums in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and are amortized on a straight-line basis into the consolidated
income statement over the term of the policy.

When the Group has transferred insurance risk through reinsurance contracts, the Group calculates
the amount of premium ceded and the reinsurers” share of expenses and recognizes them through
the consolidated income statement in accordance with the terms of the reinsurance contracts.

Annual Report 2017 185

299/436



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbd, unless othensse stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
9 Insurance cantracts (Cantinued)
Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities are measured based on a reasonable estimate of the amount of
payments that the Group will be required to make to fulfill its obligations under the insurance
contracts, which represents the difference between expected future cash outflows and inflows related
to such contracts. A reasonable estimate of expected future net cash flows is determined based on
information currently available as at the end of the reporting period. The Group has considered the
impact of time value in the liability calculation for leng-term life insurance.

The Group periorms liability adequacy tests based on information currently available, as at the
reporting date. Additional insurance contract liabilities will be recorded if any deficiency exists.

10  Precious metals
Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals.

Precious metals that are not related to the Group's trading activities are Initially measured at
acquisition cost and subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Preciouws
metals that are related to the Group's trading activities are initially recognized at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from re-measurement recognized directly in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they arise,

11 Property and equipment

Property and equipment including bulldings held far use in the supply of services, or for
administrative purpose {other than construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any, When the costs attributable to the land use rights cannot be reliably measured and
separated from that of the building at inception, the costs are included in the cost of buildings and
recanded In property and equiprment.

Subsequent expenditure incurred for the property and equipment (other than construction in
progress) is included in the cost of the property and equipment (other than construction in
progress) if it is probable that economic banafits associated with the asset will flow to the Group
and the subsequent expenditure can be measured, and the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized, Other subsequent expenditure is recognized in the consolidated income statement in
the period in which they are incurred,

Depreciation is recognized as a component of operating expenses in the consolidated income
statement 50 as to recognize the consumption of the economic value of property and equipment
{ather than construction in progress), less their estimated residual values, over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
rates are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis,

The wuseful lives, estimated residual value rates and annual depreciation rates of each class of
praperty and equipment are as follows:

ated

dual Annual
Classes Useful lives value rates depreciation rates

Buildings 5-50 years 1,94%:-19.40%
Electronic equipment,

furniture and fixtures 3-11 years 3% B.B2%-32.33%
Moter vehicles 5- 8 years 3% 12.13%-19.40%
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
11  Property and equipment (Continuad)

Properties in the course of construction for supply of services or administrative purposes are carried
at cost, as construction in progress, less any impairment loss. Construction in progress Is reclassified
ta the appropriate category of property and equipment when completed and ready for intended wse.
Depreciation of these assets, an the same basis as other property and equipment, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future ecanomic
benefits are expected to arise from its continued wse. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in other operating income or
operating expenses in the consolidated income statement. The accounting policies of Impairmant
of property and equipment are included in Mote Il 18 Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets
other than Goodwill.

12  Land use rights

Land use rights are classified in other assets and amortized over a straight-line basis over their
authorized useful lives.

13 Foreclosed assets

foreclosed assets are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value, less costs to sell, at the end of each reparting period. When the
fair value, less costs to sell, is lower than a foreclased assets carrying amount, an Impairment lass is
recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the foreclosed asset s included in the consolidated incomea
statement in the period in which the item is disposed.

The Group disposes foreciosed assets through various means, In principle, foreclosed assets should
not be transferred for own use, but, in the event that they are needed for the Group's own business
of management purposes, they are transferred at their net carrying amounts and managed as newly
acquired property and equipment.

14 Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation, or both,

Investment property is initially measured at its acquisition cost. Subsequent expenditure incurred
for the investment property is included in the cost of the investment property if it is probable that
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the subsequent expenditure
can be measured reliably. Other subsequent expenditure is recognized in the consclidated income
statement in the period In which they are incurred,

Investment properties are measured using the cost model, Depreciation and amortization is
recognized the samea way as property and equipment and land use rights.

The accounting policies of impairment of investment property are included in Mote Il 18 Impairment
of Tangible and Intangible Assets other than Goodwill.

‘Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the canrying amount of the invesiment property is
increasad to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount had no impairment loss been recognized, A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated income statement.

‘When an investment property is sobd, transferred, retired or damaged, the Group recognizes the
amount of any proceeds on disposal, net of the carrying amount and related expenses, in the
consolidated income statement.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
15 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the |ease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

When the Group is the lessor in a finance lease, an amount representing the minimum fease payment
receivables and unguaranteed residual value, net of initial direct costs, all discounted at the implicit
lease rate (the "net lease investment”) is recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
as Loans and advances to customers. The difference between the net lease investment and the
undiscounted amount is recorded as unearned finance income, amortizing over the term of the lease
using the effective interest method and recognized in the consolidated income statement.

When the Group is the lessor In an operating lease, the assets subject 1o the operating lease continue
to be recognized as the Group's property and equipment. Rental income from operating leases is
recognized as other operating income in the consolidated income statement on a straight-lineg basis
over the term of the related lease.

The Group as lessee

When the Group is a lessee under finance leases, the leased assets are capitalized under property
and equipment initially at the fair value of the asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The coresponding liability to the lessor is included in other liabilities. Finance
charges are charged over the term of the lease using the effective interest method and recognized in
the consolidated income statemant. The depreciation palicy for depreciable leased assets is consistent
with that for depreciable assets that are owned.

When the Group is the lessee in an operating lease, operating lease payments are recognized as an
expense and charged to operating expentes in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as
expenses in the periods i which they are incurred. In the event that lease incentives are received
to_enter into operating leases, such incentives are considered in determining the amount to be
recognized over the lease term.

16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term and highly liquid assets, which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash
gquivalents include cash and assets with original maturity of three months or less under cash and
balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other financial institutions, placements with
and loans to banks and other financial institutions and financial assets held under resale agreements.

17 Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment loss, Amortization for imlangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives which generally
range from 5 ta 20 years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are subject to annual impairment
assessment,

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
consalidated income statement.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
18 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assels to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset s estimated in
arder to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if-any, The recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset's fair value less costs 1o sell and value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset s estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the
consolidated income statement.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carmypng amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount had no impairment loss been recognized. A reversal of an impairmant
loss is recognized in the consolidated income statement.

19 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Bank's ordinary eguity holders is recognized as a lmability in the Group's
and the Bank’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the ordinary
equity holders in the annual general meeting of the Bank.

As authorized by the ordinary equity holders in the annual general meeting, the Board of Directors
has the sole discretion to declare and distribute dividends on preference shares. Preference share
dividend distribution is recognized as a liability in the Group’s and the Bank's financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank.

20 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and
it is probable that the Group will be requirad to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks anmd uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision |5 measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the prasent obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

21 Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custodian, trustee and in other fiduciary capacities to safeguard assets for
customers in accordance with custody agreements between the Group and securities investment
funds, social security funds, insurance companies, trust companies, gualified foreign institutional
investors, annuity schemes and other institutions and individuals, The Group receives fees in return
for its services provided under the custody agreements and does mot have any interest in the
economic fisks and rewards related to assets under custody. Therefore, assets under custody are not
recognized in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group conducts entrusted lending arrangements for its customers, Under the terms of entrusted
loan arrangements, the Group grants |oans 1o borrowers, as an intermediary, according to the
instruction of its customers wha are the lenders providing funds for the entrusted loans. The Group
15 responsible for the arrangement and collection of the entrusted loans and receives a commission
for the services rendered. As the Group does not assume the economic risks and rewards of the
entrusted loans and the funding for the corresponding entrusted funds, they are not recognized as
assets and labilities of the Group.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
22 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due,
in accardance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantess are initially recognized at fair value on the date the guarantee was given,
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's liabilities under soch guarantees are measured at the
higher of the initial amount, less amortization of guarantee fees recognized in accordance with the
revanue recognition policy, and the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the guarantee.
These estimates are determined based on experience of similar transactions, historical losses and
supplemented by the judgment of management. Any increase in the liakility relating to guarantees is
taken to the consolidated income statement.

23 Contingent liahilities

A contingent liability is a possible chligation that arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
whaolly within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognized because it Is not probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
reguired or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent Nability Is not recognized, but disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is probable. The Group's contingent liabilities are disclosed
in Note IV 47 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments.

A provision is recognized when it meets the criteria as set farth in Note il 20 Provision.

Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in Note II, management is
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities. The estimates and related assumptions are based on historical experience and other relevant
factors including on the basis of reasonable expectations for future events.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as appropriate.

The following are the critical judgments and key estimates that the management has made in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities within the next twelve months.

1 Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers

The Group reviews its loans and advances to customers to assess impairment on a periodic basis
during the wear. [n determining whather an impairment loss should be recognized in the consolidated
income statement of profit and loss, the Group makes estimates and judgments as to whether there
is any observable data indicating that there is objective evidence of impairment and the extent,
if any, to which it will have a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows related to
individually assessed loans and advances or pools of loans and advances to customers with similar
risk characteristics, as described in Note Il &1 Impairment of Financial Assets Carried at Amortized
Cost,
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1 Impairment losses on leans and advances to customers (Continued)

Significant judgments are made in the determination of whether objective evidence of impairmeant
exists in individually assessed loans and advances to customers or pools of loans and advances to
custemers with similar risk characteristics, Among other things, objective evidence of impairment
includaes deterioration in the financial condition of spacific borrowers (or specific pools of borrowers)
affecting their ability to meet their loan payment cbligations such as overdue status, financial
position of guarantars, latest collateral valuations and concessions by the Group that would
not otherwise be granted 1o borrowers for economic or legal reasons relating to their financial
difficulties, as well as increasing industry sector over-capacity or ohsolescence, or deterioration in
naticnal or regional economic conditions that are correlated to increasing customer defaults on
loans and advances. These judgments are made both during managements regular assessments of
the quality of loans and advances to customers’ quality and when other circumstances indicate the
possibility that objective evidence of impairment may exist.

Where it is determined that objective evidence of impairment exists, significant judgments and
estimates are made in estimating the adverse impact on future cash flows related to individually
assessed impaired loans and advances to customers. The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience. Factors affecting these estimates
include the availability and granularity of information related to specific borrowers and guarantors,
latest collateral valuations and other available information, and the clarity of the correlation between
qualitative factors, such as industry sector performance or changes in regional economic conditions
and loans and advances to customers’ defaults of related borrowers.

Corporate loans and advances to customers noft identified as impaired from individually assessments,
together with personal loans and advances to customers are included in homogenous groups with
similar credit risks characteristics for performance of impairment assessments on a collective basis.
significant judgments are applied to the calculation of assessed impairment wsing these models.
Critical factors affecting these judgments include modelling assumptions (e.g., loss given default)
and levels of correlation between qualitative factors and loans and advances 1o customers default.
The collective impairment |oss is assessed after taking into account: (i) historical loss experience
in portfolics of similar credit risk characteristics; (i) loss identification period for Incurred but
unidentified impairment losses; (i) industries and geographic locations, and (iv) the current economic
and credit environments and whether in managements experience these indicate that the actual
level of inherent losses is likely to be greater or less than that seggested by histoncal experience. The
Group considers the impact of the changes and uncertainty im the macro-economic environment, in
which the Group operates when assessing the methodology and assumptions wsed for loss estimation
and makes adjustments where appropriate,

2 Fair value of financial instruments

Thie Group uses valuation techniques to estimate the fair value of finandal instruments which are not
quoted in an active market. These valuation technigues include the use of recent transaction prices
of the same or similar instruments, discounted cash flow analysis and generally accepted pricing
maodels. To the extent practical, market observable inputs and data, such as interest rate yield curves,
foreign currency rates and implied option volatilities, are used when estimating fair value through
a valuation technigue, Where market observable inputs are not available, they are estimated using
assumplions that are calibrated as closely as possible to market observable data. However, areas such
as the credit risk of the Group and the counterparty, liquidity, volatilities and correlations reguire
management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
estimated fair value of financial instruments.

With respect to PRC government obligations related to large-scale policy directed financing
transactiens, falr value is determined using the stated terms of the related Instrument and with
reference to terms determined by the PRC government in similar transactions engaged in or directed
by the PRC government. In this regard, there are no other relevant market prices or yields reflecting
arm's length transactions of a comparable size and tenor.
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3  Held-to-maturity investments

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets, guoted in an active market, with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group's management has the positive intention
and ability to hold to maturity as held-to-maturity investments. In assessing the Group's intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity, management primarily considers the business
purpose for acquiring a security, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs. This is a significant judgment
because if the Group fails 1o hold these investments to maturity, other than for specific and. limited
circumstances {e.g., sale of an insignificant amaount close to maturity), it will be required 1o reclassify
the entire portfolio of held-to-maturity investments as available-for-sale financial assets and be
precluded from classifying investments as held-to-maturity investments for the next two years.

4  Impairment of other financial assets

For held-to-maturity investments and financial instruments classified as receivables, the determination
of whether such an investment is impaired requires significant judgment. Objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired includes a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments or the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of significant financial difficulty of the issuer, eic. In making such judgment,
the impact of objective evidence of impairment on expected future cash flows of the investmant is
taken into account.

For available-for-sale investments, the determination of whether such an investment s impaired
requires significant judgment, In making this judgment, the Group considers the duration and extent
to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost, or whether other objective evidence of
impairment exists based on the financial health of and near-term business outlook for the investes
ar issuer, including factors such as industry and sector performance, credit ratings, delinquency rates
and counterparty risk,

5 Taxes

There are certain transactions and activities in the ordinary course of the Group’s business for which
the ultimate tax effect is uncertain. The Group made certain estimation and judgement for items
of uncertainty in the application of tax legislations, taking into account existing tax legislation and
past practice of tax authorities. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially estimated, based on management’s assessment, such differences
will affect the current income tax and deferred income tax during the period in which such a
determination is made.

[ Consolidation of structured entities

Where the Group acts as asset manager of or investor in structured entities, the Group makes
significant judgement on whether the Group controls and should consolidate these structured
entities. When performing this assessment, the Group assesses the Groups contractual rights and
obligations in light of the transaction structures, and evaluates the Group’s power over the structured
entities, performs analysis and tests on the varable returns from the structured entities, including
but not limited to commission income and asset management fees earned as the asset manager, the
retention of residual income, and, if any, the liquidity and other support provided to the structured
entities. The Group also assesses whether it acts as a principal or an agent through analysis of the
scope of its decision-making authority over the structured entities, the remuneration to which it is
entitled for asset management services, the Group’s exposure to variability of returns from its other
intarests in the structured antities, and the rights held by other parties in the structured entities.
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

7  De-recognition of financial assets transferred

In its normal course of business, the Group transfers its financial assets through various types of
transactions including regular way sales and transfers, securitization, financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements, securities lending. The Group applies significant judgement in assessing
whether it has transferred these financial assets which qualify for a full or partial de-recognition.

Where the Group enters into structured transactions by which it transfers financial assets to
structured entities, the Group analyzes whether the substance of the relationship between the Group
and these structured entities indicates that it controls these structured entities to determine whether
the Group needs to consolidate these structured entities, This will determine whether the following
de-recognition analysis should be conducted at the consohdated level or at the emtity level from
which the financial assets are transferred.

The Group analyzes the contractual rights and obligations in connection with such transfers to
determine whether the de-recognition criteria are mat based on the following considerations;

. whether it has transferred the rights to receive contractual cash flows from the financial assets
ar the transfer qualifies for the "pass through™ of those cash flows to independent third
parties,

. the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are

transferred. Significant judgment is applied in the Groups estimation with regard to the cash
flows before and after the transfers and other factors that effect the outcomes of Groups
assessment on the extent that risks and rewards are transferred,

. where the Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards
associated with their ownership, the Group analyzes whether it has relinguished its controls
over these financial assets by assessing whether the transferee has the practical ability to
sell the assel in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability
unifaterally and without needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer, and if the
Group has continuing invelvement in these transferred financial assets. Where the Group has
not retained control, it derecognizes these financial assets and recognizes separately as assets
or liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer. Otherwise the Group
continues to recognize these financial assets to the extent of its continuing involvement in the
financial asset.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 MNet interest income

Year ended 31 December

2017 2076

Interast income
Loans and advances to customers

Including: Corporate loans and advances 274,039 261,332
Personal loans and advances 158,323 135,131
Discounted bills 9,113 14,327
Subtotal 441,475 410,730
Held-to-maturity investments 123,270 99,737
Ayailable-for-sale financial assets 49,070 46,155
Balances with central banks 41,604 39,264
Debt instruments classified as receivables 23,654 21,395
Placements with and |oans to banks and
ather financial institutions 13,060 12,922
Financial assets held under resale agreements 9,745 6,497
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 7.340 17,621
Finanmcial assets held for trading 4,110 2,589
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss in 220
Subtotal 713,693 BS7,190
Interest expense
Due to customers {209,782) (209,149}
Deposits fram banks and other financial institutions (24,995) (27,175}
Debt securities issued (13,772) {12,133)
Borrowings from central bank (13,254) {3,556)
Placements from banks and other financial institutions {6,240) (4,247)
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreaments (3,488) {2,826)
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss {238) -
Subtatal 1271.769) (259,086)
Met interest income 441,930 398,104

Interest income accrued on impaired financial assets
(included within interest income) 1,430 2,200
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2 Net fee and commission income

Year ended 31 December

2017 2016

Fee and commission income

Agency services 22,773 39,377
Bank cards 22,699 20,108
Electronic banking services 14,595 5,993
Settlement and clearing services 11,113 16,715
Consultancy and advisory services B.358 9,050
Custodian and other fiduciary 3,368 3,119
Credit commitment 2,094 2,263
Others 257 194
Subtotal 85,257 100,819
Fee and commission expense
Bank cards (7,228) (5,394)
Electronic banking services (2,623) (1,992
settlement and clearing services (1,487) (1,469)
Others (916) (1,029)
i Subtotal {12.354} {3,884)
Met fee and commission income 72,903 90,935

3 Net trading (loss)/gain

Year ended 31 December

2017
MNet gain on precious metals (1) 3,883 931
Met (lossifgain on foreign exchange rate derivatives (9,703) 4,706
Met {lossiigain on held-for-trading debt securities {2.731) 129
Mot loss on interest rate derivatives (278) (309)
Total (8,829) 5,457

(1F] fet gain on precious metals consists of net gain an precious metals and precious metal related dervative
products.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
4 MNet loss on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss

Year ended 31 December

2017 2016
Net loss on underlying assets and liabilities related
to principal guaranteed wealth management
products {5.306) {1,653}
Het gain on debt securities 1,022 17
Others 1.040 345
Total (3,244) 11,297}

5 Other operating income

Yoar ended 31 Dacembar

2017 2016
Insurance premium 21,899 10,972
Net gainfloss) an foreign exchange 11,021 {98}
Government grant 3,757 2,919
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 850 285
Rental income 538 406
Others 1,937 1.519
Tatal 40,002 16,003

[ Operating expenses

Year ended 31 December

2017 2016

Staff costs {1 113,839 111,536
General operating and administrative expenses (2 45,024 44,440
Insurance benefits and claims 22,552 11,21

Depreciation and amortization 18,279 19,037
Tax and surcharges {3) 4,953 11,449
Provision for guarantees and commitments {2,985) {3,474)
Others 31,606 2,850
Total 205,268 197,049
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
6 Operating expenses (Continued)

(1)  Staff costs

Year ended 31 December

2017 20

Short-term emplayee benefits

Salaries, bonuses, allowance and subsidies 73,140 70,770
Housing funds 8,212 8,638
Social insurance 5,109 5016
Including: Medical insurance 4,611 4,524
Maternity insurance 330 32

Ermployment injury insurance 168 180

Labor union fees and staff education expenses 3,269 2,625
Others 8,799 9,424
Subtotal 98,529 96,473
Defined contribution benefits 15,233 15,304
Early retirerment benafits 7 (241)
Total 113,839 111,538

{2) Included in general operating and administrative expenses is auditor's remuneration of RMB143
millicn for the year, which covered RWMB133 million for financial statements audit service and
RME1D million for non-audit professional service. (2016: RMB141 million, including RMB132
millicn for financial statements audit service and RMBY million for non-audit professional
service).

{3) Business tax for the Group's Domestic Operations was generally calculated at 5% of taxable
income, which was declared and paid to the local tax department by Domestic Operations
prior to 1 May 2016, From 1 May 2016, the Group is subject to value-added taxes on its
income from credit business, fee income on financial services, income from insurance business
and trading of financial products at 6%.

Pursuant to the "Circular regarding Further Clarification of Relevant Paolicies Applicable to
the Financial Sector in the Comprehensive Implementation of the VAT Pilot Programs” (Cai
Shiui [20168] Ma. 46), the Bank elected to adopt a simplified methodology to calculate value-
added taxes at 3% on interest income derived from loans granted to farming households,
rural enterpiises and other fural institutions by county-level sub-branches included in the
Bank's pllot programs of the Sannong Finance Division, including those under the Bank's
provingial branches in provinces, aulonomous regions, municipalities directly under the central
government and municipalities with independent budgetary status as well as those under the
Xinjiang Production and Construction Corps Branch.

City construction and maintenance tax is calculated at 1%, 5% or 7% of VAT for the Group's
Domestic Operations.

Education surcharge s calculated at 3% or 5% of VAT for the Group’s Domestic Operations.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management

(1) Details of the Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Management’s emoluments are as follows (in
thousands of AMEB):

Year ended 31 December 2017

Contribution Other
to retiremaent bensfits
benefil in kind
sthemss [xx)
Executive Dinectoes
Ihou Mubing - 519 80 fi4 43
Ihao Hisan fi - 519 1] fi4 663
Wang Wal {ii} - 467 77 4 RiB
G Ningring fi} - 47 n fi4 (it
Independent Non-Executive Disettors
Wen Tiggun i 410 - - - 410
Frantis Yoen Tin-fan 180 - - - 30
Xiao Xing 380 - - - 380
Wang Xinxin 360 - - - 380
Huang Iheazhing v % = = = 6
Neew-Executae Directors
Inao Chao il i - - - - -
Ihang Dingiong il - - - - -
Chen Jianbo il - - - - -
Hu Xizahui ] - = # = -
X liznchang il - - - - -
Liaa Luming i} i - - - -
Supsrvisors
Wang Kingchun ] - - - - -
Liu Chéngay fa] 0 - - - =
Hia Zonayu [} 0 - - - 50
Li Wang 280 - - - bl
Lv Shugin 280 - - - 180
Senior Management
Gong Chao - 467 mn B4 BB
Kang i i) - 467 mn 64 608
Thang Keqiu () - bG8 120 i3 851
LI Zhicheng i) - 863 126 n 1,009
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management
{Continued)

{1) Details of the Directars’, Supervisars’ and Senior Management's emoluments are as follows (in
thousands of RMEB) (Continued):

Year ended 31 mber 2017
Contribution Other
o retipement benefits
benefit in kind
schemes xn) Total
Exequtive Director resignad
Lou Wenlora [ - 176 E| bi PEE]
Independent Non-Exscutse Directons
resigned
Lia Barsping (vl = - - - -
Non-Exetutive Directars rsigned
Thoa Ke (1] = = * = -
SupenTaTs resigned
Yuan Changgng st} - 80 EL k2 39
Zheng Xin i} 4 - - - 4
X Tuli e} 50 - - - 50
Total 1,340 4572 784 53 8,520

" Fhao Huan i alio the Senior Management of the Group and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the Senfor Management for the pear ended 31
December 2017

i Wang Wei was elected to be Executive Director effective 13 February 2018 and his emoluments
dischosed above only inciude those for services rendered by him as the Senior Management for the
year ended 31 Decamber 2017.

fif)  Guo Ningning was elected ro be Execuiive Director effective 13 February 2018 and her
emaluments disclosed above only include those for services rendered by her as the Senior
Management for the year ended 31 December 2017.

i Wen Tigjun mesigned as independent Non-Executive Director and from positions al relevant special
commiltess of the Board of the Bank due fo the expiry of his term of office in June 2017, Wen
Tiejun will continue fo perfarm his duly as Independent Non-Execulive Director unatll meet the
requirerment that the Independent Non-Executive Directors shall reprosent ar least one-third of the
Board of Direciors.

(7] Huamg Zhenzhong was elecfed lndependent Non-Executive Director effective 25 September 2017,
il These Non-Executive Direclors of the Bank did not receive any fees fram the Bank. Their
emoluments were borme by the major ardinary eguity holders of the Bank. No apportionment
had been made as the Directors considered that it was impracticable to apportion this amount

behween their services to the Group and their services fo the major ordinary equity holders of the
Bank.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management
{Continued)

(1) Details of the Directors’, Supervisors' and Senior Management’s emoluments are as follows (in
thousands of RMB) (Continued):

fwi]  Zhao Chao ceased fo be Non-Executive Director effective 28 February 2018,
fwiif  Liao Luming was elected Non-Execulive Divector effective 31 Acugust 2017,

{ix}  Wang Xingchun did not receive any emoluments for his part-time position as Supervisor
representing shareholders from the Bank in 2017.

ik For Supervisors representing employees of the Bank, the amounts set forth above only included
fees for their services as Supervisors

(e} Kang ¥i was elected Executive Vite Presdent effective 24 January 2017, He ceased to be Executive
Vice President effective 22 January 2018

(et} Zharg Kegiu was elected Executive Vice President effective 28 July 2077.

feil) L Zhicheng was elected Chiaf Risk Officer effective 28 Febvuary 2017,

o) Lou Wenlong ceased fo be Execulive Vice President and Executive Director effective 18 April 2017,

fow)  Lu Sanping ceased to be independent Non-Executhve Director effective 18 Apnl 2017,

fxwi]  Zhou Ke ceazed to be Non-Executive Director effective 31 July 2017,

fuwiil  Ywan Chamgging ceased to be Chairman of the Board of Supervisors effective 6 June 2017,

fwiie)  Zheng Xin ceased to be Supervisor representing employees effective 9 January 2017,

fwix)  Xia Taili ceased to be Supervisor representing employees effective 4 December 2017,

fxx)  Other benefits in kind include the Bank's contrbutions fo medical fund, housing fund and other
social insurances, which are payable fo labour and secunty autharities based on the lower of
cortain percentage of the salaries and allowance oF the prescribed upper limils as requived by the
refevant regulations issued by the government authorities,

The total compensation packages for the above Executive Directors, Supervisors and Senjor

Management for the year ended 31 December 2017 have not yet been finalized in accordance

with regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC at the date of this report. The final
compensation will be disclosed in a separate announcement when determined.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management
{Continued)

{1) Details of the Directars’, Supervisars’ and Senior Management's emoluments are as follows (in
thousands of RMEB) (Continued):

Executive Directors

Zhow Mubing il = 378 20 £l 485
Zhat Huzn () (i) - 64 ] ] Bl
La Wenlong i) - 3 a7 &2 143
Irdependent Mon-Exscutive Direclon
Wen Tiejun 40 - - - 410
Frances Yuen Tis-an 380 - - - 380
Kia Mirs £l - - - 365
Ly Janping i = = = = -
Wang Xinon ¥ i | - - - m
Non-Executie Deectors
Ihag Chag ] - - - - -
Thow Kz W - - - - -
Ihang Dinglang ) - - - - -
Chen Jianba W - = - - -
Hu Xiaghes w = = = = =
i Jiandong i = = = o =
Supevsnmg
Yuan Changgng - 48 100 B 810
Wang Xingchun ) = = = £ +
Zheng Xin )] 30 = = = a0
i Tl fii} 50 - = = 50
Ly Chengeu {ilh fex} 5 - - - 5
i3 Tangya {ai} i} 46 - - - 4
Li Wang 280 = 2 = 280
Ly Shuxgin 280 = - - 80
Senice Managemant
Gang Chao - 583 a7 B2 742
Wang el = 583 97 B2 741
(Guo Ningning i) - k- 57 43 488
Kaeg i (0] - 4 b 5 &0
Thang Kegiu - 1,13 116 133 1 4RE
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management
{Continued)

(1) Details of the Directors’, Supervisors' and Senior Management’s emoluments are as follows (in
thousands of RMB) (Continued):

Exscutme Director resagned

Liu Shayu i} - 108 i 1] 140

Cai Huaxiang o} - 188 ] 42 502
Indepseradent Non-Exaeutive Ditectars

tesigned

Fredesick Ma Si-hang v 150 - - - 150
Senior Management raugned

LI Zhenjiang ) - 146 30 15 191

Lin Xiaomaan o) - 583 a7 B2 141
Total 1,251 Bl 84 857 10,674

i) Zhou Mubing was elected Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director effective |
Sy 2016,

it} Zhao Huan was elected Presdent effective 4 March 2016, Executive Director and Vice Chairman of
the Board of Dvrectors effective 24 March 2016

i) Zhao Huan and Lou Wenlong are alsoe the Senior Management of the Group and their emoluments
dischased above inclede those for services rendered by them as the Senior Maragement for the
year ended 31 Decemnber 2016,

fiw) Lu Kanging resigned as Independent Non-executive Director and from positions of refevant special
commitiees of the Board of the Bank due to work arrangements in December 2015. He ceased fo
be Independent Non-Executive Directar effective 15 Apnil 2017 when the requirements of relevant
regulatary rules and the Articles of Association were met,

fw} Wang Xinxin was elected Independent Mon-Executive Director effective 13 May 2016.

({1 These Mon-Executive Directors of the Bank did not receive any fees from the Bank. Their
emoluments were borme by the major ordinary equity holders of the Bank. No apportionment
had heen made as the Directors considered that it was impracticable to apportion this amount
between their services o the Group and their services to the majar ordinary eguity holders of the
Rank

fvi)  Wang Xagchun did nal receive any emoluments for hs part-lime position a3 Supervisor
representing shareholders from the Bank in 2016

vl For Superwsors representing employees of the Bank, the amounts set forth above only included
fews for their senices as SUpernvizors.

fix) L Chengxu and Xia Jongyy were slected Supentior representing employess effective 5 July
2018,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management
(Continued)

(1) Details of the Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Management's emoluments are as follows (in
thousands of RMEB) (Continued):

(=} Guo Mingning was elected Execulive Vice President effective 6 June 2016,
(a1l Kang ¥ was slected Execulive Vice President effective 24 Janvary 2017,

{xii)  Liu Shiyu ceased to be Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director effective 21
February 2016.

i) Cai Huaxiang ceased to be Executive Vice President and Executive Director effective 14 September
2016,

{xiv)  Frederick Ma Si-hang ceased fo be Independent Non-Executive Dvrector effective 13 May 2016,
(v LiZhenjiang ceased to be Executive Vice President effective 3 March 2016,
fa)  Lin Xiaoswan ceased ro be Executive Vice President effective 16 Decermber 2016

(o) Other benefifts in king inciude the Bank’s contributions to medical fund, housing fund and other
soctal insurances, which ane payable to labowr and securily authorities based on the lower of
certain percentage of the salaries and allowance or the prescribed upper limits as required by the
refevant requlations issued by the government authorifes.

As of the announcement date of 2016 consolidated financial statements, the above
campensation packages for the Directors, Supervisars and Senior Management for the year
ended 31 December 2016 were not finalized and the amount of remuneration of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management recognized and disclosed in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2016 was RMBB 43 million. Supplementary
announcement on final compensation of RMB10.67 million was released by the Bank on 30
August 2017 and the comparative figures for the year ended 31 December 2016 have baen
restated accordingly.

{2)  Five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group

{i) Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none of them are Directors,
Supervisors or Senior Management whose emaluments are disclosed above, The
emoluments of the five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were as follows (in
thousands of RMB):

Year ended 31 December

2017 201E

Basic salaries and allowance 11,158

Discretionary bonuses 10,057 9,352
Contribution to retirement benefit schemes

and other 1,544 93§

Total 22,665 21,508
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management
{Continued)

{2}  Five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group (Confinued)

{il}  The number of these five individuals whose emoluments fell within the following bands

are as follows:
Year ended 31 December
2017 2018
RMB4,000,001 to RMBA, 500,000 yuan 2 4
RIB4,500,001 to RMBS, 000,000 yuan 2 1
AMBS, 000,001 to RMES, 500,000 yuan 1 -

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, no emolument was paid by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as a compensation for loss of office. For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2016, none of the five highest paid individuals waived any emolument

f3) Other benefits and interests of Directors and Supervisors pursuant to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 6§22)

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 20165, no emolument was paid by
the Group to any of the Directors and Supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as a compensation for loss of office. Except for the Annulty Scheme and Pension
Scheme (Note || 7 Employee Benefits), there were no other retirement benefits for Directors
or Supervisors, or consideration provided to third parties for making available Directors® or
Supervisors' services; and none of the Directors or Supervisors waived any emolument, or had
matenial interests, whether directly or indirectly, in any material transactions, arrangements or
contracts in relation to the Group's business for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2016,

The Group enters into credit transactions with the Directors, Supervisors or certain controlled
body corporates and connected entities of the Directors or Supervisors at arm's length in the
ordinary course of business. For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016
and as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the respective balances of loans and
advances from the Group to Directors, Supervisors or certain controlled body corporates and
connected entities of the Directors or Supervisors were not significant. The Group did not
provide any guarantee or security to the Directors, Supervisors or certain controlled body
corporates and connected entities of the Directors or Supervisors in respect of their loans,
quasi-loans or credit transactions.

8 Impairment losses on assets
Year ended 31 December

2017 201¢
Loans and advances 1o customers 92,864 78,928
Held-to-maturity investments 2,145 2,213
Available-for-sale financial assets 651 403
Property and equipment 101 1

Placements with and loans 1o banks and
other financial institutions (2,070) 1,370
Debt instruments classified as receivables {290) 2,603
Other 4,761 928
Total 898,166 BG6,446
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
9 Income tax expense

Year ended 31 December

2017 2016

Current income tax

= PRC Enterprise Income Tax 52,342 37,104
- Hong Kong Profits Tax GAB 400
- Other jurisdictions 302 368
Subtotal 53,292 37,872
Deferred tax (Mote IV 26) I (6,947) i 4,692
Total 46,345 42,564

PRC Emterprize Income Tax is calculated at 25% of the estimated taxable profit for both years, and
alsa includes supplementary PRC tax on Overseas Operations as determined in accordance with the
relevant PRC income tax rules and regulations. Pre-tax deduction items of enterprise income tax are
governed by the relevant tax regulations in the PRC. Taxation arising in other jurisdictions (including
Hong Kong) is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The tax charges for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 can be reconciled to
the profit per the consolidated income statement as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2017
Prafit before tax 239,478 226,624
Tax calculated at applicable PRC statutory tax rate of 25% 59,870 56,656
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (1} (20,284) (14,528)
Tax effect of items such as expenses not deductible

for tax purpose 6,839 490
Effect of different tax rates in other jurisdictions (8D) (54)
Income tax expense 45,345 42 564

{1} Non-taxable income primarnly includes interest income from PRC treasury bonds and municipal

government bonds

10 Dividends

Year ended 31 December

2017
Dividends on ordinary shares declared and paid
Cash dividend related to 2016 (1) 55,215 -
__Cash dividend related to 2015 A2 = 54,176,
55,215 54,176
Dwidends on preference shares declared and paid (4} 4,600 4,600
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
10 Dividends (Continued)
(1} ustribution of fnal dividend for 2016

A cash dividend of RMBD. 17 per ardinary share related to 2016, amounting to RMBS5, 215 milion in
total was approved, affer the required appropriations for the statutory sufplus reserve and the general
reserve for 2016 as deternvined in accordance with the relevant accounfing rules and financial regulations
applicable to FRC enterprises (the “PRC GAAPT, at the annual general meeting held on 28 June 2017.

The above dividend was recognized as distribution and distributed during the year ended 31 December
2017.

2} Distribution of final dividend for 2015

A cash dwidend of RMBO, 1668 per ordimary share related to 2015, amounting fo RMES4E, 176 million in
total was approved, after the required appropnations for the statutory surplus reserve and the general
reserve for 20015 as determined in accordance with the relevant accounting rules and financlal regulations
applicable to PRC enterprises (the "PRC GAAPTL af the annual general meeting held on 27 June 2016

The above dividend was recognized as distribution and distributed during the year ended 31 December
2076,

(3} A final dividend of RMBQ. 1783 per ordinary share m respect af the pear ended 31 Decermnber 2017
fotaling RMBSS, 911 million has been proposed by the directors and (s subject to approval by the ordinary
eqguity holders in the annual general meeting.

4} Pustribution of dividend on preference shares for 2017
A cash dividend ar the dividend rafe of 5.5% per annum related to the second tranche of preference
shares amounting fo RAMB2Z 200 million in total was approved at the Board of Directors’ Meeling held an
13 January 2017 and distributed on 13 March 2017,
A cash dividend at the dividend rate of 6% per annum related to the first tranche of preference shares
amounting fo AMB2 400 million in total was approved at the Board of Dwectors' Meeting held on 9
October 2017 and distributed on & November 2017,
Distribution of dvidend on preference shares for 2016
A cazh dividend at the dividend rate of 5 5% per annum related to the second tranche af preference
shares amounting fo AMB2 200 mulion i fobal was approved at the Board of Directors’ Meeting held an
21 Jarwary 2016 and distrbuted on 11 March 2016,
A cash dvidend at the dividerd rate of 8% per annum related to the first tranche of preference shares

amounting to FMB2 400 million i tefal was approved at the Board of Divectovs® Meeting held on 28
October 2016 and distributed on 7 November 2016,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11 Earnings per share

Year ended 31 December

2017 2016
Earnings:
Frafit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Bank 192.962 183.941
Less: profit for the year attributable to
preference shareholders of the Bank (4,600} {4.600)

Frofit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Bank 188,362 178,341

Mumber of shares;
Weighted average number of
ardinary shares in issue (million) 3;4,.?'54 324,794

Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB yuan) 0.58 0.55

For the purpose of calculating basic eamings per share, cash dividends of RMBA,600 million of
non-cumulative preference shares declared in respect of the year of 2017 was deducted from the
profit for the year attributable to eguity holders of the Bank (2016: RMBA,600 million).

The conversion feature of preference shares is considerad to fall within contingently issuable ordinary
shares, The triggering events of conversion did not occur for the years ended 31 Decemnber 2017 and
31 Decembar 2016, therefore the conversion feature of preference shares has no dilutive effect on
earnings per share calculation.

12 Cash and balances with central banks

As at 31 Dacembaer

2017 2016
Cash 108,497 111,607
Mandatory reserve deposits with central banks {1 2,581,677 2,437,536
Surplus reserve deposits with central banks (2) 43,408 111,753
Other deposits with central banks (3) 163,037 150,757
Total 2,896,619 2,811,653

{1} The Group places mandatory reserve deposits with the PBOC and overseas regulatory bodies These
inciude RMB reserve deposits and foreign currency reserve deposits. These mandatary reserve depasits are
not available for the Group's daily operations,

For Domestic Institutions of the Bank which meet the requirements of "Natice on Performance Apprafsal
Results OF the Sannomg Banking Operations of Agriculfural Bank of China Limited for 2017 sued by
the People’s Bank of China® (¥inbanfa [2017] No. 64) effective 27 March 2017, RMB mandalory reserve
depasits with the PEOC are based on 14 5% of qualified AMB deposits (31 December 2016: 14.5%). For
the remaining Domestic Institutions of the Bank, RME mandatory reserve deposits are based on 16.5%
of gualified RME deposits (31 December 2016; 16.5%). For the overseas participating banks with eligible
AMB deposits, RME mandatory resenie deposits are based on 16.5% of gualified AMB deposits (31
December 2016: 16.5%). Foreign currency mandafory reserve deposits are based on 5% (31 December
2016: 5%) of qualified forergn currency deposits from customers. Mandatory reserve depasits placed by
the Bank's Overseas Qperations are determined based on respective overseas reguiatovy requirements.
The foreign currency resenve deposits placed with the PBOC are non-interest bearing.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
12 Cash and balances with central banks (Continued)

{2} Surplus reserve deposits primanly represent deposits maintuned wath the PBOC in addition to the
mandatory reserve deposits and mainly for the purpase of clearing,

{31 Cther deposits with central banks primarily represent fiscal deposits and forelgn exchange risk reserve
paced with the FEOC that are not available for use in the Group's daily operations. Fiscal deposits are
nan-interest bearing, and the interest rate for foreign exchange risk reserve is currently sst at zero. The
foreign exchange risk reserve is maintained with the PAOC in accardance with the “Notice on Remnforcing
the Macro Prudential Management of Foreign Exchange Transactions® (Yinfa [2015] No. 273) issued by
the PEOC on 31 August 2015, The foreign exchange risk reserve from | lanuary 2016 to 10 Sepfember
2017 was placed on a monthly basis at 20% of the fotal contract amount of customers driven forward
sale of foreign exchange transactions in the preceding manth and will be repayable after 12 months
From 11 September 2017, the foreign exchange risk reserve rate was adjusted to 0% according to the
“Notice on Adjustment of Foreign Exchange Risk Reserves Policy” (Yinfa [2017] No. 207) issued by PROC
on 8 September 2017,

13 Deposits with banks and other financial institutions

As at 31 December

2017 201¢

Deposits with:
Domestic banks 92,355 583,545
Other domestic financial institutions 6,961 6,471
Overseas banks 1,018 32,976
Gross amount 130,334 622,992
Allowance for impairment losses — collectively assessed (89) (327)
Deposits with Banks and
other financial institutions, net 130,245 622,665

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of deposits with banks and other financial institutions
which have been pledged as security was RMB10,598 million (31 December 2016: RMEBG,526
millian}, These deposits were mainly security deposits pledged with clearing house and exchanges.

14 Placements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions

As at 31 December

2017
Placements with and loans 1o

Domestic banks 243,304 222,526

Other domestic financial institutions 189,488 322,216

Crverseas banks and other financial institutions 73,415 39,239
Gross. amount 506,207 583,931
Allowance for impairment losses = collectively assessed {938) (3,032)

Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions, net 505,269 580,949

708 o= LA}

322/436



EDINETOOOO
OOO0o0ooooooonon(e24593)
OoOooooOood
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millicns of Renmanbi, enless otherwise statad)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 Financial assets held for trading

As at 31 December

2017 2016

Debt securities ksued by:

Governments 12,112 3,290

Public sector and guasi-governments 79,368 44, 554

Financial institutions 50,845 46,944

Corporates 21,624 13,307

Subtotal 163,949 108,093
Precious metal contracts 30,691 15,523
Total 194,640 123,618
Analyzed as:

Listed in Hong EKong - 185

Listed outside Hong Kong (1 163,949 1G7.910

Unlisted 30,691 15,523
Total 194,640 123,618

(1) Debt securities raded on the China Domestic Inter-bank Bond Market are included in “Listed outside
Hong Kong™.

16 Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

Debt securities issued by:

Governments 19,352 17.610

Public sector and guasi-governments 651,344 55,220

Financial institutions 52,805 63,045

Caorporates 39,138 35,358

Subtotal 172,639 171,243
Deposits with banks and other financial

institutions 93.741 40,953
Placements with and loans to banks and

other financial institutions 92,388 58485
Others {n 24,557 23,656
Total 383,325 294,337
Analyzed as.

Listed in Hong Kong 3,153 2,685

Listed outside Hong Kong () 163,054 163,101

Unlisted 217,118 128,551
Total 383,325 294,337

1) Orhers mainly include credit assets, equity instruments and fund investments,

21 Debt securities fraded on the China Domestic Inter-bank Bond Markat are included in “Listed ouwtside
Hong Kong ™.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 Derivative financial assets and liabilities

The Group primarily enters into foreign exchange rate, interest rate and precious metal derivative
contracts related to trading, asset and liability management, and customer initiated transactions.

The contractual/notional ameunts and fair values of the derivative financial Instruments entered Into
by the Group are set out in the following tables. The comtractual/notional amounts of derivative
financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with fair values of instruments recognized on
the consolidated statement of financial position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future
cash flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate thi
Group's exposure to oredit or market nisks. The fair value of derivative Instruments become favorable
{assets) or unfavorable {liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange
rates or precious metal prices relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial
assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly.

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group are subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements or similar agreements. The agreement between the Group and the counterparty
generally allows for net setthement of the relevant financial assets and financial liabilities when
both elect to settle on a net basis. In the absence of such an election, financial assets and financial
liabilities will be settled on a gross basis. However, each party to the master netting arrangements
or similar agreements will have the option to settle all such amounts on a net basis in the event
of default of the other party, As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the amount of the
financial assets and financial liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar
agreements are not material to the Group, The Group did not elect to offset these financial assets
and financial liabilities on a net basis. The Group does not hold any other financial instruments, other
than derivatives, that are subject to master netting arrangements or similar agreements,

31 December 2017

Contractual/

notional Fair value
amount Assets Liabilities

Exchange rate derivatives
Currency forwards and swaps, and

Ccross-currency interest rate swaps 1,997,265 24,349 (29,838)
Currency options 62,409 945 (275)
Subtotal 25,294 (30,113)

Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 279,373 1,132 (406)
Precious metal contracts and others 126,596 1,858 {353)
Total derivative financial assets and liabilities 28,284 (30,872)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17 Derivative financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Exchange rate derivatives
Currency forwards and swaps, and

Cross-CUMmency interast rate swaps 1,382,401 25,139 (18,410)
Currency options 119,352 68 (1,353)
Subtotal 25,207 {19,763)

Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 258 523 1,061 (B04)
Precious metal contracts and others 94,506 5,182 (391}
Total derivative financial assets and liabilities 31,4860 {20,758)

Credit risk weighted amount for derivative fransaction counterparties represents the counterparty
credit risk associated with derivative transactions and is calculated in accordance with the “Capital
Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional)” issued by the CBRC which was effective 1 January 2013
and is dependent on, among other factors, creditworthiness of customers and maturity characteristics
of each type of contract. As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the credit risk weighted
amount for derivative fransaction counterparty was measured under the Internal Ratings - Based
approach.

As at 31 December

2017 2016
Credit risk weighted amount for countarparty 22,868 26,601

18 Financial assets held under resale agreements

As at 31 December

2017

Analyzed by collateral type:

Dbt securities 481,056 303,120
Bills 59,330 19,931
Total 540,386 323.051

The collateral received in connection with financial assets under resale agreement s disclosed in Note
IV 47 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
19 Loans and advances to customers

Analysis of loans and advances to customers.

As at 31 December

2017 2016
Corporate loans and advances

Loans and advances 6,527,217 5,803,277
Discaunted bills 187,502 565,948
Subtotal 6,714,719 6,373,225
_Personal loans and advances 4005892 3.340474
Gross loans and advances 10,720,611 9,719,639
Mllowance for impairment losses
Individually assessed (122,311) (133,605)
Collectively assessed (281,989) {266,670)
Total allowance for impairment losses (404,300) (400,275}
Loans and advances to customers, net 10,216,311 9,319,364

Analysis of loans and advances to customers by collective and individual assessments;

Identified
Loars and Identified mmpaired
advances far boans and advances®
Far which hich
dllowanczis allowance s fotal gross
collectively  individisally fiaans and
assessed assessad Subtotal advances
31 December 2017
Gnoss loams and adences 10,526,579 uan 159,805 194032 10THEEN 1.8
Alicwance for impaiee? losses (255.266) (26,723 (1 (148,034} tqpmg}:
Leans and advanges b
Customers, nit 10,211,313 1,504 A 4499 1031830
31 December 2016
Gnoas loans and adances 9,488 805 37,986 192848 10834 4N3639 il
Aliowance for impaiment leses {aren) (28,999) {133,605) {162,604] (+00,275)
Loans and advances to
customers, net 9,251,134 8,987 59043 68,230 9,319,364

{1} Loans and advances for which allowance /s collectively assessed consist of leans and advances which have
nat been specifically identified as impaired.

] identified impained loans and advances include Toans for which obfective ewidence of impafrment exiats

and which have been identified as bearing impairment losses. which are measured either individually
(corporate loans and advances) or collectivedy (personal loans and advances).
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

19

Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

Movements of the allowance for impairment losses on loans and advances to customers:

Year ended 31 December 2017
Individually Collectively

da55855 F_"d assessed
allowance allowance
1 January 2017 133,605 266,670 400,275
Impairment allowance on loans charged 87,588 107,125 194,713
_Reversal of impairment allowance @oiss)  (s1esn)  (101:849)
Met additions 67.430 25,434 92,864
Write-offs and transfer out {82,283} {12,010) {94,293)
Recovery of loans and advances
written off in previous years 4,758 2,343 7,101
Unwinding of discount on allowance {1,097) (353) (1,430)
Exchange difference (122) (95) (217}
31 December 2017 122,31 281,989 404,300

169,343

133,900

1 January 2016 403,243
Impairment allowance on loans charged 96,110 64,216 160,326
Reversal of impairment allowance {21,941) (59,457) (81,398)
Met additions 74,169 4,759 78,828
Write-offs and transfer out (73.949) {8,737) (82,746)
Racovery of loans and advances

written off in previous years 925 1,421 2.346
Unwinding of discount on allowance {1.730) (479) (2,209)
Exchange difference 290 423 T3
31 December 2016 133,605 266,670 400,275
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
20 Available-for-sale financial assets

As at 31 December

2017 201E

Debt securities issued by:

Governments 510,794 464,613

Public sectar and quasi-governments 2.3 383,861

Financial institutions 398,098 153,335

Corporates | 177.671 188,869

Subtotal 1,398,889 1,320,678
Fund investments 3,715 7,015
Equity instruments 7,523 5,370

_Others i 16,298 | S

Total 1,426,420 1,408,881
Analyzed as;
Debt securities

Listed in Hong Kong 85,012 68,431

Listed outside Hong Kong (2} 1,282,278 1.260,325

Unlisted 31,593 61,922
Equity instruments and fund investments and others

Listed in Hong Kong 114 2,354

Listed outside Hong Kong 8,211 9,168

Unllslei (3 19,212 6,680
Total 1,426,420 1,408,881

{1 The Group's other available-for-sale financial assets primanily inciude assets management products
imvested by the Group.

[F4] Debt securities traded on the China Domestic inter-bank Bond Marker are included in “Listed outsige
Hang Kong®

[E1} As at 31 December 2017, untsted equily instruments of the Group amounted te AMB29T million was
measured af cost because their farr value cannol be reflably measured 3T December 2016 RMB321
millign).

214 (prEReny

328/436



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
Amounts in millicns of Renmanbi, enless otherwise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

21 Held-to-maturity investments

Debt securities issued by:
Governments

1,774,655 1,320,638

Public sector and guasi-governments 1,269,267 1,129,986

Financial institutions 302,240 263,950

Corporates 149,146 171,604
Gross amount 3,495,308 2,886,178
Allowance for impairment losses - collectively assessed (8,173} (4,028)

Held-to-maturity investments, net 3,489,135 2,882,152

Analyzed as,
Listed in Hong Kong 6,835 3,518
Listed outside Hong Kong {1 3,456,090 2,868,782
Unlisted 26,210 9 852
Total 3,489,135 2,882,152

(1) Dobt securtties fraded on the China Domestic Inter-bank Bond Market are included in “Listed outside
Hong Kong®.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
22 Debt instruments classified as receivables

As at 31 December

2017 201E

Receivable from the MOF () 271,678 272,023
Special government bond (2) 93,300 93,300
Government bonds 169,336 120,618
Public sector and guasi-government bonds = 49,997
Financial institution bonds 81,075 64,130
Corporate bonds 15,887 20,983
Certificate treasury bonds and savings treasury bonds 3,612 2,990
Others (3) 28,688 25,160
Gross amount B63,576 629,201
Allowance for impairment losses

Individually assessed {2.068) {3.516)

Collectively assessed {1.285) {1,138)
Total allowance for impairment losses {4,353) {4,654)
Debt instruments classified as receivables, net 659,223 624,547
Analyzed as:

Listed in Hong Kong 1 -

Listed outside Hong Kong 204,192 260,266

Unlisted 355,030 364,281
Total 659,223 224,547

(1) Pursuanr fo the “Notice on Relevant lssues Concerning the Disposal of Non-performing Assets of
Agricultural Bank of China® [Cagin [2008] No. 138) issued by the MOF receivable fram the MOF is to be
settled annually over a rentative peviod of 15 years starting fram | January 2008 and bears inferest af the
rate of 3.3% per annum.

{2 Special government bond refers fo the non-transferable bond issuwed by the MOF in 1998 in the aggregate
principal amount of RMES3 3 billion to the Predecessor Entity for capital replenishment The bond wall
mature in 2028 and bears inferest at a fixed rate of 2.25% per annum, starting from | December 2008,

{2}  Other debt instruments classified as receivables are primarily related to investment in unconsolidated
structured entities held by the Group,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

23  Investment in subsidiaries and structured entities

{1)  Investment in subsidiaries

The following are the principal subsidianies of the Group as at 31 December 2017;

(hina Agrnubtral Frasce o, s | Howember 1365 Hongfong FRC  HEDSELTS0.000 1000 MM et hodiog

AEE brbomational Heldngs [mied M hoember W05 Hongong M HIDMTTL 0049 1100 BN Iwsiroen hoidieg

ABC Francal Legsng (2, Lid Whptmbr 00 Tanghal D RMI3000000.000 1M MO0)  Frongaesey

Al Bk of China (LK) it 19 oventer 1011 [adee, S0 000,000 10200 Ho farkeg

Lited Knggions

AECLA Fured Mlarusgeengest [, (i 13 Mach J00E Rungha, FRC L1200 0601 bt SEET SIE - Fund rurigeent

AEC Bemgin Rural Lask Liewied 17 Aot MUK et Monla, PR LR 50 000 S o F Eritrg

Listiliey Compary

REC Fube Hanchean Rurdl Back i T et 00K Habe, PR ki 31,0001 000 am 57 Ertrg

Lt sty Compley

ABC lo Rl Rack Leted 15 ey 10 b, FRL L2 200 D0 H 8m farkng

Lishlity Compary

BEC s Rural Bast Liswid 5 Masch 3000 S, PR L 2 0 o Sem Al firkrg

Linslty Compary

ABC Dhesary Yerghing Batl Birk MAsdi]  Deeg A0 GO0 0 g trieg

Lireitee Lakiity Corpany

ABC Kiamen Torgin Aural Bank by 3l R, L UGN D0O.CC0 1w 5 by

Lierite Liakiiey oopany

S8 e e (o, Lid & 1 Deoeeber 105 BP0 EMEDAHSIGATE L] . Lie e

Agricater Sank of (hea 26 Havener X1k Lumrrboury, LB, 0, 000 10 T bring

sy Lmned Larembinrg

Rgricsttorg B of (hea 1 Deceniser Hild Wowos, Resia FUR, 400000000 L] og.00 Barkeg

Pcrscowt Lrsie]

BB Frandist A vestret o, (M. ) T st 217 Begng PR RIEA.000. 000,000 nam Lo Peklio-anpaity
g and e

i

During the year ended 31 December 2017, other than subsidiary newly established, there
were no changes in the proportion of equity interest or voting rights the Group held in its
subsidiaries.

i

{i

it}

Two of the three directors on the board of ABC Hubei Hanchuan Rural Bank Limited Liability
Company woere appoinied by the Bank. The Bank concluded thar it has effective conirol over this
entify and has included it in its consolidation scope.

On 31 December 2012, the Bank acquired 51% of the fsved share capital of Nahe Life Insurance
Co., [td and renamed it as ABC Life lnsuramce Co, Ltd, (MABC Life Insurance”) and the Group
recognized goodwill of REBT, 381 million as a result of this acquisition.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group and other investors contributed additional
capifal tofally RMBI. 761 millkon to ABC Life insurance, comprising registered capital of RMBII7F
million and capital reserve of RMB2.844 million. After the capital injection, the propartion
af equity interest and wohing nghts the Group held in ABC Life Insurance remained at 57%.
Contribution by mon-contralling inferest amounted to RMB1, 843 million.

As at 31 December 2017, theré was no objective evidence noted for any goodwill impalrment.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Bank established ABC Financial Asset Investment
Co., Ltd. as its wholl-owned subsidiary.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
23 Investment in subsidiaries and structured entities (Continued)

{2)  Structured entities

The Group also consolidated structured entities as disclosed in Note |V 46 Structured Entities.

24  Investment in associate

31 December 31 December

2017

Investment in associate 227 213

On 28 May 2015, the Sino-Congolese Bank of Africa (La Bangue Sino-Congolaise pour I'Afrique,
hereinafter referred to as BSCA Bank), established by the Bank and other investors with authorized
capital denominated in Central African CFA franc ("XAF"), was granted the required banking license
by the local regulatory authority, The Bank holds 50% equity interest and wvoting rights in BSCA
Bank, and has the right to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of BSCaA Bank,
but does not constitute control or joint control over thase policy decisions

25 Property and equipment

Elactronie
equipment,
furniture and Motor Construction
Buildings fintures vehicles  in progress

Cost

1 Japuary 2017 162,858 64,203 8,309 2,031 25740
Additions 1,986 4,176 1,868 4,285 13,315
Transfers 9,794 351 1 {10,145) -
Disposals 838) (3,884) (1,16%) - [5.885)
31 December 2017 173,802 64,8456 10,009 16,170 264,827
Accumulated depraciation

1 January 2017 {54,032) {41,258) {3,128) = (98,818}
Charge for the yaar {7.518) (7,483) (454) - (15.453)
Eliminated on disposals 313 3,841 560 - 4,714
31 December 2017 (61,235) (44,900) (3.022) - (108,157)
Allowance for impairment losses

1 January 2017 (298) (&) 2} ] {314}
Impairment loss - - - (101) {101}
Elimina_ted on disposals % - ) - : 3
31 December 2017 {1'?_!] [Fl {1 {H'I!:l {412}
Carrying value

31 December 2017 112,273 19,933 6,986 16,061 155,158
1 lanuary 2017 104,530 22,937 5179 22,023 158,669
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
25 Property and equipment (Continued)

Cost

1 January 2016 155,284 B2,547 4,585 20,833 243,250

Additians 1.691 6.973 3843 B30 20,817

Transfers 6,824 285 1 {TA11) -
Disposals 1941) {5,603) {121} (1 {6, 656)
31 December 2016 162,858 B4, 203 8,309 22,03 157,40

Accumulated depreciation

1 January 2016 (46,618) {37,278 (2,858) - {86, 754)
Change for the year {7.934) {7,953) (3717 - {16,264)
Eliminated on disposals 520 3.973 107 - 4,600
31 December 2016 (54,032) (41,258 {3,128} = (93,418)

Allowance for impairment lgsses

1 January 2016 1259 L] (2} (8) (318)
Impairment 055 {1} = - - Ll
Eliminated on disposals 4 i - - 5
31 December 2016 1286] 18} 12} (8 (314}
Catryirg vabue

31 December 2016 108,530 12,937 5179 12,023 138,669
1 lanuary 2016 108,367 25,260 1,726 20,825 156,178

According to the relevant laws and regulations, subsequent to the Bank’s transformation into a
joint stock company, the legal title of properties previously held by the Predecessor Entity are to
be transferred to the Bank. As at 31 December 2017, the registration transfer processes of these
transferred properties and other certain properties have not been completed, Management believes
that the incomplete registration transfer process does not affect the rights of the Bank as the legal
successor 1o those assets,
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For thie year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbd, unless othensise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
26  Deferred taxation

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position, certain deferred
tax assels and llabilities have been offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
autherity. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances:

As at 31 December

2017 2016
Deferred tax assets 97,751 83,187
Defesred tax hiabilities (BT) {58)
Net 97,664 83,129

{1y  The following are the movements and major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized:

Fair value
Allowance changas of

for  Accroed but Early financial
impaimaent unpaid  retinment instruments,
losses staff cost bensfits Proitian et

| Rty 2017 75931 6816 131 L] A £
Crackt{charge) to the

(omobdited Rcome

statement L 558 {31 (] 4558 188 G047
Crecit 8o other

COMpIRhensiE indome - - - - 1588 - 1588
31 Decemper 117 18556 1376 40 L&T 1763 i 1644

| Renuary 2016 11185 A1 1531 441 (BEDT) B Gt
|Changeicredil in the

tomobdaled Rcome

stalement 1,254} 17 0 {1,083 ALl ] [4,58F)
Cracht b0 olher

tomprehentsg intome - - - - 6,384 - 6,284
31 December 1016 1593 GEIE 1331 334 (LEE] ] CERPY
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
26 Deferred taxation (Continued)

(2)  Deferred income tax assetsiliabilities) and related temporary differences, before offsetting
qualifying amounts, are attributable to the following items:

31 December 2017

Deductibla/
{taxahle) Deferred
temporary tax assets/
difference  (liabilities)
Deferred tax assets
Aliowance for impairment Iosses 314,625 78,656 303,723 75,931
Fair value changes of
financial instruments 63,486 15,872 24,340 6,085
Accrued but unpaid
staff cost 29,505 7.376 27,270 6,818
Provisian 10,709 2,677 13,590 3,398
Eariy retirerment benefits 3,762 940 5,325 1,331
Others 1,095 274 359 88
.Suhiﬂlaf 423,182 105,795 374,607 93,651

Deferred tax liabilities
Fair value changes of

financial instruments (32,437} {8,109) {41,992} {10,458}
Others (89) {22) {98} (24)
Subtotal l?_I,E} IE,E] (42,090} {10,522)
MNet 390,656 97,664 332,517 83,129

27 Other assets

As at 31 December

2017
Interest receivable 118,693 110,370
Accounts receivable and temparary payments {1) 35,169 78,8998
Land use rights {2) 21,798 22418
Premiums receivable and reinsurance assets 2,903 16,670
Invastment property 2,755 3,213
Intangibile assets 2,737 2,848
Long-term deferred expenses 2,672 3.103
Foreclosed assets 2,666 1,945
Value-added tax receivable 1.581 1,430
Others 5,926 3.834
Total 196,900 244,829

{11 Accounts recevable and termporwy payments primarily include jtems fn the process of clearing and
selthemeant.

(2)  According to the relevant s and regulations, subsequent fo the Bank's fransformation info & joint stock
company, land use rights previously held by the Predecessor Entity are to be rransferred to the Bank, As
at 31 December 2017, the registration transfer process of certain land wse sghts has not been campleted,
Management belfeves that the incomplete regisiration transifer process does nol affect the rights of the
Bank as the legal successor to those land use rights.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
28 Borrowings from central bank

As at 31 December 2017, borrowings from central bank mainly Included Medium-term Lending
Facilities from PBOC amounting to AMB464,500 million {31 December 2016: RMB289,000 million}.

29 Deposits from banks and other financial institutions

As at 31 December

2017 2016
Deposits from:
Domestic banks 117,401 178,354
Other domestic financial institutions 815,908 947,210
Cverseas banks 9,262 5,220
Other owverseas financial institutions _32.155 25,260
Total 974,730 1,156,044

30 Placements from banks and other financial institutions

As at 31 Decembaer

2017
Placements from:
Domestic banks and other financial institutions 92,665 123,108
Owerseas banks and other financial institutions 187,396 178,913
Total 280,061 302,021

31 Financial liabilities held for trading
The financial liabilities held for trading are liabilities related to precious metal contracts.
32 Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December

2007 2016
Principal guaranteed wealth management products 364,151 283,666
Owerseas debt securities 6,503 -
Total 370,654 283,666

The Group designates wealth management products with principal guaranteed by the Group as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The commesponding investments are designated
as financial assets at falr value through profit or loss. As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016, the difference between the fair value of these products issued by the Group and the
contractual amount payable to the holders of these products upon maturity was not material.

For the current and prior year, there were no significant changes in the fair value of the Group's
financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss attributable to the changes in the
Group's own credit risk
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33 Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:
Debt securities
Bills

Total

2017
319,608 205,022
181 810
319,789 205,832

The collateral pledged under repurchase agreement is disclosed in Mote IV 47 Contingent Liabilities

and Commitments - Collateral,

34 Due to customers

As at 31 Dacembaor

Demand deposits

2017 2016

Corporate customers 4,554,308 3,802 828

Individual customers 4,896,269 4,536,249
Time deposits

Corporate customers 1,889,604 1,778,060

Individual customers 4,356,685 4,286,428
Pledged deposits n 305,276 338.065
Othiers 192,137 196,371
Total 16,194,279 15,038,001

(1) Analyzed by activity to which pledged deposits are related to;

Guarantee and letters of guarantee
Trade finance

Bank acceptance

Letters of credit

Others

Total

December
0186

92,174 100,896

80,551 75,375
62,906 86,167
24,856 30,118
44,789 115.?{_]9

305,276 338,065

35 Debt securities issued

As at 31 Decamber
2017

202,107

Bonds issued (1) 246,833

Certificates of deposit issued (2) 196,412 147,245
Commercial papers issued {3 22,915 28711
Interbank certificates of deposit issued {4) 8,B57 10,152
Total 475,017 388,215

A5 at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, there was no default related to any debt securities

issued by the Group.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

35 Debt securities issued (Continued)
(1) The carrying value of the Group’s bonds issued are as follows:
As at 31 December
2017 201E
4.15% RME fixed rate Green Bonds
maturing in October 2017 (i = 00
2.125% USD fixed rate Green Bonds
maturing in October 2018 () 2,614 2775
2.75% UsSD fixed rate Green Honds
maturing in October 2020 {ikiy 1,267 3,468
Medium term notes issued {iv} 45,951 40,383
4.0% subordinated fixed rate bonds
maturing in May 2024 (v 25,000 25,000
5.3% subordinated fixed rate bonds
msaturing in June 2026 {wi) 50,000 50,000
4.99% subordinated fixed rate bonds
meaturing in December 2027 {wriiy 50,000 50,000
5.8% Tier-twa capital fixed rate bonds
meaturing in August 2024 [wiii) 30,000 30,000
4.45% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds
meaturing in August 2027 {ixy 40,000 -
Total nominal value 246,832 202,226
Less: Unamortized issuance cost and discounts 1 (119}
Carrying value 245,833 202,107
Pursuant to the approval by relevant regulatory authorities, the bonds issued by the Group are
set out as below:
i) The RME grewen bonds isued in London m October 2015 have a tenoe of 2 yoars, with a fed
coupon rate 4. 15%, payable semi-annually
i) The U3D green bonds isswed in London in October 2015 have a tenor of 3 years, with a fieed
coupon rate 2. 125%, payable semi-annualiy.
fid) The USD green bonds isved in London in Octobér 2015 have a tenor of 5 years, with a fixed
coupan rate 2.75%, payable serm-annually
fivl  The medium term notes (“AMTNS") were issued by the Ovevseas Operations of the Group and are
measured at amortized cost. The detalls of medivm term nobes issued were as follows
As at 31 December 2017
Oetstanding
Maturity dates ranging from  Coupon rates (%) balance
Fixed rate USD MTNs May 2018 to June 2021 1.875-3.60 2175
Fimed rade RMB MTHs Dacernber 2018 to December  2.375-3.80 2,761
2018
Floating rate USD MTN: May 2018 to September 2019 3-month USD LIBOR 13,068
plus 0.75 to 0.98
Fixed rate HED MTHs August 2018 te Avgust 2020 1.43-2.18 2,613
Finating rate HEKD MTNs September 2020 3-manth HKD HIBOR 334
plus .78
Total 45,951
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
35 Debt securities issued (Continued)

i1} The carrying value of the Group's bands issued are as follows (Continued):

vl The medium term notes (“MTNs") were jssued by the Overseas Operations of the Group and are
measured at amortized cost. The details of medium ferm notes issued were as follows (Continwed):

Fixed rate USD MTNs Cetober 2007 fo June 2021 1.875-2.875 26,769

Fived rate RME MTNs May JO17 to August 2079 J 35-3.80 3.350

Floating rate USD MTH: March 2017 to Septembar F-month USD LIBOR a.781
2019 plus 0.75 10 1,33

Fored rare ELIR MTNs March 2017 048 F65

Jero coupon LSD MTN Febvuary 2007 - 118

Total 40387

v} The subordinated fived rafe bomds issued in May 2009 hawe a tenor of 15 years, with a fied
coupan rate of 4.0%, pavable annually The Bank has an aption to redeem all of the bonds af face
value on 20 May 2019. If the Bank did not exercize this option, the coupon rate of the bonds will
increase o 7.0% per annum from 20 May 2019 onwards.

il The subordinated fixed rafe bonds isswed in Jume 2011 have a tenor of 15 years, with a fixed
coupan rate of 5 3%, payable annually. The Bank has ap option fo redeem all of the bonds at
face value on 7 June 2021, If the Bank did not exercise this option, the coupan rate of the bonds
would remain at 5.3% per anpum from 7 June 2021 onvwards.

{wif}  The subordinated fixed rate bonds sswed i December 2012 have a tenor of 15 years, with a fixed
coupon rate of 4.99%, payable annually The Bank has an option fo redeem all of the honds at
face value on 20 December 2022 [f the Bank did not exercise this option, the coupon rate of the
bonds would remain at 4.99% per annum from 20 December 2022 onwards.

fwirl)  The Ter-two capital bonds Esued n Avgust 2014 have a tenor of 10 years, with & fixed coupan
rate af 5.8% payable annually. The Bank has an option to redeem part or all of the bonds at
face value on 17 August 2019 if specifred redemption condiions a3 stipulated in the offering
documents were met, subject to regulatory approval, If the Bank did not exercise this aption,
the coupon rate of the bonds would remain at 5.8% per annum from 18 August 2019 envwards,
These Tier-two capital bonds have the write-down feature of & Tier-two capifal instrument, which
allows thie Bank ta wite down the entire principal of the bends when regulatorny IRGOeAnGg #vens
a3 stipulated in the offering documents eccur and any accumulated unpaid inferest would become
not payable, and, they ame gualified a5 Tier-twe Capital Instruments in accordance with the CBRC
requirements.

[(14] The Tier-two capital bonds issued in October 2017 have a tenor of 10 years, with a fixed coupon
rate of 4.45% payable annwvally The Bank has an option fo redeem parnt or all of the bonds at
face value on 16 September 2022 if specified redemption conditions as stipulated in the offering
documents ware met, subject to regulatory approval If the Bank did not exercize this option, the
coupon rate of the bands would remain at 4.45% per annum from |7 September 2022 onwards.
These Tier-two capital bonds have the write-down feature of a Tier-two capital instrument, whick
atlows the Bank to write down the entire principal of the bonds when regulatory friggening events
as stipwlated in the offering documents occur and any accumuwlated unpaid interest would become
not payable, and; they are gualified as Tier-two Capital Instruments in accordance with the CBRC
requirements.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

35 Debt securities issued (Continued)

{2  As at 31 December 2017, the certificates of deposit were issued by the Overseas Operations
of the Group and were measured at amoriized cost. The terms of the certificates of depasit
range from one month to seven years, with interest rates ranging from 0% to 5.06%. As
at 31 Decemnber 2016, the terms ranged from one month to seven years with interest rates

ranging from 0% to 5.8%.

(3} As at 31 December 2017, the commercial papers were issued by the Overseas Operations of
the Group and were measured at amortized cost. The terms of the commercial papers range
from two months to one year, with interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.36%. As at 31
December 2016, the terms ranged from one month to two years, with interest rates ranging

from 0.03% to 6.4%.

(4) Asat 31 December 2017, the interbank certificates of deposit were issued by the Bank's Head
Office. The terms of the interbank certificates of deposit range from one month to six months,
with interest rates ranging from 4.30% to 4.60%. As at 31 December 2016, the terms ranged
from one month to two years with interest rates ranging from 2.68% to 4.39%.

36 Other liabilities

As at 31

2017

December

Interest payable

Insurance habilities

Clearing and settlement

Staff costs payable (1
Income taxes payable

Provision

VAT and other taxes payable

Amount payable 1o the MOF (2}
Darmant accounts

Others

218,805
73,869
47,126
40,222
32,842
10,709

7,322
3,154
2,469
44,913

491,431

229,115
715,728
87,993
39,902
16,356
13,520
2,222
26,293
1,782
49,338

545,319

(1)  Staff costs payable

As at 31 December
2017 20018
Short-term amployse benafits (i 35,894 33,956
Defined contributicn benefits {ii) 566 621
Early retirement benefits {iliy 3,762 5,325
Total 40,222 39,902
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

36 Other liabilities (Continued)

{1) Staff costs payable (Continued)

(i} Short-term employee benefits

2017

Salaries, bonuses, allowance

1 January

Increased

Decreased

31 December

and subsidies (2l 25,524 13,140 (71,835) 26,829
Housing funds (2] 155 B.212 {2,210} 157
Social insurance meludng; {3l 176 5,109 (5,114) m

- Medical insiance 156 4611 {4,608) 159

= Matetnity msurance 16 330 {339) 7

- Employment injury insurance 4 1628 {167) §
Labor union fees and staff

education expenies 4,418 3,269 {2,343) 5,344
(rhers 3,663 8,799 {5,089] 3333
Total 33,956 98,529 {96,591) 35,504

Salaries, bonuses,

allewance and subsidies {a} 23713 70,770 169,015 35,524
Housing funds. {a) 178 B.638 {8.661) 155
Secial Irsurance ncluding: (a} 124 5016 {4,964) 176

= Medical insurance 107 4,504 (4,475) 156

- Matemity msurance L) 312 (305) 16

- Employment injury insurance 8 180 (184 4
Lakor unicn fees and staff

education expenses 3981 1,625 (2,188) 4,418
Others 3,665 0474 {2, 406] 3,683
Total 1,721 36,473 94,238) 33,956

{a) Salames, bonuses, allowance and subsidies, howsing funds and social insarance are timely
distributed and paid in accordance with the relevant laws and reguilations and the Group’s
palicy:
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

36 Other liabilities (Continued)
(1)  Staff costs payable (Continued)

{ii) Defined contribution benefits

1 January

Basic pensions 456
Unemployment insurance 15
Annuily S5cheme 130
Total 621

2017
Increased
11.413

5
3,469

15,233

{15,288)

Decraased 31 December
{11,342)
(354)
{3,592)

527
32
7

566

i |
Basic peEnSIOns 396

Unemployment insurance 44
Annuity Scheme 5
Total 445

11,332
545
3,427

15,304

(11,272}
(554)
{3,302)

{15,128)

456
35
130

621

The defimed contribution benefits are timely distributed and paid in accordance with the

relevant laws and regulations and the Group's policy,

(iii)  Early retirement benefits

1 January

Early retiremant benelits 5,325

2017
Increased

7

(1,640)

Decreased 31 December

3.761

1,724

Early retirement benefits

1241)

Decreased

(2,058)

31 Decembr

5,325
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

36 Other liabilities (Continued)
{1) Staff costs payable (Continued)
(i)  Early retirement benefits (Continued)
The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations were as
fallows:
As at 31 December
2017 201¢
Discount rate 3.80% 3.05%
Annual average medical expense growth rate B.00% 8.00%
Annual subsidies growth rate B.00% B8.00%
Maormal retiremant age
- Male &0 L]
- Famale 55 ]
Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are based on the China Life
Insurance Mortality Table (year 2010 — 2013) (published historical statistics in China).
Any difference arising from the actual result or changes in assumptions may affect the
amount of expense recognized in the consolidated income statement,
{2) Amount payable to the MOF
Pursuant to the “Notice on Relevant lssues Concerning the Disposal of Non-performing
Asgsets of Agricultural Bank of China® (Caijin [2008] No. 138) issued by the MOF the MOF
commissioned the Bank to manage and dispose of non-performing assets transferred. The
amount payable 1o the MOF represents proceeds collected by the Bank from the disposal of
these non-performing assets on behalf of the MOF
37 Ordinary shares

There was no change in the Bank’s ordinary share capital during the current and prior year.

As at 31 December
2017 and 2016

Number

of shares
{millions)

Registered, ssued and fully paid:

A shares of RMB1 each 294,055
H shares of RMB1 each 30,739
Total 324,794

Nominal value

294,055
40,739

324,794

A share refers to the ordinary shares listed in the Mainland China. They are offered and traded in
RMEB. H share refers to the ordinary shares listed in Hong Kong. Their par value is denominated in

RME when they were initially offered and are currently traded in HKD.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, all of the Bank's A Shares and H Shares were nof

subject to lock-up restriction.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

38 Preference shares

Issued price
Dividend rate {RMB yusn)

Figleenie thares 6% pet annum fof the first § yeers i 40 40000 Momdurtydstz o conversion

- first tranche altet sance, and repriced during the yeat
ey 5 yeart 2 slated below
Pigleznie thares 5.5% pe anvriam fof the first § years i 40 0000 Momdfurtydste Mo conversion
—second franche alter eraece, and regriced svery durmg the yesr
§ ey 6 stuted below

Theé Bank was authorized to issue 800 million preference shares of RMB100 each, pursuant to the
approval by its ordinary equity holders and relevant regulatory authorities.

The first tranche of 400 million preference shares were issued at par in November 2014, The carrying
amount, net of direct ssuance expenses, was RMB39,944 million as at 31 December 2017, The first
tranche preference shares bear a dividend rate of 6% per annum, dividends are non-cumulative
and where payable, is paid annually, for the first five years from issuance. The dividend rate will be
repriced every five years thereafter with reference to the five-year PRC treasury bonds yield plus a
fixed premium of 2.29%.

The second tranche of 400 million preference shares were issued at par in March 2015, The
carrying amount, net of direct issuance expenses, was RMB39,955 million as at 31 December
2017, The second tranche preference shares bear a dividend rate of 5.5% per annum, dividends
are non-cumulative and where payable, is paid annually, for the first five years from issuance. The
dividend rate will be re-priced every five years thereafter with reference to the five-year PRC treasury
bonds yield plus a fixed premium of 2.24%,

There were no changes in the carrying amounts of the preference shares since issuance,

As authorized by the ordinary equity holders in the annual general meeting, the Board of Directors
has the sole discretion to declare and distribute dividends on preference shares, The Bank shall not
distribute any dividends to its ordinary equity holders before it declares such dividends to preference
shareholders for the relevant period. The distribution of preference shares dividend is at the Banks
discretion and is non-cumulative, Preference shareholders are not entitled to participate in the
distribution of retained profits except for the dividends stated above,

The Bank has redemption option when specified conditions as stipulated in the offering documents
are met, subject to regulatory approval, whereas preference shareholders have no right to require the
Bank to redeem the preference shares.

Upcn ligquidation, the claims of preference shareholders have pricnty over ordinary equity holders
on the residual assets of the Bank, but are subordinated to those of depositors, general creditors,
Tier-two Capital Instruments holders or any other subordinated debt holders with equivalent rights.

Upon occurrence of the triggering events as stipulated in paragraph 2(3) of the Guidance of the
China Banking Regulatory Commission on Commercial Banks' Innovation on Capital Instruments
(CHRC Mo, 56 [2012]) and subject to regulatory approval, preference shares shall be mandatorily
converted into ordinary A shares of the Bank at the conversion price of RMEZ2.43 yuan per shara,
partially or entirely, The conversion price of the preference shares will be adjusted when certain
events occur including bonus issues, rights issue, capitalization of reserves and new issuances of
ordinary shares, subject to terms and formulas provided for in the offering documents, to maintain
the relative interests between preference shareholders and ordinary equity holders,

These preference shares are classified as eguity instruments, and presented as equity in the

consolidated statement of financial position, and; are qualified as Additional Tier-one Capital
Instruments in accordance with the CBRC requirements.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 Capital reserve
The capital reserve represents the premium related to ordinary shares issued by the Bank in 2010
Share premium was recorded in the capital reserve after deducting direct issue expenses, which

consisted pnmarily of underwriting fees and professional fees.

40 Investment revaluation reserve

2017
Gross
amount Tax effect Net effect
1 January 2017 4,775 (1,197) 3,578
Fair value changes on available-for-sale
financial assets
- Amount of losses recognized directly
in other comprehensive income {31,348} 7,752 (23,596)
- Amount removed from other comprehensive
income and recognized in profit or loss 438 (110) 328
31 December 2017 {26,135) 65,445 (19,690)

1 January 2016 29,90 {7.478) 22,429
Fair value changes on available-for-sale

financial assets

- Amount of losses recognized directly

in other comprehensive income (24,570) 6,140 (18,4200

- Amount removed from other comprehensive
income and recognized in profit or loss {562) 141 (421)
31 December 2016 4,775 {1,197) 3,578

41 Surplus reserve

Under PRC Law, the Bank m required to transfer 109% of its net profit determined under the PRC
GAAP 1o a non-distnibutable statutory surplus reserve, Appropriation to the statutory surplus reserve
may cease when the balance of this reserve has reached 50% of share capital. Pursuant to the
resolution of the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 26 March 2018, an appropriation of 10% of
the profit for the current year, determined under the generally accepted accounting principles of
the PRC, to the statutory surplus reserve, in the amount of RMB19,171 million (20156: RMB18,294
million) was approved. In addition, certain-subsidiaries and overseas branches also appropriated
surplus reserves in accordance with local requirements.

Subject to the approval of the ordinary equity holders, the statutory surplus reserves can be used for
replenishing accumulated losses or increasing the Bank's ordinary share capital, The statutory surplus
reserves amount used to increase the ordinary share capital is limited to a level where the balance
of t_hneI statutory surplus reserves after such capitalization is not less than 25% of the ordinary share
capital.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
42 General reserve

Pursuant to Caijin [2012] No. 20 “Requirements on Impairment Allowance for Financial Institutions”
(the "Requirement”) issued by the MOF, effective 1 July 2012, in addition to impairment allowance,
the Bank establishes a general reserve within ordinary equity halders’ equity through the
appropriation of profit to address unidentified potential impairment risks. The general reserve should
not be less than 1.5% of the aggregate amount of risk assets as defined by the Reguirement. The
general reserve includes regulatory reserve appropriated by the Bank's overseas branches (" Cwverseas
Institutions”) purseant to local regulatary requirements.

Pursuant to relevant PRC regulatory requirements, some domestic subsidiaries of the Bank are
required to appropriate certain amounts of their net profit as general reserves.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group transferred RMB32,445 milllon {2016:
RMB22,699 million) to the General Reserve pursuant to the regulatory requirements in the PRC and
overseas jurisdictions. Of this amount, RMB31,947 million (2016: RME22,464 million) related to the
appropriation proposed for the year ended 31 December 2016 which was approved in the annual
general meeting held on 28 June 2017,

On 26 March 2018, the Board of Directors' meeting approved a proposal of appropriation of
RMES,380 million to general reserve. Such appropriation will be recognized in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements after approval by ardinary equity holders in the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

43 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the
fallowing balances with an osiginal maturity of three months or (85

As at 31 December
2017

Cash 108,497 111,607

Balance with central banks 45,847 114,830
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 98,590 168,369
Placements with and loans 1o banks and

other financial instituticns 252,570 172,012
Financial assets held under resale agreements 495,742 260,880
Total 1,001,246 B27 698
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 Operating segments

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal management reports with respact to
the components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Board and relevant management
committees, which constitute the chief aperating decision makers, for the purposes of allocating
resources to segments and assessing their performance, The Group's chief operating decision makers
review three different sets of financial information based on (i) geographical locations, (i) business
activities and (i) County Area and Urban Area banking business.

The measurement of segment assets and habilities, as well as segment revenue, expense and results
15 based on the Group's accounting policies. There is no difference between the accounting policies
used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and those wsed in preparing the
operating segment information.

Transactions between segments are conducted under normal commercial terms and conditions.
Internal charges and transfer pricing are determined with reference to market rates and have been
reflected in the performance of each segment.

Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis,

Geographical operating segments

The details of the geographical operating segments are as follows:

Head Office

Yangtze River Delta: Shanghai, Hangsu, Zhejiang, Ningbo

Pearl River Delta; Guangdong, Shenzhen, Fujlan, Xiamen

Bohai Rim: Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Shandong, Qingdao

Central China: Shanxi, Hubel, Henan, Hunan, Jiangxi, Hainan, Anhul

Western China: Changging, Sichuan, Guizhou, Yunnan, Shaanxi, Gansu, Qinghai,
Nimgxia, Xinjiang (including Xinjiang Bingtuan), Tibet, inner Mongolia,
Guangyi

Mortheastern China: Liaoning, Hellongjiang, Jilin, Dalian

Overseas and Others: Subsidiaries and overseas branches
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 Operating segments (Continued)

Geographical aperating segments (Continued)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 Operating segments (Continued)

Geographical operating segments (Continusad)

For the year ended
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 Operating segments (Continued]
Business operating segments
The details of the business operating seaments are as follows:
Corporate banking
The corporate banking segment provides financial products and services 1o corporations, government
agencies and financial institutions. The range of products and services includes corporate loans and
advances, trade finance, deposit products, corporate wealth management services and aother types of
corporate intermediary services.
Personal banking
The personal banking segment provides financial products and services to individual customers, The
range of products and services includes personal loans, deposit products, card business, personal
wealth management services and other types of personal intermediary services.
Treasury operations
The Group's treasury operations conduct money market and repurchase transactions, debt
instruments investments, precious metal transactions and derivative transactions for its own accounts
or on behalf of customers,
Others
Others comprise components of the Group that are not attributable to any of the above segments,

along with certain assets, liabilities, income or expenses of the Head Office that could not be
allocated on a reasonable basis.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 Operating segments (Continued)

Business operating segments (Continued)

Corporate Personal Treasury Consolidated
banking banking operatbons Cthers total
For the year ended 31 December 2017
Extemal inferest mcome 188,485 156,017 60417 &% 713,699
External inferest axpense (84,260)  (143,031) (42,375) (2.103) [271,758)
Intersegment mienest Income/lexpense| 4603 1597% (164.393) = -
fl L b e L
Fee and commission ncome 41345 41,572 - 13315 85,257
Fee and commission expense {8,801) (T421) (2 {39 (12,354)
Het fee and commission incoms ITA3E 34,150 (2 1287 12,903
Wet trading boss B N {8, 765) {63) 8,529)
Het gamijoss) on firancial mstrumends
dedigrated a1 fair value threugh profit of los 338 {5,630} 1,086 962 {3.244)
et (losshigan on imvestment securities - - (247 983 136
Other operating incoeme L8 1534 11470 310 40,002
Dpserating income 149,333 205,530 56,590 1,043 541 8098
Cperating expenizs (G&169)  (e&182)  (22,326)  (26.591) (205,258)
Impairment keses on aels {92,510) (36100 (391) (1.555) (98,186)
Operating prafid 88,554 114,138 33873 189 139.464
Share of results of associates - =] =.. " "
Profit before tar 58,554 114,138 334 193 139478
Intome tax experrie HEJLEI
Prodit fo the year 193,133
Deprecation and amedtEation inchadsd
in opEaling SXpenses 3,500 10,653 3,744 22 18,279
Capital expenditure 1526 1518 1635 193 15,615
A1 3V Docember 2017
Segment assets 6,584,597 4468376  9.635.618 267,040 10,955,631
Intludeg: Invesirment in associate - - - a b
Unabocated assets 97,751
Takad meets 11,053,381
Segment liabilites [.306002) (10302042) (1826,344)  (156,668)  (19,591,056)
Unahiozated fiabdties (32.529)
Total kabilities {19,623 %85)
Credif commitments 1,234,005 514,873 - - 1,748,878
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 Operating segments (Continued)

238 (Drosenn

Business operating segments (Confinued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
Extornal interest incoeme 281,890 135,226 235294 41 657,180
External inferest expenze (89,004} (148393 (20.484) {1,225 1259.086)
Inter-segment interest (expenseMincome (3,993) 167,567 (163,574} - -
Net interest income 188,893 154,403 51,256 3,552 398,104
Fee and commission income 53339 46,209 = 1,271 100,812
Fee and comemission axpense (3,193) (6,642 (2} {47 18,884)
Net fee and commission income 50,146 39,567 (2 1,224 90,935
et trading gain 184 - 5,116 57 5,457
Het gaindloss) en financial instruments

designated at fair value through
profit or loss 183 {1,639 {206) 355 {1,2a1)
Het gain on mvestment sacuribies - - 289 631 920
Other operating incomefexpense) 2,153 1,884 (4£] 12,012 16,003
Operating incame 241,764 194,215 56,317 17,832 510,128
Operating expenses (70,0250 (B9683)  (M0.957) (16,383} (197,045)
Impairment Iosses on assels (55,612} (24,061 (6,187) (596) (BE, 445}
Dperating profit 116,127 B0, 4E1 29,178 B47 226,633
Share of results of associates - - - () ()
Profit befare tax 116,127 BO.4B1 29178 38 126,624
Income tax expense (42,564)
Profit for the year 184,060
Depreciation and amortization included

in operating expanses 38 11,298 3,797 120 19,037
Capital expanditure 3,740 11,034 3715 4412 2ra
At 31 Decembaer 2016
Segment assets 6332417 3,730,843 9,223.479 200,035 19,486,874
Including: Investrment in associate - - - 13 213
Unallocated assets 83,187
Total assets 18,570,061
Segmen! liabifities (6,778,331} {9,760.B85) (1,542.284) (150,556) (18,232,056}
Unilfocated Eabilities {16,214
Total liabilities (16,248,470}
Credit commitments 1,234,807 359,527 & = 1,634,334
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 Operating segments (Continued)
County Area and Urban Area segments

The Group's operating segments arganized by County Area and Urban Area banking business are set
out as follows:

County Area banking business

The Group’s County Area banking business provides a broad range of financial products and
services 1o customers in designated County Area, through its operating branches in the counties or
county-level cities throughout the PRC. The products and services mainly comprise loans, deposits,
bank cards, and other types of intermediary services,

Uirban Area banking business

The Group's Urban Area banking business comprises all banking activities outside of the County Area
banking business, overseas branches and subsidiaries.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 Operating segments (Continued)

200 | (prunsmy

County Area and Urban Area segments (Continued)

County Area

banking

Urban Area
banking
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Consolidated

business business  Eliminations total
For the year ended 31 December 2017
External interest income 157,305 556,394 713,699
External interest expense 185,537) (185,232) - (271,783)
[ntes-sagment intesest incomalexpensel 106,176 (106,178) -
Met intenest income 176,944 264,986 - 441,930
Fiee and commission income 34,442 50,815 - 85,257
Fee and commission expense {4,423) {7.931) - (12,354}
Bet foe and commission ncomse 30,019 42,584 - 72,903
Med trading ganfloss) &8 (8,317) - 18,825}
et boss on financial instruments
designated at fair valwe through profit or loss (1,407} (1,837) - {3,244)
et gain on imesiment securities - 136 - 135
_Other operating income 5936 34,046 = 40,002
Operating ncome 211,600 331,298 - 542,898
Operating expenses (83,915) {121,353) - (205,268)
Impairment lotses on assats {44,474) {53,692) - {98,168}
Operating profit LERAR 156,253 - 130,464
Share of results of associates - L] - 14
FProfit befare tax RENAL] 156,267 - 139,478
[ncome tax expenss {!fj_li]
Frofit for the year 193,133
Depreciation and amortization included in
operating expenses 8,395 5,884 18,279
Capital expenditure 4,440 11,175 15,615
At 31 December 2017
1 assels 7,585,643 13,400,362 {30,374) 20,955,631
Including: Investmant in associate - m - w
Unallocated assels §7.751
Total xsels 21,053,382
Seqment liabilines (7,097,974)  (12,523,456) 30,374 (19,591,056}
Unallocatad liabilities (32,925)
Total iabilities (19,623,985}
Credit commitments 449,431 1,295,447 - 1,748,878
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 Operating segments (Continued)

County Area and Urban Area segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
Extarnal interest income 143,479 s13.01 - 657,150
External intevest expense (E8,268) (170,818) = {25%,086)
Intes-sagrment interest incamadexpanse) 102,598 {102, 598) - -
Het interest income 157.809 240,295 - 396,104
Fee and Commesion income 35,605 65,214 - 100,819
Fee and commission expense {3,718) {6,166} - (9,684}
Net fee and commission incomi 31,887 59,048 - 90,535
Met trading gain 17 5440 - 5.457
Het gainkloss) on financial Instrumenits designated

at fair walue through prodit or loss 19 {1,310} - £1.291)
Het gain on investment seclrities - 420 - 920
Other operating income 4,519 11,424 = 16,003
Oipsrating Income 184,311 315817 - 510,128
Operating expenses (B4,205) {112,844) - (187.049)
Impatrmant |osses on assets 144, 136} {42 260 - |86, 445)
Opserating profit 65,020 180,713 - 226,633
Share of results of associates = i9) = {3
Profit before fax 65,920 180,704 = 226,624
Income tas expense (42 564)
Prefit for the year 184,060
Depreciation and amartization included in

opsrating expenses B85S 10,182 - 18,037
Capital expenditure 5404 17,427 - 2252
At 31 December 2016
Segment assefs 7040416 12,554,090 (107,832 19,486,874
Including: Investment in associate = 13 il AL
Unallocated assats 83,187
Total assats 19,570,061
Segment abdties (6,558,859,  (11,740,829) 107,632 (18,232.058)
Unallocated Habalites (16,414
Total liablities (18,248,470
Credit commitments 380,805 1,253,528 - 1,634,334
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

45 Related party transactions
(1) The Group and the MOF

As at 31 December 2017, the MOF directly owned 39.21% (31 Dacember 2016: 39.21%) of
the ordinary shares of the Bank,

The MOF is a Chinese government ministry, primarily responsible for managing state fiscal
revenue and expenditure, and establishing and enforcing taxation policies. It repons to the
Chinese State Council.

The Group had the following balances and transactions with the MOF in its crdinary course of
business under normal commercial terms:

As at 31 Decembaear

2017 201
Assets
Treasury bonds and special government bond 604,345 640,131
Receivable from the MOF (Note IV 22) 271,678 272023
Interest receivable
- treasury bonds and special government bond 6,132 7,648
= receivable from the MOF 125 3,802
Other accounts receivable 10,147 13,147
Liahilities
Amount payable to the MOF (Note IV 36) 3,154 26,293
Customer deposits 8,127 10,265
Interest payable 44 23
Other lability
- redemption of treasury bonds on behalf of
the MOF a7 102

Year ended 31 December

2017 2016
Interast iIncome 28,778 29,607
Interest expense {213) {189)
Fee and commission income 1,009 15.072

Interast rate ranges for transactions with the MOF during the year are as follows:

Year anded 31 Dacembear

2017

Treasury bonds and receivable from the MOF 2.25-9.00 1.94-9.00
Customer deposits 0.05-2.12 0.05-1.76

201¢E

The Grouwp's redemption commitment for treasury bonds underwriting is disclosed in Wote |V
47 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 Related party transactions (Continued)
{2) The Group and Huifin
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. ("Huijpin®) 15 a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Investment
Corparation, Limited, which Is incorporated in Beijing, PRC. Huijin was established to hold
cartain equity interests in state-owned financial institutions as authonzed by the Chinese State
Council and does not engage in other commercial activities. Huljin exercises its legal rights and
assumes obligations related to the Bank on behalf of the PRC Government.

As at 31 December 2017, Huijin directly owned 40.03% (31 December 2016; 40.03%) of the
ardinary shares of the Bank.

Transactions with Huijin

The Group had the following balances and transactions with Huijin in its ordinary course of
business under normal commercial terms:

As at 31 December

2017 2016

Assels
Loans and advances to customers 28,000 -
Investment in debt securities 13,839 12,103
Interest receivable m 145
Liabilities
Principal guaranteed wealth management

products issued by the Bank 15,000 7,000
Customer deposits 5,301 7
Interest payable 122 49

Year ended 31 December

2017 2016
Interest income 1,029 463
Interast expanse (903) (518)

Interest rate ranges for transactions with Huijin during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2017 2016

% %

Loans and advances to customers 3.92-4.35 -

Investment in debt securities 3.32-4.98 3.16-4.20
Principal guaranteed wealth management products

issued by the Bank 2.95-4.41 2.90-5.00

Customer deposits 1.26-1.76 1.38-2.80
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

45 Related party transactions (Continued)
{2) The Group and Huifin (Continued)
Transactions with companies under Huijin
Huijin has equity interests in certain other banks and financial institutions under the diraction
of the Chinese government. The Group enters into transactions with these banks and financial

institutions in the ordinary course of business under normal commercial terms. Corresponding
balances with these banks and financial institutions were as follows:

As at 31 December

2017 2016

Astets
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 28,959 120,985
Precious metal leasing 2,081 530
Placernents with and loans to banks and

other financial institutions 42,563 56,783
Derivative financial asseis 4,642 2,671
Financial assets held under resale agreements 30,335 74,740
Loans and advances to customers 17,548 12,876
Investment securities 742,623 817,129
Liabilities.
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 39,220 63,007
Placements from banks and other financial institutions 44,498 85,744
Derivative financal liabilities 1,929 2,238
Financial assets sold under repurchase agresments 16,405 12,438
Equity
Freference shares 2,000 2,000

Off-balance sheet items
Non-principal guaranteed wealth management
products issised by the Bank 2,943 22,642

(3) The Group and other government related entities

Other than disclosed above, a significant portion of the Group’s banking transactions. are
entered into with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other 5tate controlled
entities. These transactions are entered into under normal commercial terms and conditions
and mainly include provision of credit and guarantee, deposits, foreign exchange transactions,
derivative transactions, agency services, undenwriting and distribution of bonds issued by
government agencies, purchase, sales and redemption of investment securities issued by
government agencies

Management considers that these transactions are activities conducted in the ordinary course
of business, and that the dealings of the Group have not been significantly or unduly affected
by the fact that the Group and those entities are government related. The Group has also
established pricing policies for products and services and such pricing policies do not depend
on whether or not the customers are government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
State controlled entities,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

45 Related party transactions (Continued)

f4) The Bank and its subsidiaries

The Bank had the following balances and transactions with its subsidiaries in its ordinary

course of busimess under normal commercial terms.

As at 31 December

2017 '0

Assets
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 3
Placements with and loans to banks and

other financial institutions 11,067 11,411
Loans and advances to customers 3,649 4,398
Interest receivable [3:] 68
Other assets 7 3
Liabilities
Daposits from banks and other financial institutions 4,711 5,887
Placements from banks and other financial institutions 160 1,041
Customer deposits 2,117 1,758
Interast payable 42 44
Off-balance sheet items
Letters of guarantee issued and quarantees 10,357 11,388

Year ended 31 December
2017 2016

Interest income 312 144
Fee and commission income 925 E10
Other operating income 20 16
Interest expense (141) (29)
Operating expenses (29) (28)

Placements with and loans to banks and

other financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions
Placements fram banks and other financial institutions
Customer deposits

Year ended 31 December
2017

L

0.01-5.15
1.73-4.79
0.01-5.20
0.10-2.30
0.30-2.94

0.01-3.29
1.73-4.13
0.00-4.90
1.15-1.25
0.30-2.94
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

45 Related party transactions (Continued)
{5) The Group and its associate

The Group had the following balances and transactions with its associate in its ordinary course
of business under narmal commercial terms:

As at 31 December
2017 2016

Placements with and leans to banks and
other financial institutions 133 183

Year ended 31 December

2017 2016

oy £
F, ) T

Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial nstitutions 0.10 0.02-0.30

For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, transaction profit or loss
between the Group and its associate was not significant.

{6) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility
to plan, direct and control the activities of the Group. Key management personnel of the
Group, their close relatives, and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled, or significantly
influenced by either the key management personnel of the Group or their close relatives, are
considered as related parties of the Group, The Group enters into banking transactions with
key management personnel and their related parties in the normal course of business. &s at
31 December 2017, the balance of loans and advances to the key management personnel and
their related parties is RMEB3.06 million {31 December 2016: RMB4.21 million).

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management durnng the years was
as follows:

Year ended 31 December

20E

Salaries. bonuses and staff welfare 8.52 10,67

According to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC, the key management
persannel’s final emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2017 have not been finalized
Management of the Group believes that difference between the final emoluments and that
disclosed above will not have significant impact on the consalidated financial statements
of the Group: The final compensation will be disclosed in a separate announcement when
determined.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December 2016
was not decided at the time when the Groups 2016 consolidated financial statements were
released and the amount of remuneration of Directors and other members of key management
recognized in the consclidated income statement for the year of 2016 was RMES. 43 million
Supplementary announcement on final compensation of RMB10.67 milkon was released by the
Bank on 20 August 2017. The comparative figures for the year of 2016 have been restated
accordingly
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

45 Related party transactions (Continued)

7

The Group and the Annuity Scheme

The Group had the following balances and transactions with the Annuity Scheme set up by
the Bank apart from the obligation for defined contribution to the Annuity Scheme:

As at 31 December
2017 2016

Deposits from Annuity Scheme 135 16,367
Interest payable - 619

Year ended 31 December

2017 2016
Interest expense (225) (394)

Interest rate range for transactions with the Annuity Scheme during the year is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2017 20186

Depasits from Annuity Scheme 0.72-6.20 0.72-6.20

46  Structured entities

1)

Consolidated structured entities

Principal guaranteed wealth management products sponsored and managed by the
Group

Principal guaramteed wealth management products sponsored and managed by the Group
represent products to which the Group has guaranteed the investors principal investment,
regardless of their actual performance. Investments made by these products and the
carresponding liabilities to the investors of these products are presented in financial assets and
financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, respectively,

Other consolidated structured entities

Other structured entities consolidated by the Group include certain trust investment plans,
asset management plans, funds and securitization products issued, managed and/for invested
by the Group. The Group controls these entities because the Group has power aver, is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its invelvement with these entities and has the ability
to use its power over these entities 1o affect the amount of the Group’s returns

As-at 31 December 2017, the iotal assets of these consolidated structured entities were
RMB482 441 million (31 December 2016: RMB206, 177 million).
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46 Structured entities (Continued)
{2) Unconsolidated structured entities
Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group

Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group mainly include
non-principal guaranteed wealth management products (*WhMPs"), which are not subject
to any guarantee by the Group of the principal invested or interest 1o be paid. The WMPs
invest in a range of primanly fixed-rate assets, most typically money market instruments, debt
securities and loan assets. As the manager of these WMPs, the Group invests, on behalf of the
investars in these WHPs, the funds raised in the assets as described in the investment plan
related to each WMP and recelves fee and commission income.

As at 31 December 2017, the total assets invested by these WMPs amounted to RMB1,580,527
million (21 December 2016: RMET,279,009 millien) and the corresponding outstanding WMPs
issued by the Group amounted to RMB1,368,878 million (31 December 2016: RMB1,299,375
million}. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's interest in these WMPs
included net fee and commission income of RMBT,645 million (2016: RMBS,313 million) and
net interest income of AMBB03 mililon (2016: RMB261 million), which related to placements
and repo transactions entered into by the Group with these WMP Vehicles.

The Group entered into placements and repo transactions at market interest rates with these
WhPs, The average balance during 2017 and the outstanding balance as at 31 December
2017 of these transactions were RMBZ3, 168 million (weighted average outstanding period
of 5.31 days) (2016; RMB8,776 million and 3.06 days) and RMBE4,862 million (31 December
2016: RMB125.627 million), respectively. The Group was under no abligation to enter into
these transactions. As at 31 Decemnber 2017 and 31 December 2016, the outstanding balance
of these transactions was presented in placements with and loans to banks and other financial
institutions and financial assets held under resale agreements, which represented the Group's
maximum exposure to the WikiPs.

There were no contractual liquidity arrangements, guarantees or other commitments among
or between the Group, WhPs or any third parties that could increase the level of the Group's
risk from WhMPs disclosed abowve during the years ended 31 Decermnber 2017 and 31 December
2016. The Group was not reguired to absorb any losses incurred by WhPs, During the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no losses was incurred by these WMPs relating to the
Group’s inferests in these WMPs, and the WMPs did not experience difficulty in financing their
activities.

Unconsolidated structured entities held by the Group

The Group invests in other unconsolidated structured entities which are sponsored and
managed by other entities for investment return, and records trading gains or losses and
interest income therefrom. These unconsolidated structured entities primarily include asset
management plans, funds and asset-backed securities. As at 31 December 2017, the related
carrying. amount of investments and the maximum exposure by the Group to these other
unconsolidated structured entities was RMBA5,230 million (31 December 2016; RME34 463
million), included under the financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss, the
avallable-for-sale financial assets, the held-to-maturity invesiments and the debt instruments
classified as receivables categories in the consolidated statement of financial position, The
information on the size of tolal assets of these unconsolidated structured entities was not
readily available from the public domain.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

47 Contingent liabilities and commitments
Legal proceedings and others

The Bank and its subsidiaries are involved as defendants in certain lawswits arising from their normal
business operations, As at 31 December 2017, provisions of RMBE, 240 milllon were made by the
Group (31 December 2016: RMBG,030 million) based on court judgments or advice of legal counsel,
and included in Note IV 36 Other Liabilities. Management of the Group believes that the final result
of these lawsuits will not have a matenal impact on the financial position or operations of the Group.

On 28 September 2016, the Bank and its Mew York Branch entered into a Cease and Desist Order
with the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System of the United 5tates. On 4 Novemnber
2016, the Bank and its Mew York Branch entered into a Comsent Order with New York State
Department of Financial Services (the “Department”) and paid a civil monetary penalty to the
Department accordingly. The Bank and its New York Branch are taking affirmative actions to respond
1o other requirements under these two orders,

As at 31 December 2016, the above-mentioned civil monetary penalty was paid and reflected in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, As at the date of
this report, the Group is of the view that it is not practicable to estimate whether there will be
any further regulatory actions undertaken by the US regulators as this will be dependent upon
the regulatory conclusion after the Banks and its New York Branch's actions towards the other
requirements under these two orders. As such, the Group did not accrue any provision over this
matter as at 31 December 017

Capital commitments

As at 31 Deceamber
2017

Contracted but not provided for 5,062 4,951

In addition, as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group did not have outstanding
equity investment commitments for its investee companies.

Credit commitments
As at 31 December
2017 2016
Loan commitments
- With an original maturity of less than 1 year 58,038 38,433
- With an original maturity of 1 year or above 669,524 545 968
Subtctal 727,562 588,401
Bank acceptance 233,788 312,255
Credit card commitments 426,668 323.217
Guarantee and letters of guarantee 220,826 229177
Letters of credit 140,034 181,284
Total 1,748,878 1,634,334

Credit commitments represent credit cards and general credit facility limits granted to customers.
These general credit facilities may be drawn in the form of loans or through the issuance of letters of
credit, guarantee and letters of guarantee or bank acceptance,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

47 Contingent liabilities and commitments (Continued)
Credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments

Credit risk weighted amount foer credit commitments represents the counterparty credit risk
associated with credit commitments and is calculated in accordance with the “Capital Rules for
Commercial Banks (Provisional)” issued by the CBRC which was effective 1 lanuary 2013 and is
dependent on, among other factors, creditworthiness of counterparties and maturity characteristics
of each type of contract. As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, credit risk weighted
amount for credit commitments was measured under the Internal Ratings — Based approach.

As at 31 December

2017 201E
Credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments B66,063 B31,636

Operating lease commitments

At the end of each reporting period, the Group, as a lessee, had commitments for future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

As at 31 December

2017 2016

Within 1 year 3,892 3,948
1 1o 2 years 2,950 3.051
2 1o 3 years 2,023 2,262
3 10 5 years 2,069 2,451
Above 5 years 1,005 1,255
Total 11,939 12,967

During the year of 2017, operating lease expense recognized as operating expense by the Group was
RMB4, 5990 million (2016: RMBS5,190 millien), and is Included in Note IV & Operating Expenses.

Finance lease commitments

As at 31 December 2017, no non-cancellable finance lease commitments of the Group, as a lessor (31
December 2016: RMB338 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the gross amount of finance lease receivables included in the Group’s loans
and advances was RMB36,500 million (31 December 2016: RMB38,245 million) with the remaining

maturity as follows:

As at 31 December

2017
Overdue 3,317 4,256
Within 1 year 6,235 7.643
1to 5 years 17,245 17,748
EUOVE ) years 3 i
Total 36,500 38,245
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
47 Contingent liabilities and commitments (Continued)
Collateral
Assets pledged

At the end of each reporting pericd, the carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral under
repurchase agreements are as follows:

As at 31 December

2017 2016
Debt securities 328,469 208,529
Bills 183 814
Total 328,652 209,343

The carrying value of financial assets sold under repurchase agreements by the Group as at 31
December 2017 was RMB319,789 million (31 December 2016: AMB205,832 million) as set out in
Mote IV 33 Financial Assets Sold under Repurchase Agreements. Repurchase agresments are due
within 12 months from the effective dates of these agreements,

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements included certain transactions under which, title of
the pledged securities has been transferred to counterparties. These transactions have been disclosed
in Mote IV 48 Transferred Financial Assets.

In addition, debt securities and deposits with banks and other financial institutions pledged in
accordance with requlatory reguirements or as collateral for derivative transactions and barrowings
from central banks etc. by the Group as at 31 December 2017 amounted to RMB703,492 million in
tatal (31 December 2016: RMB365, 153 million),

Collateral accepted

The Group received debt securities and bills as collateral in conmection with the securities lending
transactions and the purchase of assets under resale agreements (Note IV 18 Financial Assets Held
Under Resale Agreements). The Group did not hold any collateral that can be resold or re-pledged as
at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,

Redemption commitment for treasury bonds

The Group is entrusted by the MOF to underwrite certain treasury bonds. The investors of these
treasury bonds have a right to redeem the bonds at par at any time prior to maturity and the Group
is committed to honor such redemption requests. The redemption price |5 calculated as the par
value of the bond plus unpakd interest in accordance with the terms of the related early redemption
arrangement,

As at 31 December 2017, the nominal value of treasury bonds the Group was obligated 1o redeem
prior to maturity was RMBES.419 million (31 December 2016; RMBS6,555 million). The original
maturities of these bonds vary from 3 to 5 years. Management of the Group expects the amount of
redemption before the maturity dates of these bonds will not be material.

The MOF will not provide funding for the early redamption of these bonds on a back-to-back basis,
but will settle the principal and interest upon maturity.

Commitment on security underwriting

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group did not have unfulfilled commitment in
respect of securities undenrwrniting business.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

48 Transferred financial assets

The Group enters inla transactions in the normal course of business whereby it transfers recognized
financial assets to third parties or to structured entities. In some cases these transfers may give rise to
Tull or partial de-recognition of the financial assets concerned. In other cases where the transfermed
assets do not gualify for de-recognition as the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
these assels, the Group continued 1o recognize the transferred assets.

Securitization transactions

The Group enters into securitization transactions by which it transfers loans to structured entities
which issue asset-backed securities 1o investors. The Group assessed among other factors, whether
or not to derecognize the transferred assets by evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks
and rewards of the assets and whether it has relinquished its controls over these assets based on the
criteria as detalled in Mote |l 8.6 and Note lIl 7.

At at 31 December 2017, the unexpired asset-backed securities included accumulative loans
transferred by the Group before impairment allowance of RMB24,531 million (31 December 2016;
RMB18,364 million). RMB11,723 million of this balance (21 December 2016 RMET0.154 million)
was in respect of non-performing loans and the Group concluded that these foans transferred
were gualified for full de-recognition. The remaining balance of RME1Z, 808 million (31 December
2016; RMBE,210 million) was in respect of performing foans and the Group concluded that it had
continuing invalvement in these assets. As at 31 December 2017, the Group continued to recognize
assets of RMBZ,941 million (31 December 2016: RMET12 million) under loans and advances to
customers, The Group also recognized other assets and other liabilities of the same amount arising
from such continuing Involvement,

Transfer of non-performing loans

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group transferred non-performing loans through
disposal to third parties or issuing asset-back securities, with gross loan balance of RMBS54,331
million {2016: RMBY2,969 million), of which RMB1,569 millicn {2016: RMB10,154 million) was
through issuing asset-back securities disclosed above. The Group carried out an assessment based
on the criteria as detailed in Note |l 8.6 and Note |l 7 and concluded that these transferred assets
qualified for full de-recognition.

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

The Group did not derecognize financial assets transferred as collateral in connection with repurchase
agreements. As at 31 December 2017, of these collateral pledged disclosed in Mote IV 47 Contingent
Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral, RMB40,647 million (31 December 2016: RMB14,087
million) represented debt securities whereby legal title has been transferned to counterparties.

Securities lending transactions

For debt securities lent to counterparties under securities lending agreements, the counterparties
are allowed to sell or repledge these securities in the absence of default by the Group, but have an
obligation to return the secunties at the maturity of the contract. The Group has determined that it
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these securities and therefore has not derecognized
them. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of debt securities lent to counterparties was
RMEBEBT, 373 million (31 December 2016: RMB15,415 million).
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49  Financial risk management
Overview

The Group's primary risk management objective is 1o maintain risk within acceptable parameters
ta meat the requirements of regulators, depositors and other stakeholders, as well as to maximize
return for investors within an acceptable level of risk.

The Group has designed risk management policies, which address, among other things, the
establishment of risk limits and controls o identify, analyze, monitor and report risks. Relevant and
timely information used to conduct these risk management activities is provided through information
systems maintained by the Group and intended to address the Group’s information needs in this
area. The Group regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems to address changes in
markets, products and emerging best practices.

The most significant types of risk to which the Group is exposed are credit risk, market risk and
liquidity risk. Market risk includes foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing the overall risk appetite of the Group and
reviewing and approving its risk management objectives and strategies.

Within this framework, the Groups senior management has overall responsibility for mamaging all
aspects of risk, including implementing risk management strategies, initiatives and credit policies
and approving internal rules, measures and procedures rela'ta-g to risk management. The Risk
Management Department of the Group implements procedures for managing the significant risks to
which the Group is exposed.

49.1 Credit risk
Credit risk management

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may arise from a customer or counterparty’s
failure to mesat its obligations when due. Credit risk can also arise from operational failures
that result in an unauthorized or inappropriate advance, commitment or investment, The
Group's major credit risks arise from loans and receivables, treasury operations and off-balance
sheet related credit risk exposures.

The Group's credit risk management and governance structure comprise the Board of
Directors and its Risk Management Commitiee, Senior Management and its Risk Management
Committee, Credit Approval Commitiee and Asset Disposal Committee, as well as the Risk
Management Department, Credit Management Department, Credit Approval Department
and related front-office customer departments, The Group’s credit risk management function
operates under centralized management and authorization under a range of specified limits.

The Group performs standardized credit management procedures, including credit due
diligence and proposal submission, credit underwriting review, loan disbursement, post-lending
maonitoring and non-performing loan management. The Group enhances its credit risk
management by strictly complying with its credit management procedures; strengthening
customer investigation, credit rating, lending approval and post-lending monitoring measures;
enhancing risk mitigation effect of loans through collateral; accelerating disposal process of
non-perfarming loans and continuously upgrading its credit management system.

In 2017, the Group took a combination of measures, including the strict implementation of the
state’s macro-economic policies, continuows optimization of its credit structure, strengthening
the building of its credit risk management system, heightening risk management and control
in key areas, timely identification and mitigation of various risks and potential vulnerabilities,
and expanding options and channels for recovery and disposal of non-performing loans, and
maintained a steady and solid level of asset quality.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49  Financial risk management (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Credit risk management (Continued)

Apart from the credit risk exposures on credit-related assets, deposits and placements with and
loans to banks and other financial institutions, the credit risk arising from treasury business is
managed by selecting counterparties with acceptable credit quality, balancing credit risk and
return, referencing to both internal and external credit rating information where available
and by applying appropriate limits subject to different level of management authority, and by
timely reviewing and adjusting thosa limit in credit system. In addition, the Group also provides
loan commitments and financial guarantee services to customers which may require the Group
to make payments on behalf of customers upon their failure to perform under the terms of
the related contract. Risks arising from loan commitments and financial guarantees are similar
to those associated with loans and advances. These transactions are, therefore, subject to the
same risk management policies and procedures.

Impairment assessment
Key factors related to the Group's impairment assessment

In accordance with the "Guideline for Loan Credit Risk Classification” issued by the CBRC,
the Group has establshed a loan credit risk classification system and performs credit risk
management based on loan classification in one of five categories. The Group classifies loans
into the following five categories: normal, special-mention, substandard, doubtful and loss.
Loans classified as substandard, doubtful and loss are regarded as non-performing loans.
The primary factors considered in loan impairment assessment include probability of loan
repayment and recoverability of principal and interest, which reflect borrowers” repayment
ability, repayment record and intention, projected profitability, bank guarantees or collateral
and legal responsibility of repayment. The allowance for impairment losses is assessed
collectively or individually, as appropriate.

The five categaones of loan classification into which the Group classifies its loans and advances
1o customers are set out below:

Normal Bosrowers can honor the terms of their loans. There Is no reason to
doubt their ability to repay principal and interest in full on a timely
basis.

Special = mention Borrowers are able to service their loans currently, although
repayment may be adversely affected by specific factors,

Substandard Borrowers' ability to service their loans is in question and they
cannot rety entirely on normal operating revenues to repay principal
and interest. Losses may ensue even when collateral or guarantees

are invoked,

Doubtful Borrowers cannot repay principal and interest in full and significant
Iosses will need to be recognized even when collateral or guarantess
are invoked.

Lass Only a small portion of none of the principal and interest can be
recoverad after taking all possible measures and exhausting all legal
remedies.

With respect to Investments in debt securities other than held for trading or designated at
fair value through profit or loss, the Group assesses for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period based on objective evidence and perferms impairment assessment
individually or collectively, as appropriate; For the impaired available-for-sale investments, the
amount of the impairment allowance for available-for-sale investments is equal to the existing
unrealized loss, which is recorded as a charge in the consolidated income statement.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49  Financial risk management (Continued)

49.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or
other credit enhancements

The maximum exposure (o credit risk represents the credit risk exposure to the Group at the
end of each reporting period, without taking into account any collateral held or other cradit
enhancements. The exposure to credit risk at the end of each reporting period primarily
arises from credit and treasury operations; as well as off-balance shest items such as loan
commitmeants, credit card commitments, bank acceptance, guaraniee and letters of guarantee
and letters of credit, as credit risks arising from these items are similar to those associated
with loans and receivables.

A summary of the maximum exposure to credit risk is as follows:

As at 31 Dacembar

2017 2016
Balances with central banks 2,788,122 2,700,046
Daposits with banks and other financial institutions 130,245 622 665
Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 505,269 580,949
Financial assets held for trading 193,551 123,282
Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss 368,051 286,064
Derivative financial assets 28,284 31,460
Financial assets held under resale agreements 540,386 323,051
Loans and advances to customers 10,316,311 9,319,364
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 1,398,884 1,390,678
Held-ta-maturity investments 3,489,135 2,882,152
Debt instruments classified as receivables 659,223 624,547
Other financial assets 155,111 205,718
Subtotal 20,572,572 19,090,476
Credit commitments 1,748,878 1,634,334
Total 22,321,450 20,724,810

The Group has implemented specific policies and credit enhancement practices to mitigate
credit risk exposure to an acceptable level, The maost typical practice is obtaining guarantes
deposits, collateral and guarantees, The amount and type of acceptable collateral are
determined by credit risk evaluations of borrowers or counterparties. The Group implements
guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral and evaluation parameters,

Annual Report 2017 | 255

369/436



EDINETOOOO
OOO0o0ooooooonon(e24593)
OoOooodgno
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbd, unless othensse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49,1 Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any coflateral held or
other credit enhancements (Continued)

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

- Mortgage loans to retail customers are generally collateralized by mortgages over
residential properties;

- Other personal lending and corporate loans and advances are primarily collateralized by
charges over land and properties or other assets of the borrowers; and

- Financial assets held under resale agreements transactions are primarily collateralized by
debt securities and bills.

The Group monitors the market value of collateral periodically and requests for additional
collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement when necessary,

Loans and advances to customers

The following tables set out the concentration of risk for loans and advances to customers by
geographical area and industry,

{1}  The composition of loans and adwvances to customers by geographical area is analyzed
as follows;

As at 371 December

2017
Amount % of total

Corporate loans and advances

Head Office 246,123 3.7 279,658 4.4
Yangtze River Delta 1,420,351 21.2 1,310,376 20.6
Pear| River Delta 762,152 11.3 752,897 11.8
Bohai Rim 1,061,001 15.8 1,001,682 15.7
Central China 929,075 13.8 857,319 13.5
Weastarn China 1,629,197 243 1,463,808 229
Mortheastern China 287,187 43 272,460 4.3
Cwerseas and Others 379,633 5.6 435,027 E.B
Subtotal 6,714,719 100.0 6,373,225 10:0.0
Personal loans and advances
Head Office 74 - 104 -
Yangtze River Delta 994,938 25.0 260,092 256
Pear| River Delta 873,154 21.8 713,500 21.3
Bohai Rim 621,562 15.5 498,332 14,9
Central China 590,247 147 451,954 13.5
Western China 778,946 19.4 694,461 20.8
MNortheastern China 141,351 35 122,436 3.7
Owverseas and Others 5619 0.1 5,535 0.2
Subtotal 4,005,892 100.0 3,346,414 100.0

Gross loans and. advances
to customers 10,720,611 9,719,639
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advances ta customers (Cantinued)

{2)  The composition of loans and advances to customers by industry is analyzed as follows:

As at 31 December

2017 F
Amount % of total Amount
Corporate loans and advances

Manufacturing 1,286,480 i 1,325,386
Transportation, logistics and

postal services 1,268,677 18.9 1,052,336 16.5
Retail and wholesale 405,678 6.0 497976 7.8
Production and supply of

power, heat, gas and water 812,850 121 673,621 10.6
Real estate 573,248 8.5 510,470 8.0
Leasing and commercial services  B03,575 12.0 560,270 8.8
Finance 373,481 5.6 735915 115
Mining 232,699 3.5 243,396 3B
Canstruction 227,238 3.4 187,931 2.9
Water, environment and
public utilities management 372,581 5.5 241,365 38
Others 358,232 5.3 344,559 5.4
Subtotal 6,714,719 1000 6,373,225 100.0

Personal loans and advances

Residential mortgage 3,133,503 78.3 2,558,149 T6.4
Personal business 205,549 5.1 232,728 7.0
Parsonal consumption 142,184 3.5 119,781 36
Credit cards 317,547 7.9 242,451 7.2
Others 207,109 5.2 193,305 5.8
Subtatal 4,005,892 100.0 3,346,414 100.0

Gross |oans and advances
1o customers 10,720,611 9,719,639

Certain comparative amounts in this footnote relating to persenal loans and advances
have been reclassified to conform with the current years presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For thie year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbd, unless othensise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49  Financial risk management (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(3} The composition of loans and advances to customers by contractual maturity and
security type is analyzed as follows:

31 December 2017

Less than 1t0 s Over
1 year years 5 years Tatal

Unsecured loans 1,266,909 620,786 1,028,232 2,915,927
Guarantead loans 606,458 327,650 425,404 1,359,512
Loans secured by collateral 817,342 409,405 3,718,936 4,945,683
Pledged loans 438,651 79,322 981,516 1,499,489
Total 3,129,360 1,437,163 &,154,0BB 10,720,611

=

Unsecured loans 092,899 466,138 286,821

2,345,858

Guaranteed loans 618,532 330.718 344,430 1,203,680
Loans secured by collateral 947,139 519,723 3,127,606 '4,594.4638
__F‘Jedged loans 786,985 69,113 629,535 1,485,633
Tatal 3,345,555 1,385,692 4,988,382 9,719,639

(4)  Past due loans

31 December 2017

Up ta 91-360 361 days Over

90 days days to 3 years 3 years Total

Unsecured loans 6,489 6,984 2,015 1.2459 16,737

Guaranteed loans 22,362 12,158 17,004 5.864 57.388
Loans secured by

collateral 51,287 29,410 4317 B.BBS 132,753

Pledged loans 10,962 968 3,135 2,123 17,188

Total 91,100 49,520 65,325 18,121 224,066

to 3 g

90 days 1y's 3 years
Unzecured loans 4411 B.619 4,460 17,896

Guaranteed loans 19,386 23,586 26,612 2.937 712,521
Loans secured by

collateral 53,772 52,054 60,454 6,405 172,685
Pladged loans 1.976 2,208 6,901 447 11.533
Total 79,545 86,468 98,427 10,195 274,635

When either loan principal or interest is past due by one day in any period, the whole
loan is classified as past due loan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millicns of Renmanbi, enless otherwise statad)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advances to customers (Conhinued)

(5)  Credit guality of loans and advances 1o customers

As at 31 Deceamber

2017 2016
Meither past due nor impaired {l¥ 10,471,150 9,433,058
Past due but not impaired (i} 55,429 55,747
Impaired i) 194,032 230,834
Subtotal 10,720,611 9,719,639
Allowance far impairment losses of
loans and advances to customers {404,300) (400,275)
Loans and advances to customers, net 10,316,311 9,319,364

{1) Loans and advances neither past due nor impaired

31 December 2017

Sp

Narmal mantion Total
Corporate koans and advances 6,234,570 298,077 6,532,647
Personal loans and advances 3,934 840 3,663 3,938,503

Total 10,169,410 301,740 10,471,150

[

5,832,088 6,153,488

Corporate loans and advances 321,400
Personal loans and advances 3,276,326 3,244 3,279,570
Total §,108, 414 324,644 9,433,058
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For thie year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbd, unless othensise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49  Financial risk management (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advances to custamers (Continued)
(5} Credit quality of loans and advances 1o customears (Continued)
(i} Loans and advances past due but not impaired

31 December 2017

Including:
Exposure

covensd by
collateral
Total and pledge

Conporats leass and advances 24,560 14 968 o4T?
Personal foans and advances 19,385 514 4,582 30,481 FrRb]
Total 43,885 EAT4 4,590 554139 42,881

Camporate loars and advances | ;
Personal foans and advances 17124 £,590 5113 18.8ET 20430

Tatal 39,054 11,482 513 55,147 44,018

(i) Impaired loans and advances

31 December 2017
Allowance

for
impairment Net book
Book value losses value

Individually assessed 159,805 (122,311) 37,4594
Collectively assessed 34,227 (26,723) 7,504
Total 194,032 (149,034) 44,998

individually assessed 192,848 {133,605} 59,243
Collectively assessed 37,986 (28,999 B.587
Total 230,834 (162,604) 68,230
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
Amounts in millicns of Renmanbi, enless otherwise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advances ta customers (Cantinued)
(5]  Credit quality of loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(i)  Impaired loans and advances {Continued)

Including:

As at 31 Decamber
2017 2016
Individually assessed and impaired 159,805 192,848
Individually assessed and impaired as
a percentage of gross loans and

advances of the Group 1.49% 1.98%
Including: exposure covered by collateral
and pledge 24,802 39,021

The composition of impaired lbans and advances to customers by geoagraphical
area is analyzed as follows:

31 December 2017

Amount % of total f o of tota
Head Office 7 - ) -
Yangtze River Delta 29,460 15.2 35,471 15.4
Pearl River Delta 26,957 139 30,530 13.2
Bohai Rim 39,031 201 45,728 19.8
Central China 273717 141 30,194 131
Western China 59,314 30.6 76,046 329
Maortheastern China 8,438 4.3 B, 772 38
Overseas and Others 3,448 1.8 4,086 1.8
Total 194,032 100.0 230,834 100.0

{6}  Rescheduled loans and advances

Rescheduled loans and advances are those loans and advances to customers which have
been renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrowers, or
of the inability of the borrowers to meet their onginal repayment schedule. Concessions
are given by the Group that would not otherwise be granted to these borrowers for
economic or legal reasons relating to their financial difficelties. Rescheduled loans
and advances of the Group as at 31 December 2017 amounted to RMB5S,120 millicn
{31 December 2016: RMBS52,491 million).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, as a result of loan renegotiations, the Group
recognized ordinary shares upon renegotiation of RMB 1,873 million, The loss associated
with these loan renegotiations was not significant.

{7)  Assets foreclosed under credit enhancement arrangement

Such assets are disclosed as foreclosed assets in Note IV 27 Other Assets,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49

262 (praweun

Financial risk management (Continued)

49.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Debt instruments

Credit quality of debt instruments

The table below represents the carrying value and accumulated impairment charges of
held-te-maturity investments and debt instruments classified as recevables;

As at 31 December

2017

MNeither past due nor impaired {1) 4,152,386 3,509,837
Impaired {2) 6,498 5,542
Subtotal 4,158,884 3,515,379
Individusally assessed (3,068) (3,516)
Collectively assessed (7.,458) (5,164)
Allowance for impairment losses {10,528) (8,680)
Total held-to-maturity investments

and debt instruments classified as

receivables, net 4,148,358 3,506,699
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
LAmounts in millicns of Renmanbi, enless aotherwise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Debt instruments (Conbinued)
Credit quality of debt instruments (Continued)
(1)  Debt instruments nelther past due nor impained
31 December 2017
Financial

assets at
fair valug  Avallable- Dbt

through for-sale Held-to- instruments
profit financial maturity classified as
of loss assefs investmants  receivables

Dbt secunites issusd by

- Governments 31,464 510,794 1,774,655 169,336 2,486,249
= Public sector and
quasi-govemments 140,712 3229k 1,269,267 - LN
- Financlal institutions 103,650 398,008 302,240 B1.075 885,063
- Corparates 60,762 177,655 143,146 13,273 400,836
Special government bond - - - 93,300 93,300
Receivable from the MOF - - - 7,678 171,678
Certificate treasury bonds
anid savings treasury bonds - - - 3,612 3,612
(thers 12,835 - - 14,804 37,639
Tetal 349,433 1388839 3.495.308 657,078 5,900,848

Debt securites ssusd by

= Governments 20,900 464,613 1,320,638 120618 1,926,769
= Pulblic sector and
quasi-governments 99,784 3EIB24 1,129,986 219997 1,643.591
- Financlal institutions 109,985 383,335 263,950 4,130 791,404
= Conpaorates 48,665 188,869 171,604 20,436 419,574
Special government bond - - - 53,300 93,300
Recervable from the MOF - - - 72023 aT3,023
Certificate treasury bonds
and sawngs treasury bonds - - - 2,990 2,990
Others 15,863 - - 20,165 36,048
Total 295221 1390641 2,886,178 623,659 5,195,699
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2017
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49  Financial risk management (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Debt instruments {Continued)
Credit guality of debt instruments (Continued)

(2} Impaired debt instruments

31 December 2017
Debt

Held-ta-  instruments
maturity classified as
investments eceivables

Caorporate bomds 2,614 2,614
Others - 3,884 3,884
i Subtotal - 6,498 6,498
Allowance for iImpairment losses - (3,068) {2.068)

Impaired held-to-maturity
investments and debt
instruments classified as
recaivables, nat - 3,430 3,430

Corporate bonds 547

Others - 4,995 4,995
Subtotal - 5,542 5,542
Allowance for impairment losses = (3,516)  (3,516)

Impaired held-to-maturity
investments and debt
instruments classified as
receivables, net = 2,026 2,026

The Group’s available-for-sale debt instruments were individually assessed for
impairment. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of the impaired
available-for-sale debt instruments of the Group was RMB45 million (31 December
2016: RMB37 million). The accumulative impairment losses recognized for these
impaired available-for- sale debt instruments by the Group as at 31 December 2017 was
RMBE212 million {31 December 2016: RMB331 million)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49

Financial risk management (Continued)

49.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Debt instruments (Conbinued)

Credit quality of debt instruments (Continued)

(3

Debt instruments analyzed by credit rating

EDINETOOOO
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The Group adopts a credit rating approach to manage the credit risk of the debt
securities portfolic held. The ratings are obtained from major rating agencies where the
wsuers of the sacurities are located. The carrying amounts of debt securities investments

analyzed by rating as at the end of the reporting pericd are as follows:

Unrated (i)
Db secunties isued by;
- (overnments 1,607,333
= Public-sector and
quasi-gavernmants 1483157
= Firancial instifutons 551,133
- Corposates [} 50,568
Special government bond 93,300
Riecanable from the MOF M ETe
Certiticate treasry bonds
anil saings treasury
bonds 3612
Oters 54,845
Total 411607

#57.410
176,302

194,393
305,743

1,543,848

31 Decombar 2017

an A
5,072 1,75
39 #0193

1850 TEETS
3384 1454
38,347 165594

Below A Total

56 2481600

- 17043
0340 880N
18341 402870
- 93300
- mgm

-

48,746 5,912,962

[rebd securities ksued by
=~ Gewernments 1372081  SS4E 5,248 1,083 705 14924609
~ Public sector and
quas-gavernments 1469677  TRIB4D 10,82 m - 15643413
-~ Fimanclal instituticng 506761 44085 36508 S1E 30317 7B
= Coeporates {ii} 47367  3ITETS 4181 T4 16116 429363
Special government bond 53,300 - - - - 93300
Recenvable from the MOF pipdirsl - - = - 171023
Certificate freavury bonds
and awings Ireasury
bonds 2950 - - - - 2,990
Otheers 31578 - - - - 31518
Total ILITEATY 1039412 SR TeEO5 47198 5197598

(I} Unrated debt investments held by the Group are bonds issued primarily by policy
banks, the Chinese government, municipal government bonds and receivable

fram the MOF.

(i} The ratings of super short-1erm commercial papers of the Group amounted to
RMB17.110 million {31 December 2016: RMBE23,420 million), as included in
corporate bonds above are based on issuer rating for this credit risk analysis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbd, unless othensse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.2 Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk 5 the risk that funds will not be available 1o meet liabilities as they fall due, This
may arise from cash flows or maturity mismatches of assets and liabilities.

The Group's Assets and Liabilities Management Department manages its liquidity risk through:

265 |(prunsmn

Optimizing asset and Hability structure;
Maintaining stability of deposit base;

Making projections of future cash flows, and evaluating the appropriate liquid asset
position;

Maintaining an efficient internal funds transfer mechanism within the Group; and

Parforming stress testing on a regular basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millicns of Renmanbi, enless otherwise statad)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.2 Liguidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The tables below summarize the maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities by
remaining contractual maturities based on the carrying amount at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbd, unless othensse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49  Financial risk management (Continued)
49.2 Liguidity risk (Confinued)

Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and financial
liabifities (Continued)

Cath aad Bedances with canral banks - e Bl dEN R - - DEELGES  2EMOER)
Dhagmotis with bl and] b financia

itittion - B0 mEd EEAS MIEM 1650 - S
Placsrans witk and koirs 1o banks

and et Mnancil intson - - TS M MIIE 4178 - - e
Firangal asels hed fix rading - 3% AT - SR = 1 T (1) 1519 = 1HEB
Francial ssiets desigrated at fair vabue

thecusgh peefit o foas . - BEE N BB B8 EW LALE T
Derrvatris inancial asmeny - . pAH 1 A 1,168 ] - 340
Firaial assets haldl undier recile

agnenenty 1N - THTE  MME BN - - - s
Lisare i achvances 22 stomens 50 - BE1E BOED ISNHS 1EESEE - SR = 83153
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Financial Esbiifies heid fot frading - [ et {54 - - - = (15
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49  Financial risk management (Continued)
48.2 Liguidity risk (Continued)
Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows

Assets available 1o meet obligations related to the Group's liabilities and outstanding credit
commitmeanis primarily include cash and balances with central banks, deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, placements with and loans to banks and other fimancial
institutions, financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss, and financial assets held under resale agreements. In the normal course of
business, the majority of customer deposits repayable on demand or on maturity are expected
to be retained. In addition, the Group is able to sell the available-for-sale financial assets to
repay matured liabilities, if necessary.

The tables below present the undiscounted cash flows of non-derivative financial assets and
financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities at the end of each reporting period:
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i heough prodit or low - - BAE WA BN WsE ME 0 3 e
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Loans and adwances 10 Cesiomen I - SHAD TSN LTHAN NI GRS = fa18a
Bidabledorsals franisl sty - - 1M TR MeR: ERIM e 1R LN
e matany invesimeats - - BYT OB 1M LBLIE 133 = LT
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49  Financial risk management (Continued)
49.2 Liguidity risk (Confinued)
Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows (Confinuad)

Kian-drivetive financial sty

Cash and bfances with casiral Banks s S g% BR = - LS 2EILEN
Dheprotis with hienls and other firancia

rulisition - B IR INES TR 1582 - L
Placerman witk and losre 10 banks and

pthes frandial husitations - - THET HE WiE 4 - - Hgs
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.2 Liguidity risk (Confinued)

Derivative cash flows
Derivatives settled on a nat basis
The fair values of the Group's denvatives that will be settled on a net basis are primarily
interest rates products. The tables below present the undiscounted contractual cash flows of
the Group's net dervative positions based on their remaining contractual maturities:

31 December 2017

Less tham 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over
I1menth months months years 5 years Total

Interest rate denvatives 12 43 637 125 B17

Interest rate defivatives 4 29 11 400 34 478

Derivatives settied on a gross basis

The fair values of the Group's derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis are primarily
foreign exchamge rates and precious metal products. The tables below present the
undiscounted contractual cash flows of the Group's gross derivative positions based on their
remaining contractual matunties:

31 December 2017

Less tham 13 312 1-5 Over
I month  months  months years 5 years Total
Denvatives settled on @ gross basis
- Cash inflow 343,773 300,972 1,505.759 26,930 477 217791
— Cash outflow (341,540) (300,112) (1,511,810)  (26,987) (496) (2,180,945)
Tatal 2,233 B&0 {6,051) (57) {19y (3.034)

31 December 2016
1.9

Over 5

manihs mon'ths ars yEars Total

Defivatives settled on a gross basis

— Cash inflow 305,839 230,340 1,032,115 36311 485 1,605,190
~ Cazh outflow (306,299} (231,425 {1,018.5999) (36,563) {469} (1,593, T60)
Total (450 {1,085} 13,216 (257) 16 11,430
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49  Financial risk management (Continued)
49.2 Liguidity risk (Continued)

Credit Commitments

The tables below summarize the amounts of credit commitments by remaining maturity,

1-5

years

31 Decembear 2017

Over
5 years

Loan commitments 103,736 149,075 474,751 727,562
Bank acceptance 233,788 - - 233,788
Credit card commitments 426,668 - = 426,668
Guarantee and letters of guarantee 115,371 85,801 19,654 220,826
Letters of cradit 133,670 6,364 = 140,034
Total 1,013,233 241,240 494,405 1,748,878

142,003

361,869

588,401

Loan commitments 84,529

Bank acceptance 312,255 - 312,255
Credit card commitments 323,217 - - 323,217
Guarantee and letters of guarantee 107,922 94,520 26,735 229177
Letters of credit 161,127 20,157 - 181,284
Total 989,050 256,680 388,604 1.634,334

49.3 Market risk

Market risk represents the potential loss ansing from changes in markel rates of interast and
forelgn exchange, as well as commodity and eguity prices. Market risk arises from both the
Group's proprietary positions and customer driven transactions, in both cases related 1o on-

and off-balance sheet activities.

The Group is primarily exposed fo interest rate risk through its lending, fixed-income and
funding activities. Interest rate risk is inherent in many of the Group's businesses and this
situation 15 common among large banks, It fundamentally arises through mismatches between
the maturity and re-pricing dates of interest-sarning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, As
discussed further below, interest rate risk is actively managed.

Foreign exchange rate risk is the potential loss related to changes in foreign exchange rates
affecting the translation of foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities. The

risk of loss results from movements in foreign currency exchange rates.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49  Financial risk management (Continued)
49.3 Market risk (Continued)

The Group is also exposed o commodity risk, primarily related to gold and other precious
metals. The risk of loss results fram movements in commedity price. The Group manages the
risk related to gold price together with foreign exchange rate risk.

The Group has determined that the levels of market risk related to .changes in equity prices
and commodity prices other than gold, with respect to the related exposures in its trading and
investment portfolios, are immaterial.

Segragation of Trading Book and Banking Book

To enhance the effectiveness of market risk management, as well as the accuracy of
determining the levels of regulatory capital required related to market risk, the Group
segregates all financial instruments and commodities, both omn-and off-balance sheet,
into either the trading ook or banking book. The trading book is comprised of financial
instruments and commodity positions held for trading, including all derivatives instruments.
Any other financial instruments are included in the banking boak,

Market Risk Management for Trading Book

The Group manages market risk in the trading book through methodologies that include Value
at Risk (VaR), monitoring and management of established limits, sensitivity analysis, duration
analysis, exposure analysis and stress testing,

The Group has formulated policies, which are subject to review annually or as circumstances
otherwise dictate, 1o manage market risk. Further, in this regard. the Group's markel risk
management s focused on movements in domestic and global financial markets, as well as
the composition of the trading book and management’s trading strategies, within approved
limits. Moreover, the Group has implemented more specific policies for financial instruments,
closely monitoring the exposure to specific issuers and counterparties, as well as the temor
of individual positions and trading strategies. The foundation of the Group's limit and risk
monitoring system 15 based on VaR, which s used consistently to monitor all classes of
financial instruménts in the trading book.

The Bank has adopted an historical simulation method, with a confidence level of 85% based
on holding period of 1 day and historical data for 250 days to calculate the VaR of the trading
book, which includes the Head Office, domestic branches and overseas branches. Based on the
differences between domestic and overseas markets, the Bank selected applicable parameters
for model and risk factors in order to reflect the actual market risk levels. The Bank verified the
accuracy and reliability of market risk measurements through data analysis, parallel modeling
and back-testing of the market risk measurements.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49  Financial risk management (Continued)

49.3 Market risk (Continued)

Market Risk Management for Trading Book (Continued)

VaR Analysis for the Trading Book

Bank

At the

end of

the year

Interest rate risk

Exchange rate risk (1)
Cammodity risk

Owerall VaR

Avearage

Maximum Minimum
49 72 32
51 105 18
11 20 6
73 153 40

Interast rate risk

Exchange rate risk {1
Commodity risk

Owerall VaR

63 | 39
86 213 14
13 28 3
96 213 a4

The Bank calculates VaR for its trading book (excluding AME forelgn currency settlement
coniracts with customers under relevant regulations). The Bank conducts stress testing for its
trading book guarterly, The specific areas subject to this testing include the major areas of
exposure, such as bonds, interest rate derivatives, foreign exchange derivatives and gold. The
stress testing uses a range of scenarios, 1o assess the potential impact on profit and loss.

(1}  VaR related 1o gold is recognized as a component of foreign exchange rate risk,

Market Risk Management for Banking Book

The Group manages market risk related to the banking book by consistently applying
techniques across the Group that include exposure limit management, stress testing, scenario

analysis and gap analysis.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49  Financial risk management (Continued)
49.3 Market risk (Continued)
Market Risk Management for Banking Book (Continued)
Interast Rate Risk Management

The interest rate nsk existing in the banking book broadly relates to the mismatch of the
maturity or re-pricing dates of interest rate-sensitive financial assets and financial liabilities, as
well as inconsistencies in the change of the benchmark interest rates on which most domestic
interest rate-sensitive financial assets and financial liabilities are based.

The Group closely monitors changes in the macro-economic environment and the monetary
paolicies of the PBOC, enabling it to timely and flexibly adjusts its pricing strategy. The
Group establishes comprehensive interest rate risk management policies and protocols and
has improved the consistency of interest rate risk measurement, monitoring, analysis and
management of interest rate risk across the Group,

The Group regularly measures and analyzes the Group’s interest rate risk by conducting gap
analysis, sensitivity analysis, scenario analysis and stress testing to manage interast rate sk
within established limits,

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk Management

Foreign exchange rate risk relates to the mismatch of foreign currency denominated maonetary
assets and liabilities, and the potential loss related to changes in foreign exchange rates, which
largely arises through operational activities,

The Group performs monitonng and sensitivity analysis of foreign exchange rate risk exposure,
manages the mismatch of foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities 1o effectively
manage foreign exchange rate risk exposure within acceptable limits.

Market Risk Exposure Limit Management

Market risk exposure limits are classified as either directive limits or indicative limits, based
on the characteristics of the underlying instruments or transactions, including exposune limit
monitoring, enforcement of stop-loss limits, VaR limits, and stress testing limits.

The Group is committed to continuous improvement of its market risk exposure limit
management, The Group establishes exposure limits reflecting its risk appetite and
continuousky refines the categorization of market risk exposure limits. Further, it regularly
monitors, reports, refines, and implements improvements to the market risk exposure limit
Process.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49  Financial risk management (Continued)
49.3 Market risk (Continued)
Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group primarily conducts its business activities in RMB, with certain transactions
dencminated in USD, HED and, 1o a lesser extent, other currencies. The composition of all
financial assets and liabilittes at the end of each reporting pericd analyzed by currency is as

follows:
31 December 2017
Othar
wiD HED
IRME [AME
L ] equivaless| ¥ ]
Cash and hatances with central bunks 1855850 052 1,084 15 1896619
Depertits with buniks. and other franeisl elinaons 55294 17,083 3064 13520 130,245
Pracermenty with and loar to banks and othe:

Enandal imbnton 795 134,594 328 1500 505,269
Francal suets held for radken 186 % - - 194, 540
Francl st desgrated 1 (e walee Shrough

it o loss E R 95 10,363 e 363,315
Derwatve fingscial sisens .12 1,215 n ] i
Financiah asiets hekd usder resale agreements LA LELH - - - 5456
Loass and advances o nstomers 5698540 4,143 5178 4584 1031831
Aupilabole-for-sale fnancial zisens 124518 16,075 1955 1471 1426400
Hedel-i-matunity imeeciments 1555 nm 11500 1908 1485,135
Dbt irstruments csified & rceisables B53.563 1,46 1053 ERH] [L e
Chthere Firancial ansats 145441 7.0 1014 154 155,111
Yot financial asets I 8,18 IER REE. LT
Berrowiags from centra bank {5 430 - . (L [465,847]
Depertiis hom Banks and othet eancul sstnutons [LiFEL] {28,566) [13,309) {364} (a74,730)
Placemeass from haoks and other financial imtifutons A7) (164455 [34,727) {19.659) (260,051
Financaal kabeliies held lov trading (riRiL ] - - - {21,198
Frnancial hatebises desionated # far value

Herough profit o loss {353,885) [, &%) - = (373,654
Dermative Financial et [323) (19.928) (3%0) (13} (30.672)
Financeal assets sold under mepatchase agreenents (176, 364) (30434) - {5867 [319,748)
Due b customens 15.605.968) [EFLR EH] (25,750 (6630 [(16.04,175)
Dbt secusities Hised (120357 [204. 548 (18570} (3.042) [4T5,007)
Othee firancial kabdees $ (316204 (12.408) 11,651) [1.403) [354,06]
Tetal financial Habities (18.505.2095 [BE5,045) {118.357) feA  (1R5H.53)
et n-balance shest pasition 1267088 (89,767 {5,246) 16,150 1185435
Pt rstional Emcnant of derwathes (46 78T} 5,135 18,397 [18.581) 1,064
Creit commitmenty 18432 138,505 5T war 1L ETE
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.3 Market risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued)

Cash and balances with oemiral banin L7542 LLEL 1030 [ %4 LA ER

Depsserts with hankcy and ceher finascial imfitutar 563,193 874 3630 10,858 621665
Flacements with and loam 62 hanis and ather

firannal st L] 100,630 1 4ug 530,589
Firancial ety beid for Srading 123,436 e - - 123618
Foruclal amsety desgrated at far vibus

theough peofit o loss FLERRE] Lug a7 L] m[ean
Detnatve finandal set 5491 5,500 11 156 1460
Frrancial amets held under resale agreements 33w - - - EFEF )
Loars and adhvances 4o customens BBE4545 575,380 504 kL 5319364
Eualatiefor-sale francd amety 1,183,708 170,784 18 88 1406880
Hkd-to-matunity mvestments 1BE0EI0 19,843 - 1,688 BN
Dlebd instromenty clavsifed 24 mosivabli BN - 135 [ BT
(Gther fnuncial msety (Ee Tt 43831 (1] 1,260 05,18
Total $nandal asiets 18.235,091 L ERL 51,548 S8603 14,128,395
Banrowings trom oeeézal bank [ri il - 1340 ] {191,052}
Deposts from banks and other fnancial imtitubors (1110084 [34,254) {10,575 {3600 1,156,041
Piacements fmm banks ard other frandal nstitutions B335 (134,504 =] {13,757 {302,021}
Firurneial fabdities hebd for wrasineg 17,504 - B - {17 5041
Firuncial lbitees desgnated af 1o vahue trough

profit of ks (262, T81) [B25) - = {153 666)
Derrratre (nancial kabiities (18,535 {17 281 {1656 (20758
Finanrial ansets sl under epurchase agresmenty (190,118 [LHT) = (3067 (10583
Diue o ardomen (14,610,341 381,250 23,365 (E2,5R8 (15038001
Thebit nscuritees. imvoed (200 0% {156, 818) (13,300) (14,738 {348, 215)
(Qther financial habiities (849, 526) [19,318) [1.578) {1,T24) B3 142)
Tortal fnanial Nabsbties (17, 231, 581) (770,708 (85,0000 (T&531) (18166235}
Mat nn-balange shest peiton 993,100 43457 £.526 Falif] 1,062,160
Mt notonal amadnt of dermvatne Lt E14 10,566 (LREx] (S50
Copeht commitments 1365154 Frefi 53 Fullirs} [HELEES
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.3 Market risk (Continued)
Foreign exchange rate risk {Continued)

The table balow indicates the polential effect on profit belore tax and other comprehensive
income arising from a 5% appreciation or depreciation of RMB spot and forward foreign
exchange rates against a basket of all ather currencies on the pet positions of foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities and derivative instruments in the consclidated statement of
financial position.

31 December 2017

Other

Profit comprehensive

before tax income

5% appreciation (1.094) {23)
5% depreciation 1,094 33

(1,892 2}
1,892 9

The effect on profit before tax and other comprehensive income Is calculated based on
ithie assumption that the Group’s foreign currency sensitive exposures and foreign currency
derivative instruments nel position at the end of each reporting period remain unchanged.
The Group mitigates its foreign exchange rate risk through active management of its foreign
currency exposures and the appropriate use of derivative instruments, based on management
expectation of future foreign currency exchange rate movements. Such analysis does not
take intoc account the correfation effect of changes in different foreign currencies, nor any
further actions that could be taken by management 1o mitigate the effect of foreign exchange
differences. Therefore, the sensitivity analysis above may differ from actual results occurring
through changes in foreign exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

The Group'’s interest rate risk arises from the mismatches between contractual maturities
or re-pricing dates of interest-generating assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The Group's
interest-generating assets and interest-bearing liabilities are primarily denominated in RMB.
The PROC established RMB benchmark interest rates for loans whereby financial institutions
are in a positicn to price their loans based on credit nisk; commercial and market factoss. The
deposit interest rate floating ceiling was removed by the PBOC with effect from 24 October
2015 far commercial banks.

The Group manages i1$ inlerest rate risk by:

- Regularly monitorng the macro-economic factors that potentially impact the PBOC
benchmark interest rates,

- Optimizing the management over the differences in timing between contractual
maturities or re-pricing dates of interest-generating assets and interest-bearing liabilities;
and

- Enhancing the interest rate margin on interest-generating assets and interest-bearing

liabilities, with reference to the prevailing PBOC benchmark interest rates where
apprapriate.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.3 Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk {Continuad)

The tables below summarize the contractual maturity or re-prcing date, whichever is sarlier,
of the Group's financial assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period.

o ind Balance with central hanis 1,612,008 2403 5952 - - 6256 LEs6s1s

Diepotity with haniz and
pehes Inandal imsshutions 15,307 3,801 1,506 3 - ki) 130,245
Placenents wilh and loant to banks
ared niher [imncisl ntinations 28,841 B 460 151,545 35,736 1884 - 55269
Financial aisets beld dor trading 10548 1318 IR i H 1964 1,088 154680
Foruncial nsets deugnated at
fair wakae hvough prof or loss Wy o, 121 53,598 125,556 47455 128 Ha
Dermvatre fnanoal et - - - - - 18,184 FLF] )
Financial sty beld nder il
MBI 44,151 17,548 14,34 - - 141 540386
Loarn and advasces fo antomed 4572496 LETEEM BERS 253,848 e = 1B ne
Beigdabiedeesals Francal st AN 152,062 124,43 E48 48 man 28 La6AN
Hed-ba-maturty imvestmansy 5447 mer MM LTI 1488 S LA
Diebr! insiruments clossfied a5 recevables 3,185 a8 Hne 133,845 450,889 - 638213
Ot el ases. = - - - = wmwm s
Total fnancal asets EMLEN  LaBLES0 MBS0 MRS LIROTE AT N T
Batroategs fom cessral Banl [ogod  (0SA) (543 {454 - (30} a5
{ieposts from hanis and ather
francial nstfstion (TEIE5)  [161E {13,110 (55,259) - [257) (80730
Placements frem Banks ard
eeher fnsnal insstutiom (36485 (M9 (5000 14,355 {1.951) - {s0pe}
Financial Habditees held for trading N * - = - [21,118) 1,118}
Frrancial labditee desgraned ot
fasr walee Bvough profit e boms (34525 (13928 (BLE4Y) (4,850 EL] = (H0EH)
Dietfvative Truancial kabskties - - - - - {30,872} (30,872}
Finaracial aisets wold inder
tepuithais agesments (s [FEREE IR T L] {328) - - (M)
Dhue 30 cnfomen (1800850  (LMOTAL  (1551,341) (1815885 (8] (188452} {15, 154.275)
Debn securitis haved (52478 (V18638 (BAA21) (13531 (14,56 = WIsn
Other financlal Fabdities - - N - = (IADEE) (IR0
Tortal fnancial Aabties (1070586 (1850981) (323078E) (195087  WTEIE (SILTS) (19.506.533)
Irfietest rate gag [1415357) @009 1025185  L4EXT 2080083 (123,384 119843
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 Financial risk management (Continued)

49.3 Market risk (Continued)

interest rate risk (Continued)

Cah and balasces with central bunks 153115 483 16,261 - - J1M0 1EINEH
Diepeiits with buanks and
other financlal imtifuson 189 386 168202 1E1LET 1551 - 1,085 E1BES
Placemeats with and loam |0 busks
and other financial imitutiony 181,388 32665 30,307 55 - - 580,349
Francal et held foi rading pkrs] B0 516 7 1,551 £t 123,618
Frasntal pauett desgrated o
fa e thisugh frofit ot st 13,386 41893 43614 L £21 i B
Do yanve forancial msety - - - - - 1) &6 31, 850
Fradnel st held under nedals
areaments 2766 2% 18,137 - - 3 123051
Lnars and sdance i customen L1515 LR8I 370608 17557 Filk ] - 031§ 354
Bualazle-forsale Snancal assets. 3968 107, 382 MATYE  BI0IE0 U050 18308 08 EE
Fel-in-matanity nvectments 56,045 17T NG4E 138098 10556 = LS
Dbt iratruments classified ay recevables L) L HAsE I 47 8 - £24.547
Cithar Fieancial assels - - - - - 5,118 05,18
Total financial asety TS LIOTeiE SONA0ME D463 EME . IldGEAY SILEAT 101E AN
Beerowrag from central bank (16,342 000} (105,055 BI1p - @3 QeEn
Depenits dsom buniks and
ather firascial irtmusons 15881 {146,008 MBS 556N - G115
Facermsats [ram hanks mnd
ather finascial imtitusons [LErR ] {87,112 (B8 183} N - = 0T
Frsancil habdisies held fov trading [353) &) - - - (16,537) (17, 50
Financial kabilives designated a1
fair vaue thesugh peofit of loss [77,584) (B398 (12541 (A5 38 - [283,666)
Dermatve financial liabilites - - - - = {20,758 [0, 758)
Francal anwets sold ander
repuithase agreensnts {183,068 {1200 [l = - - [ROSED
[ue b cuntomers (9350859 (11858100 (2A3TAB) {1 05235 B [ISA4E  (15.0%8001)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.3 Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk {Continuad)

The following table illustrates the potential pre-tax impact, of a parallel upward or downward
shift of 100 basks points in relevant interest rate curves on the Group’s net Interest Income
and other comprehensive income for the next twelve months from the reporting date, based
on the Group's positions of interest-earning assets and interest-beanng liabilities at the end
of each reporting period. This analysis assumes that interest rates of all maturities move
by the same amount, and does not reflect the potential impact of unparalleled yield curve
movemants.

The sensitivity analysis on net interest income I1s based on reasonably possible changes in
interest rates with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and financial liabilities
held at the period end remains unchanged, and does not take changes in customar behavior,
Dasis risk or any prepayment options on debt securities into consideration.

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income reflects only the effect of changes in
fair value of those financial instruments classified as available-for-sale financial assets hald,
whose fair value changes are recorded as an element of other comprehensive income,

31 December 2017

Net Other
interest comprehensive
income income nNoome

+100 basis points {24,928) (37,095) (24,271) (40,354)
- 100 basis points 24,5928 37,045 24271 40,354

The assumptions do not reflect actions that might be taken under the Group's capital and
interest rate risk management policy to mitigate changes to the Groups interest rate risk.
Therefare the above analysis may differ from the actual situation.

In addition, the presentation of interest rate sensitivity above is for illustration purposes only,
showing the potential impact on net interest income and other comprehensive income of the
Group under different parallel yield curve movements, relative to their position at period-end,
excluding the derivative positions.

49.4 Insurance risk

The Group engages in ifs insurance business primanly in Mainland China, Insurance sk refers
to the financial iImpact resulting from the unexpected occurrence of insured events, These risks
are actively managed by the Group through effective sales management, underwriting contral,
reinsurance management and claim management. Through effective sales management, the
risk of mis-selling could be reduced and the accuracy of information wsed for underwriting
is improved. Through underwriting control, risk of adverse selection could be reduced and
moreover differential pricing policy based on the level of each kind of risk could be utilized.
Through reinsurance, the Group's insurance capacity could be enhanced and targeted risks
could be mitigated. Effective claims management s designed to ensure that insurance
payments are controlled accarding to established criteria,

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts for long-term
life insurance contracts arises from the unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels

of mortality, The Group conducts experience analysis of mortality rate and surrender rate, in
order 1o improve its risk assessment and as a basis for reasonable estimates.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

50 Capital management
The Group’s capital management objectives are as follows:
- maintain an adequate capital base to support the development of its business;
- support the Group's financial stability and profitable growth;

- allecate capital through an efficient and risk based approach to optimize risk-adjusted return
1o shareholders; and

- Safequard the long-term sustainability of the Group's franchise so that it can continue to
provide sufficient shareholder returns and benefits for other stakeholders.

The “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional)” issued by the CERC in 2012 includes, among
other things, reguirements for minimum capital, capital conservation buffer, additional capital
surcharge for systemically important banks, countercyclical buffer and Pillar Il capital as follows;

- minimum regulatory requirements for Common Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio,
Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio and Capital Adequacy Ratio are 5%, 6% and 8%, respectively;

- capital conservation buffer requires additional 2.5% of Common Equity Tier-one Capital
Adequacy Ratio;

- additional capital surcharge for systemically important banks requires additional 1% of
Common Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio;

- should the regulators require countercyclical buffer under particular circumstances or
regulators impose additional Fillar Il capital requirements for specific banks, these requirements
shall be met within the specified time limits,

In April 2014, the CBRC officially approved the Group to adopt advanced capital management
approach, Within the scope of the approval, the Internal Ratings-Based approach is adopted to Credit
Risk-weighted Assets for both retail and non-retail risk exposures, and the Standardized approach for
both Operational Risk-weighted Assets and Market Risk-weighted Assets. The CBRC will determine
the parallel run period for the Group, which should last for at least three years. During the parallel
run perod, the Group should calculate its Capital Adeguacy Ratios under the advanced approach
and the non-advanced approach, and should conform to the capital floor requirements as stipulated
in the "Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional)™,

In January 2017, the CBRC has officially approved the Group to adopt the Internal Models approach
to measure its Market Risk-weighted Assets for qualified risk exposures.

Capital adequacy and the utilization of regulatory capital are closely monitored by the Group's
management in accordance with the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee and relevant

reqgulations promulgated by the CBRC. Required information related to capital levels and utilization is
filed quarterty with the CBRC.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

50 Capital management (Continued)

The Groups capital adeguacy ratio calculated in accordance with the "Capital Rules for Commercial
Banks {Provisional]” issued by the CBRC as at the end of the reporting period Is as follows:

31 December 11 December

2017 J01E

Commaon Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio {1 10.63% 10.38%
Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio (1 11.26% 11.06%:
Capital Adeguacy Ratio (1 13.74% 13.04%
Common Equity Tier-one Capital (2) 1,347,453 1,238,683
Deductible items from Common Equity

Tier-one Capital (3 (7.500) {7,653

Met Common Equity Tier-one Capital 1,339,953 1,231,030
Additional Tier-one Capital {4} 79,906 79,904

Met Tier-one Capital 1,419,859 1,310,924
Tier-two Capital (5] 312,087 235,566

Met Capital 1,731,946 1,546,500
Risk-weighted Asgats {B) 12,605,577 11,856,530

Pursuant to the “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks {Provisional}™:

{1} The scope of consolidation related 1o the calculation of the Group’s Capital Adequacy Ratios
includes Domestic Institutions, Overseas Institutions and affiliated financial subsidiaries
specified in the Regulation.

The Common Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio is calculated as Net Common Equity
Tier-one Capital divided by Risk-weighted Assets. The Tier-one Capital Adeguacy Ratio is
calculated as Met Tier-one Capital divided by Risk-weighted Assets. The Capital Adequacy Ratio
is calculated as Met Capital divided by Risk-weighted Assets.

{2) The Group’s Common Equity Tier-one Capital includes: ordinary share capital, capital reserve
{subject to regulatory limitations), investment revaluation reserve, surplus reserve, general
reserve, retained earnings, non=controlling interests (to the extent permitted in the Common
Eguity Tier-one Capital under the Regulation), and the foreign currency translation reserve.

{3} The Group's Deductible Items from Common Equity Tier-one Capital include: other intangible
assets (excluding land-use rights), and Common Equity Tier-one Capital investments made
in financial institutions ower which the Group has control but are outside the regulatory
consolidation scope for the Capital Adequacy Ratios calculation,

(4]  The Group's Additional Tier-one Capital includes: preference shares issued and non-controlling
interests (1o the extent permitted in the Additional Tier-one Capital definition under the
Regulation),

(5)  The Group's Tier-two Capital includes: Tier-two capital instruments and related premium (to
the extent allowed under the Regulation), excessive allowance for loan losses, and minorily
interests (to the extent permitted in the Tier-two Capital definition under the Regulation).

(6} Risk-weighted Assets include Credit Risk-weighted Assets, Market Risk-weighted Assels and
Operational Risk-weighted Assets.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

51 Fair value of financial instruments

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities in the consohdated statement of financial position
are financial assets and financial liabilities, Fair value measurement of non-financial assets and
non-financial liabilities do not have a material impact on the Group'’s financial position and
operations, taken as a whole,

The Group does not have any financial assets or financial liabilities subject to non-recurring fair value
measurements for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,

51.1 Valuation technigue, input and process
The fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial labilities are determined as follows:

- If traded in active markets, fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions are determined with reference to guoted market bid
prices and ask prices, respectively;

- if not traded in active markets, fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined by using valuation technigues. These valuation techniques include the use
of recent transaction prices of the same or similar instruments, discounted cash flow
analysis and generally accepted pricing models.

The Group has established an independent valuation process for financial assets and financial
liabilities. The Financial Market Department |s responsible for the valuation of financial assets
and financial liabilities, and the Risk Management Departmant performs an indepandent review
of the valuation methodologies, inputs, assumptions and valuation results. The Operations
Department records the accounting for these items and prepares the disclosure of the financial
assets and financial liabilities, based on the independently reviewed valuation,

The Group's valuation policies and procedures for different types of financial instruments are
approved by the Risk Management Committee. Any change to the valuation policies, or the
related procedures, must be reported to the Risk Management Commitiee for approval before
they are implemented,

For the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no significant change in the valuation
technigues or inputs used to determine fair value measurements.

51.2 Fair value hierarchy
The Growp classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following three levels
based on the extent to which inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value of the
financial assets and financial liabilities are observable.

Level 1: fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in an
active market for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3: fair value measurements are not based on observabile market data,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

51

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

51.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at falr value on the

consolidated statement of financial position

The tables below summarize the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and
financial habilities not measured. in the consolidated statement of financial position at their
fair value. Financial assets and financial liabilities for which the carrying amounis approximate
fair value, such as balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other fimancial

institutions, placements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions, financial
assets held under resale agreements, loans and advances to customers, receivable from the
MOF, special government bond, borrowings from central bank, deposits and placements from
banks and other financial institutions, due to customers, financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements and certificates of deposit issued, interbank certificate of deposits issued and
commercial papers issued are not included in the tables balow.

31 December 2017

Carrying Fair
amaount value Lavel 1 Leval 2
Financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments 3,489,135 3,385,050 385 3395501 kL]
Debt instruments classified as
receivables {excluding
receivable from the MOF
and special government bond) 294,245 285,737 - 135,993 148,744
Subtotal 3,783,380 3,681,687 355 3,531,564 149,768
Financlal labilities
Bonds issuad 246,833 246,877 1.954 244,923 -
Subtatal 246,833 246,877 1.954 244,923 -

Financial assets

Held-to-maturity investments 2,882,152 2,B092.525 1,528 2,890,997 -
Debt instruments classified as

receivables (excluding

receivable from the MOF

and special government bond) 259,224 257,948 - 117,334 140,614
Subtotal 3,141,376 3,150,473 1,528 3,008,331 140,614
Financial liabilities
Bonds issued 202,107 202,084 10,282 191,692 -
Subtotal 202,107 202,084 10,392 191,692 -
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
51 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

51.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the consolidated
statement of financial position

The tables below summarize the fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities
measurad in the consolidated statement of financial position at their fair value.

31 December 2017

Level 2 Leval 3

Financial assets held for trading

= Debt securities 436 163,453 - 163,949
- Precious metal contracts - 30,691 - 30,691
Subtotal 436 134,144 - 194,640
Financial assats designated at fair

valug thraugh profit or foss
- Debt securities 8,347 161,407 1,885 172,639
~ Deposits with banks and other

fenancial institutions - 93,741 - 93,741

= Macements with and loans to banks

and other financial institutions - - 42,388 92,388

- Others 1,378 1,488 20,630 24,557

Subtetal 8,725 151,637 115,963 383,325
Derivatve financial assets

- Exchange rate dervatives - 25,276 18 25,294

= Interest rate derivatives - 1,125 7 1,132

- Precious metal contracts and others - 1,858 - 1,858

Subtotal - 28,259 15 28,284
Available-for-sale financial assats

— Dbt securities 17,672 1,378,581 2,63 1,395,884

= Fund Investments 2,783 - 932 3,715

- Equity mstruments 3,848 - 3378 1.226

- Others - 46 16,252 16,298

Subtotal _ 24,303 1,378,627 43,193 1,426,123
Total assels 34,524 1,858,667 139,181 2,032,372
Financial liabilities held for trading

~ Financial lizbilties related to precious metals - {21.,118) - {21,118)
Financial iabilities designated at fasr

walue through profit or loss

= Principal guarantesd wealth

management products - - {364,151) [364,151)

- Owverseas debt securities - (6,503) e (6,503}

Subtotal - (6,503} (364,151) [370,654)
Derivative financial liabilities

- Eachange rate devivatives - {30.083) {30) (30,113)

- Interest rate derivatives - (399) i (406}

= Precious metal contracts - (353} - (353)

Subtotal - {30,835) {37) (30,872}
Total liabilizles s (58,456) (364,138 (422,644)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
51 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

§1.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

Financial assets hald for trading

— Debt securities = 108,095 - 108,095
- Precious metal confracts - 15,523 - 15,523
Sulbtotal - 123,618 - 123.618

Financial assets designated at fair
value throwgh profit or loss

- Debt securities 5,256 163,137 1.850 171,243
- Deposits with banks and other
finandial institutions - = 40,953 40,953

- Placements with and loans to

banks and other financial institutions - - 58,485 58,485
- Others 1.456 1,710 20,490 13,656
Subtotal 7.2 164 847 121,778 204 337
Degvative financial assets
- Exchange rate derivatives - 25,153 4 25,207
- Interest rate derivatives - 1,042 19 1,061
- Precious metal contracts and
- others - 5162 - 5,192
Subtotal - 31,367 73 31,460
Availlable-for-sale financial assets
= Dabt securites 46,517 1,343,506 255 1,390,678
- Fund investments 7.5 - - 1.015
= Equity instrumanis 3,482 - 1,567 5,049
- Others - - 5a18 5818
Subtotal 57.014 1,343,506 7,640 1,408,560
Total assets 64,726 1,663,758 129,491 1,857,975
Financial liabikities held for trading
- Financial liabilities related o
preciows metals - {17 504) - (17,504)

Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit o loss

- Principal guaranteed wealth
management products - = (283,665)  (2B3,666]
Denvative financial liabilities
- Exchange rate derivatives - {19,650 113} (19,763)
- Interest rate derivatives = {585) {19 {604)
- Precious metal confracts - (391} - {391}
Subtotal - (20,626} 1132) (30,758)
Total labilities - {38,130) (283.798) (321,928)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
51 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

51.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are
debt investments, deposits with banks and other financial institutions, currency forwards,
currency swaps, interest rate swaps, currency options and precious metal contracts, Fair
value of debt investments denominated in RME is determined based upon the valuation
published by the China Central Depository & Clearing Co,, Ltd, Fair value of debt investments
denominated in foreign currencies is determined based upon the valuation results published
by Bloomberg. The fair value of deposits with banks and other financial institutions, currency
forwards, currency swaps, interest rate swaps and currency options are calculated by applying
discounted cash flow analysis or the Black Scholes Pricing Model. The fair value of precious
metal contracts that are related to the Group's trading activities is determined with reference
to the relevant observable market parameters. All significant inputs are observable in the
market.

Level 2 financial assets of the Group mainly represented wnderlying assets invested by
principal-guaranteed wealth management products issued by the Group including deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, placements with and loans to banks and other
financial institutions and credit assets, The counterparties of these deposits and placements
are primarily commercial banks and non-bank financial institutions in Mainland China, The
credit assets are |oans and advances to corporate customers in Mainland China. Level 3
financial liabilities largely represented liabilities to the investors of these products. As not all
of the inputs needed to estimate the fair value of these assets and liabilities are observable,
the Group classified these investment products within Level 3 of the fair value measurement
hierarchy. The significant unobservable inputs related to these assets and liabilities are those
parameter related credit risk, liquidity and discount rate. Management has made assumptions
on unchservable inputs based on observed indicators of impairment, significant changes
in wield, external credit ratings and comparable credit spreads, but the fair value of these
underlying assets and liabilities could be different from those disclosed.

There were no significant transfers amongst the different levels of the fair value hierarchy
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

51 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

51.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the consolidated

statement of financial poesition (Continued)

The reconciliation of Level 3 classified financial assets and financial liabilities presented at fair

value on the consolidated statement of financial position s as follows:

Financial
azsaty

designated
at fair value
through
profit or loss

217

Available-

Derivative for-zabe
financial
assets assets

financial

prefit or hoss

Financial
liabilithes

designated
ot falr value

Darivative
financial
Habilities

throwgh

1 January 2017 121,778 7,640 (283,666) (132)
Purchasés 1,975,472 - 20,960 - -
lssuance - - - {3.778,572) -
Settlements/disposals {1,991,329) {8) 5,321) 3,707,985 12
Total gainstlosses) recognined in

= Profit or loss 10,042 {42 - {5,898) Lt

= (ther comprehersive

mcome - - (88) - -

31 December 2017 115,963 25 13,193 {354,151) (EXH]
Change in unsealized

qgainsiiosses) far the year

included in profit of Joss

fior assetsfiabilitees held at

the end of the year 1,605 {43) - (44) 13

(40 407) (21}

1 lanuary 2016 216,565 8 3,631
Purchases 487,191 - 5,995 - -
Istuance - - - (1,758 926 -
Settlementsfdisposal ({SE8.006] (113 (1,995) 1,891,502 14
Total painsilosses) recagnized in

= Prodit or koss B,028 25 - (9,835) (55}

- Other comprehenssve

income - - 13 - -

31 December 2016 121,778 TE 7,640 (2B3,565) (132}
Change in unrealized

[lossesiigains for the year

included mn profit or loss for

assetafliabilities hald at

the end of the year {657) 21 - 175 (47
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

51 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

51.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

In Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, total gains or losses included in profit or loss for the year
are presented in Met Gain on Financial Instruments Designated at fair value through profit ar
loss of the consolidated income statement.

52 Events after the reporting pericd
52.1 Profit appropriation

{1}  Pursuant to the resolutions of the Board of Directors’ meeting on 11 lanuary 2018, a
cash dividend at the dividend rate of 5.5% per annum related to the second tranche
of preferenpce shares amounting to RMBZ,200 million in total was approved and the
dividend was distributed on 12 March 2018,

{2}  Pursuant fo the meeting of the Board of Directors on 26 March 2018, the proposal for
profit appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set forth as
foliows:

i) An appropriation of RMB19,171 million to the statutory surplus reserve (Note IV
41y,

(i} An appropriation of RMBE,380 million 10 the general reserve (Note IV 42);

(i) A cash dividend of RMBO.1783 per ordinary share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2017 based on the number of ordinary shares issued as at
31 December 2017 totaling RMB57,911 million (Naote IV 10).

As at 31 December 2017, the statutory surplus reserve under item (i) above had been
recognized as approgriation in the statement of changes in equity of the Group. Items (i}
and (i) will be recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial statements after approval by
ordinary equity holders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

52.2 General Mandate for Issuance of Shares

On 12 March 2018, the Board resolved to submit to the 2018 first extraordinary general
meeting of the Bank to be held on 29 March 2018 ("EGM") a proposal for the consideration
and approval by way of special resolution in respect of granting a General Mandate to
the Board. Pursuant to such General Mandate (if granted), the Board may, separately
or concurrently, allot, issue andfor deal with up to 58,811,058,780 A Shares andior
6,147,764,619 H Shares, representing 20% of the respective number of each of the lssued
A Shares andfor H Shares as at the date of approval of such General Mandate at the EGM,
assuming that the numbers of issued A Shares and issued H Shares will remain unchanged on
the date of approval of such General Mandate at the EGM,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

52 Events after the reporting period (Continued)
52.3 Proposed Private Placement of A Shares

53

The Board resolved on 12 March 2018 to approve the Bank's Private Placement of no maore
than 27,472.527.469 A Shares, subject to the satisfaction of vanous conditions. On the same
date, the Bank entered into conditional share subscription agreements, respectively, with
each of target subscribers, stipulating relevant matters in relation to the subscription of the A
Shares under the Private Placement at the issuance price {0 be determined as stipulated.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations as well as the Hong Kong Listing Rules,
the implementation of tha Private Placement is subject to, among others, the approval of
the General Mandate and the Private Placement at the shareholders’ general meeting by way
of special resolutions and the approval of regulatory authorities including the CBRC and the
CSRC, and also subject to the final plan approved by the aforesaid regulatory authorities.

Statement of financial position of the bank

As at 31 December

2017
Aszots
Cash and balances with central banks 2,896,341 2,809,879
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 115,998 616,450
Precious metals 32,008 59,105
Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 515,311 590,223
Financial assets held for trading 120,172 93,880
Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss 367,552 286,123
Derivative financial assats 28,150 31,430
Financial assets held under resale agreements 536,521 322,948
Loans and advances to customers 10,277.039 9,282.320
Ayailable-for-sale financial assets 1,379,329 1,375,156
Held-ta-maturity investments 3,477,280 2,869,711
Debt instruments classified as receivables 586,826 604,991
Investment in subsidiaries 23 21,660 11,660
Investments in associates 227 213
Contralled structured entities inwestments 126,400 30,000
Property and equipment 147,214 152,457
Deferred tax assets 97,320 82,670
Other assels 187,922 221,425
Total assets 20,913,330 19,440,641
Liabilities
Borrowings from central bank 465,647 290,992
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 979,501 1,161,931
Flacements from banks and other financial
institutions 239,044 269,591
Financial liabilities held for trading 21,118 17,504
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss 370,654 283 666
Derivative financial liabilities 30,736 20,724
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 314,479 202,938
Due to customers 16,192,746 15,035,744
Debt securities |ssued 465,323 378,094
Other liabilities 410,575 463,621
Total liabilities 19,489,823 18,124,815
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

53 Statement of financial position of the bank (Continued)

As at 31 December

2017 201¢

Equity
Ordinary shares 37 324,794 324,794
Preference shares 38 79,899 79,899
Capital reserve 39 98,574 08,574
Investment revaluation reserve (18,934) 3,768
Surplus reserve 41 124,061 114,890
General reserve 42 230,065 197,695
Retained earnings 574,931 494,573
Fareign currency translation reserve 117 1,633

. Total equity 1.423,507 1,315,826

Total equity and liabilities 20,913,230 19,440,641

Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2018,

K

Vice Chairman
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

54 Statement of changes in equity of the bank

Ondinary  Prefesence
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I ndependent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited
(Incorporated in the People's Republic of Chinawith limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group™)
set out on pages 160 to 293, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,

the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSS”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAS”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the
IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit mattersidentified in our audit are summarized as follows:

e Impairment of loans and advances to customers

e Disclosure of estimated impact upon initial application of IFRS 9 — expected credit losses model

e Consolidation of structured entities

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers

Refer to Note 1l 8.1, Note Ill 1, Note IV 8, Note |V 19 and
Note IV 49.1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Asat 31 December 2017, the Group's gross loans and
advances to customers amounted to RMB10,720.6 billion, and
an allowance for impairment losses of RMB404.3 billion was
recognized in the Group’s Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position.The impairment losses on loans and
advances to customers recognized in the Group’s
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2017 amounted to RMB92.9 billion.

Allowance for impairment |osses represented management’s
best estimates of losses incurred on loans and advances to
customers as at the balance sheet date. The allowance was
computed individually or on a collective basis, where
appropriate.

Corporate loans were initially assessed for impairment
individually by management. If identified asimpaired based
on objective evidence of impairment, management regularly
assessed the associated allowance for impairment losses based
on estimation of future cash flows from these loans.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the relevant controls over the impairment
assessments and impairment allowance computations for
loans and advances to customers. These controls implemented
primarily comprised the regular review and approval of:

(2) the results of credit assessments to ascertain whether
objective evidence of impairment had been timely
identified;

(2) the valuation of collaterals;

(3) the estimated future cash flows and cal culations of present
values of such cash flows for impaired loans identified
individually; and

(4) the collective impairment computations, including
appropriateness of the models used, data inputs and key
assumptions and changes thereof.

We also tested IT controls over the information systems for
these models.

We performed independent credit reviews on selected
samples, with reference to available financial information of
borrowers and guarantors, latest collateral valuations, and
relevant external evidence and factors, to ascertain whether
management’s identification of impaired loans was
appropriate.
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers (Continued)

Non-impaired corporate loans and all personal loans were
included in homogeneous groups with similar credit risk
characteristics for impairment assessments on a collective
basis. Models were used for this purpose, applying key
assumptions such as, historical loss experience, loss
identification period for incurred but unidentified impairment
losses, macro-economic, industry and geographical factors.
Management assessed these key assumptions on a periodic
basis, and made adjustments where deemed appropriate.

We focused on the impairment assessment of loans and
advances to customers due to the significant management
judgments made during the impairment identification and
assessment processes.

For impaired loans identified individually, we examined, on a
sample basis, forecasted future cash flows prepared by the
Group based on financial information of borrowers and
guarantors, latest collateral valuations and other available
information together with discount rates in supporting the
computation of impairment allowance.

For collectively assessed impairment allowance, we assessed
the appropriateness of the impairment models used with
reference to our industry knowledge. We also performed
independent assessment on the parameters and inputs used in
the impairment models, including evaluating accuracy and
completeness of source data, appropriateness of loan
segmentation by risk characteristics, appropriateness of key
inputs and assumptions such as historical 1oss experience,
macro-economic factors, other risk factors and parameters as
well as adjustments made thereof.

We discussed with management and scrutinized the
appropriateness of those key assumptions applied in
management’s impairment assessment, and compared them
with available external evidence where necessary. We also
applied sensitivities to the underlying key assumptions.

Based on our procedures performed, in the context of the
inherent uncertainties associated with impairment
assessments, the assessment approaches, methodol ogies and
key assumptions adopted by management were considered
acceptable.
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Disclosure of estimated impact upon initial
application of IFRS 9 — expected credit |osses model

Refer to Note |1 1.2 (3) to the consolidated financial
Statements.

International Accounting Standard 8: Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (“1AS 8")
requires disclosurein the financia statements of the
reasonably estimable information relevant to assessing the
possible impact of new standards issued but not yet effective.
International Financial Reporting Standard 9: Financial
Instruments (“1FRS 9” or “the standard”) took effect on 1
January 2018 and its adoption is expected to reduce the Group
'stotal equity as at 1 January 2018 by less than 2%, mainly
due to the application of the expected credit losses
measurement models (“ECL models”) in determining the loan
loss reserve on its loans and advances to customers measured
at amortized cost, certain loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts.

The implementation of IFRS 9 requires the Group to make
considerable judgements, assumptions, and interpretations of
the standard and requires the use of new parametersin the
development of new models to estimate the loan loss reserve
on loans and advances to customers measured at amortized
costs, certain loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts using the expected credit losses concept. The Group
has developed new governance and controlsin relation to the
implementation of IFRS 9 and the disclosure of the estimated
impact.

The Group’s estimation of the possible impact upon initial
application of IFRS 9 isahighly complex process and
involves significant management judgments and
interpretations, and accordingly, we included this as akey
audit matter.

We performed the following procedures to assess the
reasonableness of the Group’s disclosed possible impact of
theinitial adoption of IFRS 9:

(1) Understood the relevant controls over the selection and
approval of the accounting policies and modelling
methodologies;

(2) Obtained an understanding of ECL model methodologies
and development processes through review of
documentation and discussion with management and the
Group's credit modelling experts. With the support of our
credit loss and modelling specialists, we assessed the
reasonableness of the major data inputs; and judgements,
interpretations and assumptions made by management;

(3) Examined the mgjor datainputs to the ECL modelson a
sample basis to assess their accuracy and completeness;
and

(4) Gained an understanding of the Group’s key processes
over the preparation of the disclosure made in accordance
with IAS 8 and inspected the related approval
documentation.

Based on the procedures we have performed, the estimated
impact upon initial application of IFRS 9 disclosed by the
Group is acceptable.
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Consolidation of Structured Entities

Refer to Note Il 2, Note 111 6 and Note IV 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Structured entities primarily included Wealth Management
Products (“WMPs"), securitization products, funds, trust
investment plans and asset management plans issued,
managed and/or invested by the Group. As at 31 December
2017, total assets of the consolidated structured entities and
the carrying amount of unconsolidated structured entities
invested by the Group included in the consolidated statement
of financia position amounted to RMB482.44 billion and
RMBA45.23 hillion, respectively. In addition, as at 31
December 2017, total assets of non-principal guaranteed
WM Ps sponsored and managed by the Group which were not
consolidated and not included in the consolidated statement of
financial position amounted to RMB1,580.53 billion.

Management had determined that the Group had control of
certain structured entities based on their assessment of the
Group’s power over, its exposure to variable returns from its
involvement with, and its ability to useits power to affect the
amount of its returns from these structured entities

The significant judgement exercised by management in
assessing whether the Group had control of structured entities
and the amount of such structured entities resulted in this
matter being identified as a key area of audit focus.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Group’s relevant controls over
consolidation assessment of structured entities, including
approval of transaction structure, review and approval of
contractual terms, variable return computations, and
consolidation assessment results.

We selected samples of structured entities and assessed the
Group'’s contractual rights and obligations in light of the
transaction structures, and evaluated the Group's power over
the structured entities. We performed independent analysis
and tests on the variable returns from the structured entities,
including but not limited to commission income and asset
management fees earned by the Group as the asset manager,
the retention of residual income, and, if any, the liquidity and
other support provided to the structured entities.

We also assessed whether the Group acted as aprincipa or an
agent, through analysis of the scope of the Group’s decision-
making authority over the sampled structured entities, the
remuneration to which the Group was entitled for asset
management services, the Group’s exposure to variability of
returns from its other interests in the structured entities, and
the rights held by other partiesin the structured entities.

Based on the procedures performed, we found management’s
consolidation judgment of these structured entities acceptable.
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Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises al of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give atrue and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financia statementsthat are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as abody, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with | SAs, we exercise professiona judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them al relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communi cated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these mattersin our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’ s report is Ho Shuk Ching, Margarita.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018
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